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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OFMEDICAID SERVICES

Lorl A. Weaver 129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
Commlsiioner 603-271-9422 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9422

Fax: 603-271-8431 TOD Access: 1-800-73S-2964
Henry D. Lipman www.dhhs.nh^ov

Director

April 23, 2025

Her Excellency, Governor Kelly A. Ayotte
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Med'icaid Services,
to enter into a Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with Coordinated Transportation
Solutions, Inc. (VC #216906), Trumbuil, GT, to continue providing statewide non-emergency
medical transportation for Medicaid Fee-for-Service members, by increasing the price limitation
by $332,448 from $2,547,887 to $2,880,335 and by extending the completion date from June 30,
2025 to June 30,2026, effective July 1, 2025. upon Governor and Council approval. 59% Federal
Funds. 23% General Funds. 18% Other Funds (as defined in RSA 126-AA:3. 1).

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on March 23,2022, item #11
and amended on January 18, 2023, item #17A; and most recently amended on January 31.
2024, item #24.

Funds are anticipated to be available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2026,
with the authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

See attached Fiscal Details

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because MOP 150 requires all amendments to agreements
originally approved as sole source to be identified as sole source. In State Fiscal Year 2022, the
previous contractor departed the market with insufficient notice for the Department to establish
a new transportation network and conduct a competitive procurement. This Contractor was
originally selected due to their extensive knowledge of the NH Medicaid non-emergency medical
transportation (NEMT) program, network of enrolled transportation providers, familiarity with the
State's claims and encounter system, and ability to assume services with minimal transition
preparation.

The Department is requesting to extend services with the current Contractor for an
additional 12 months due to the fact that the Department has not identified a viable alternative
model of NEMT service delivery with coverage statewide for fewer than 2,000 eligible Fee for
Service {FFS) Medicaid beneficiaries. The Department has attempted to develop an alternative
model of delivery of the FFS NEMT benefit, including engaging with local ambulance service
providers to propose that those companies could assume the responsibility of brokering the
ambulance and wheelchair NEMT services. Ultimately, these companies determined that this
model was not compatible with their business plan. However, the Department will continue to
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explore new models and opportunities in the NEMT space. Last month, the Department was
approached by a consultant, Impact Consulting, working for the NH Commission on Aging to
complete a Community Transportation Needs Assessment. We will pursue the opportunity with
impact Consulting and the NH Commission on Aging to continue to explore opportunities to
improve service delivery in the NEMT space. At this point in time, the Department is unable to
initiate a competitive procurement of FFS NEMT services without disruption to NEMT service
delivery.

The purpose of this request is for the Contractor to continue providing Medicaid meml^ers
In the State's Fee-for-Services program with access to non-emergency medical transportation for
all Medicaid covered services. Eligibility for services are verified through the Department's
Medicaid Management Information System (MMIS).

Approximately 1,171 individuals will be served during State Fiscal Year 2026.

The Contractor is providing a statewide network of transportation providers that transport
beneficiaries in various modes of transportation, which includes taxis, wheelchair vans, non-
emergency ambulances, and vans. The Contractor ensures beneficiaries receive the most
efficient mode of transportation based on their physical and/or cognitive impairments. The
Contractor is maintaining a call center for beneficiaries to schedule rides. Additionally, the
Contractor ensures all transportation provides complete cultural and linguistic sensitivity,
defensive driving, driver code of conduct, situational behavioral training, first aid; and
Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation training. The Contractor completes beneficiary satisfaction
surveys and performs necessary corrective action. The Contractor responds to all grievances
communicated In a timely manner unless it is Significant or Reportable, which is reported to the
Department within twelve (12) and twenty-four (24) hours, respectively,, and keeps the
Department apprised throughout the grievance process, If there is an accident, the Department
is notified within twenty-four (24) hours unless it results in an injury in which the Department is
notified within twelve (12) hours.

The Department will continue to monitor services through:

•  Monthly meetings with the Contractor to address provider and member concerns:

t  Regularly scheduled meetings with key stakeholders to collect feedback on
program performance;

•  Contractor required reporting on contract performance such as ride completion and
call center wait times; and

•  Conducting routine claim audits.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, Medicaid beneficiaries in the
Fee-for-Service program, who are dependent on the non-emergency transportation program may
not have access to needed transportation to Medicaid-covered services. Additionally, the
Department would be noncompliant with the State Plan.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number 93.778, FA|N 2405NH5MAP

RespectfullRespectfully submitted,

Loh A. Weaver

Commissioner

The Deparlmtnt of Health and Human Services' Mission is to Join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



Department of Health and Human Services

Non-Emergency MedicalTransportation (NEMT) Program for Fee-for-Service (EPS) Medicaid Beneficiaries (SS-2022-DMS-01-NEMT-01-A03)

05-95-47-470010-23580000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT. DIVISION OF MEDICAID SERVICES, OFC OF
MEDICAID SERVICES, NH GRANITE ADV HEALTH CARE TRUST FUND

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Revised Budget

2022 101/500729 Medicaid Payments to Providers 47004369 $10,955 $0 $10,955

2023 101/500729 Medicaid Payments to Providers 47004369 $85,598 $0 $85,598

2024 101/500729 Medicaid Payments to Providers 47004369 $96,643 $0 $96,643

2025 101/500729 Medicaid Payments to Providers 47004369 $106,603 $0 $106,603

2026 101/500729 Medicaid Payments to Providers 47004369 $0 $52,680 $52,680

Subtotal $299,799 $52,680 $352,479

D5-95-47-470010-79480000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT. DIVISION OF MEDICAID SERVICES, OFC OF MEDICAID SERVICES,

MEDICAID CARE MANAGEMENT

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised Budget

2022 101/500729 Medicaid Payments to Providers 47004050 $101,415 $0 $101,415

2023 101/500729 Medicaid Payments to Providers 47004050 $783,662 $0 $783,662

2024 101/500729 . Medicaid Payments to Providers 47004050 $717,623 $0 $717,623

2025 101/500729 Medicaid Payments to Providers 47004050 $582,764 $0 $582,764

2026 101/500729 Medicaid Payments to Providers 47004050 $0 $237,035 $237,035

Subtotal $2,165,464 $237,035 $2,422,499

B5-95-47-470010-70510000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT. DIVISION OF MEDICAID SERVICES, OFC OF MEDICAID SERVICES,

CHILD HEALTH INSURANCE PROGRAM

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised Budget

2022 101/500729 Medicaid Payments to Providers 47004060 $1,629 SO $1,629

2023 101/500729 Medicaid Payments to Providers 47004060 $17,903 $0 $17,903

2024 101/500729 Medicaid Payments to Providers 47004060 $21,771 $0 $21,771

2025 101/500729 Medicaid Payments to Providers 47004060 $21,321 $0 $21,321

2026 - 101/500729 Medicaid Payments to Providers 47004060 $0 $42,733 $42,733

Subtotal $62,624 542,733 $105,357

Total $2,547,887 $332,448 $2,880,335

lofl
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New Hampshire

DolT

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

27 Hazen Drive | Concord, NH j 03301

Fax: (603) 271 -1516 | TDD: (80,0) 753-2964

Denis Goulet, Commissioner

April 29. 2025

Lori A. Weaver, Comrriissioner

Department of Health and Human Services

State of New Hampshire

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

Dear Commissioner Weaver;

This letter represents formal notification that the Department of Information Technology

(DolT) has approved your agency's request to enter into a contract amendment with Coordinated
Transportation Solutions, Inc., as described below and referenced as DolT No. 2022-114C.

The purpose of this request is to continue providing statewide non-emergency

medical transportation for Medicaid Fee-for-Service members.

The Total Price Limitation shall increase by $332,448 for a New Total Price Limitation

of $2,880,335, effective upon Governor and Council approval through June 30,2026.

A copy of this letter must accompany the Department of Health and Human Services'
submission to the Governor and Executive Council for approval.

Sincerely,

/(U
Denis Goulet

DG/jd

DolT#2022-114C

cc: Ken Gagne, IT Manager, DolT

"Innovative technologies today for New Hampshire's tomorrow."
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #3

This Amendment to the Non-Emergency Medical Transportation (NEMT) Program for Fee-for-Service
(EPS) Medicaid Beneficiaries contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire. Department of
Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and Coordinated Transportation Solutions, Inc.
("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on March 23, 2022 (Item #11), as amended on January 18, 2023 (Item #17A), and most recently
amendment on January 31,2024 (Item #24) the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon
the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums
specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7., Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2026

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8., Price Limitation, to read:

$2,880,335

3. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, by adding Section 1.1., to read:

1.1. 56% Federal Funds from Medicaid Title XIX, Medical Assistance Program as awarded on
10/01/2023 and 7/01/2024 by the US Department of Health and Human Services, Centers
for Medicare and Medicaid Services, ALN 93.778, FAIN 2405NH5MAP.

1.2. 23% General Funds.

1.3. 21% Other Funds (Medicaid Enhancement Tax and New Hampshire Granite Advantage .
Health Care Program Trust Fund).

MM

Coordinated Transportation Solutions, Inc. A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials
^  5/l/202r

SS-2022-DMS-01 -NEMT-01-A03 Page 1 of 3 Date
v7.12.23
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective July 1, 2025, upon Governor.and Council
approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

5/1/2025

-OocuSigntdby:

■■CF5W404fi70D4£4...

Date Name: Henry D. Lipman
Title:

Medicaid Director

Coordinated Transportation Solutions, Inc.

—Stgn*d by:

5/1/2025 AuJim^s
H1f:4R4ftM7?14FR

Date Name: Miguel Mclnnis
Title:

CEO

Coordinated Transportation Solutions. Inc. A-S-1.3

SS-2022-DMS-01-NEMT-01-A03 Page 2 of 3
V. 7.12.23
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

•DocuSlgi»dby:

5/5/2025
uocusignto oy:

Date Name: Robyn Guarino

Title:
Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date . Name:

Title:

Coordinated Transportation Solutions. Inc. A-S-1.3

SS-2022-DMS-01 -NEMT-OI-A03 Page 3 of 3
V. 7.12.23



State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, David M. Scanlan, Secretary ofStatc of the State ofNew Hampshire, do hereby certify that COORDINATKO

TRANSPORTATION SOLU TIONS, INC. is a Connecticut Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New

Hampshire on August 02, 2005. 1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's oHlcc have been

received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 542053

Certificate Ts'umbcr; 0007153737

u.

5^

d

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

I hereto set my hand and cause to be alTixcd

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this Sth day of April A.D. 2025.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State



Oocusign Envelope ID: 4E9F6655-E8D9-47FA-BB61-9DE0269e641D

CERTIFICATE OF VOTE/AUTHORITY

Robin Lynch of Coordinated Transportation Solutions, Inc. do hereby certify that:

1. I am the Chief of Service Delivery of Coordinated Transportation Solutions, Inc.

2. That the President and Chief Executive Officer is hereby authorized on behalf of this company to

enter into said contracts with the State, and to execute any and all documents, agreements, and

other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto; as he may deem

necessary, desirable or appropriate, and Miguel Mclnnis is the duly elected President and Chief
Executive Officer of this company.

3. I further certify that it is understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate
as evidence that the person listed above currently occupies the position indicated and that they

have full authority to bind the company and that this authorization shall remain valid for thirty (30)

days from the date of this certificate.

R£hhup L^nch/ Apr 11,2025
Robin Lynch Date
Chief of Service Delivery
Coordinated Transportation Solutions, Inc.

Adobe Acrobet Sign Transoction Number: CBJCHDCAABAA2HTUyyKu0KqC9Um0vz2StwrFVt<jCEnln
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COORTRA.01

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

SGATTO

DATE (MM/DOnrVYY)

4/2/2025

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy{ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement{s).

PRODUCER License #1009544
Lawley Shoff Darby
488 Main Avenue
Third Floor
Norwalk, CT 06851

CONTACT Carrie Kesler

e»u: (203) 256-7934 7934

li^nR^ss' CKesler@lawleylnsurance.com

IN.SURER(SI AFFOROINO COVERAGE NAIC«

iNsuRERA:Underwriters at Llovds London 15642

INSURED

Coordinated Transportation Solutions, Inc.
36 Nutmeg Drive
Suite 120

Trumbull, CT 08611

INSURER B; Utica National Insurance Grouo

INSURER C;

INSURER 0:

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID'CLAIMS.

tNSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE

AODL

IN$D
SUBR

ywf> POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EPF

(MM/DD/YYYYI

POLICY EXP
(MM/nnfYYYYI LIMITS

A COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

E 1 X 1 OCCUR W1C290240901 7/24/2024 7/24/2025

EACH OCCURRENCE
j  6,000,000

CLAIMS-MAC DAMAGE TO RENTED ,  50,000

MFD FJ<P fAnv one oeraonl
j  5,000

PERSONAL S. ADV INJURY
.  Included

G6N-L AGGREGATE UMIT APPLIES PER; GENERAL AGGREGATE
,  6,000,000

X POLICY 1 1?!^^ 1 |lOC,
OTHFR-

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG
.  Included

s

A AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

W1C290240901 7/24/2024 7/24/2025

COMBINED SINGLE UMIT ,  1,000,000

ANYAUTO

HEOULEO
TOS

m'm

BODILY INJURY (Per oeraoni

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

AU^S ONLY

sc
Al BODILY INJURY (Per accidenl) s

X X PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per accMnnli s

s

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MAOE

EACH OCCURRENCE i

AGGREGATE

DEO RETENTIONS s

B WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY ^^
ANY PROPRIETOFVPARTNER/EXeCUTIVE | 1
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(MandatoryIn NH) ' '
If yea. deacribe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

N/A

4777747 7/24/2024 7/24/2025

Y PER OTH-
^ STATUTE FR

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT
,  1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE
J  1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE POLICY LIMIT
J  1,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS 1 VEHICLES (ACORD 101. Additional Ramarka Schedule, may be attached II more apace Is require^
D&O/EPLI 7/24/24-7/24/25, Berkley Insurance Company, Pol ##P0052308201S, Claims Made $1,000,000/61,000,000. D&O Retention $35,000/EPLI
Retention $50,000, Retro Date 7/24/17. Sexual/Physical Misconduct IncI in E&0-$1,000,000/$3,000,000-$10,000 retention. Claims Made, Retro Date
7/25/01. E&O retro date 7/25/01 $1,000,000/$3,000,000 & 7/24/16 $2,000,000/$3,000,000 & 7/24/18 $3,000,000/$3,000,000. Cyber Liability Policy
#108053492, 6/1/24-6/1/25, Travelers Casualty & Surety Co, $5,000,000, $25,000 ded. Excess Cyber 2nd layer Liability Policy #AB-6768574-01,
6/1/24-6/1/25, At-Bay Specialty Insurance Company, $2,000,000, $25,000 retention.
Policy No. 3604-57-62, Chubb Insurance Group, 7/24/24-25 • $25,000 Employee
Dishonesty/$1,000 deductible

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

state of NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

1  •

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD25 (2016/03) © 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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CTS MISSION, VISION AND VALUES

MISSION

It is the mission of CTS to increase the

availability of cost-effective and efficient

transportation services to transportation

disadvantaged individuals and

communities.

VISION

With an empowered team of

professionals, CTS adds value to the

services provided to our customers and

improves the lives of the people we serve.

VALUES

CUSTOMER FOCUS

Our customers are the reason

we are here

INTEGRITY

We communicate openly, honestly,

and responsibly

RESPECT

We treat others as we want

to be treated

VALUE PROPOSITION

CTS works collaboratively with you to

customize a transportation program that

achieves your goals for the people In your

care.

Our responsive, committed and

accountable transportation team includes

dedicated account managers, a member

experience unit and a local presence to

Connect People to Care.

We will do what we do best, so that you

can do what you do best.
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COORDINATED TRANSPORTATION

SOLUTIONS, INC.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 AND 2023

TOGETHER WITH INDEPENDENT

AUDITOR'S REPORT

MYSTIC

ACCOUNTING

GROUP. LLP
CEDTIFIED PU&LtC ACCOUNTANTS
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COORDINATED TRANSPORTATION SOLUTIONS, INC.
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MYSTIC

ACCOUNTING

GROUP. LLP
CEPTIFIEO PUBUIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board ofDircclors

Coordinated Transporlaiion Solutions, Inc.
Trumbuii, Connecticut

Opinion
We have audited the aceompanying financial statements of Coordinated Transportation Solutions, Inc. (a
nonprofit organization), which comprise the statements of financial position as of September 30, 2024 and
2023, and the related statements of activities, fimctjonal expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and
the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Coordinated Transportation Solutions, Inc. as of September 30, 2024 and 2023, and the changes in
its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. i

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Our responsibilities under those standards arc further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of Coordinated
Transportation Solutions, Inc. and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant
ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. i

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Coordinated Transportation Solutions,
Ine.'s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements arc
available to be issued.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a wholei arc free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue the auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute and therefore is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect aimatcrial
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
tlian for one resulting in error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements arc considered material if there is a
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgement made by a
reasonable user based on the financial statements.

200 SANDY HOLLOW ROAD. STE 2. PO BOX 397. MYSTIC. CONNECTICUT 06355 • P 860.536.1040 • F 860.536.0716
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In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we; |
t

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. [

I

•  Identify and assess the risks of material missialcmcnt of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a lest basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that arc appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of Coordinated Transportation Solutions, Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, no siich
opinion is expressed.

\  I

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by ■-management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

I

• , Conclude whether, in our judgement, there arc conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that
raise substantial doubt about Coordinated Transportation Solutions, Inc.'s ability to continue as a
going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other mailers, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related matters
that wc identified during the audit. , , j

Mystic, Connecticut
January 28, 2025
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COORDINATED TRANSPORTATION SOLUTIONS, INC.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 AND 2023

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash - rcslrieled

Accounts receivable, net

Other receivables

Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

Proncrtv and equipment

OlTice furniture, fixtures, and equipment
Computer equipment
Leasehold improvements
Software

Total property and equipment

Less accumulated depreciation

Property and equipment, net

Other assets

Right of use assets
Deferred software cosLs

Restricted cash - dcierred compensation

Total other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current llahilitlcs

Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Deferred revenue

Other current liabilities

Leases payable, current portion
Long-tenn debt, cuncnt portion
Total current liabilities

LonQ'tcrm llahllltlcs

Deferred compensation payable

Leases payable, less current portion
Long-term debt, less current portion
Total long-tenn liabilities
Total liabilities

Net assets

Net assets without donor restrictions

Total liabilities and net assets

2024 2023

s 1,420,821 $ 3,615,166

116,992 '26,669
14,825.106 12;737,275

58,612 1,289

711,837 817,668

17,133,368 17,198,067

271,173 271,173

1,895,898 1,682,686

188,665 188,665

1,295,713 1,194,564

3,651,449 3,337,088

(3,101,148) (2,(j94,049)

550,301 643,039

2.089,945 2,363,825

104,478 146,624

39,500 ,30,753

2.233,923 2,541,202

s 19,917,592 S 20,382,308

$ 9,378,772 S

\

8,587,247

51,837 ,49,844

17,068 24,588

375,146 330,719

34,251 , 30,595

9,857,074 9,022,993

39,500

f

30,753

1,960,741 2,335,886

584,527 618,778

2,584,768 2,985,417

12,441,842 12,008,410

7,475,750 8,373,898

s 19,917,592 s 20,382,308

See accompanyitig notes to the financial statements.
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Docusign Envelope ID: 4E9F6655-E8D9-47FA-BB61-9DE02698841D

COORDINATED TRANSPORTATION SOLUTIONS, INC.

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 AND 2023

2U24 2023

Revenue

Transportation brokerage $ 151,865,450 $ 141,749,936

[nveslnicnl income 98,572 43,070

Other income 1,9.^6 -

Total revenue 151,965,958 141,793,006

Exnensc.s

Program 148,311,883 138,567,938

General and administrative 4,311,787 1,770,842

Total expenses 152,623,670 140,338,780

Other Rcvcnue/tExpense.s)

Gain/(loss) on disposal of assets - (1,225)

Contingency expense (240,436) -

Total other revenue/expenses (240,436) (1,225)

Change in net assets (898,148) 1,453,001

Net assets without donor restrictions - beginning of year 8,373,898 6,920,897

Net assets without donor restrictions - end of year $  7,475,750 S  8,373,898

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Docusign Envelope ID: 4E9F6655-E8D9-47FA-BB61-9DE02698841D

COORDINATED TRANSPORTATION SOLUTIONS, INC.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

Program

General

and

Administrative

Total

l.ixpcnscs

Purchased transportation $ 129,626,161 $ $ 129,626,161

Salaries and wages 12,6.37,441 2,917,199 15,554,640

Employee benefits 1,112,492 256,805 1,369,297

Payroll taxes 931,292 214,978 1,146,270

Computer maintenance 763,621 176,273 939,894

Telephone expense 651,159 150,312 801,471

Occupancy 623,270 143,874 767,144

Depreciation and amortization 330,749 76,349 407,098

Legal lees 204,168 47,130 251,298

Insurance 192,805 44,507 237,312

Benefits 403B Match 158,647 36,622 I95;269

Recruiting expenses 108,293 24,998 133,291

Payroll service 103,504 23,892 127,396

Other professional services .95,799 22,114 117,913

Unemployment expense 68,141 15,729 83,870

Equipment rental 60,850 14,047 74,897

Tcmporaiy help 55,543 12,821 68,364

Interpreter services 53,397 12,326 65,723

Staff training 53,206 10,700 63,906

Dues and subscriptions 51,909 11,983 63,892

Travel and entertainment 49,066 11,326 60,392

Computer equipment 47,360 10,933 58,293

Internet 39,581 9,137 48,718

Accounting fees 31,624 7,300 38,924

Computer consulting 30,548 7,052 37,600

Postage 29,707 6,857 36,564

Employee recognition 28,571 6,595 35,166

Conference expense 26,750 6,175 32,925

Properly taxes 24,624 5,684 30,308

Marketing 20,592 4,753 25,345

Interest expense 19,139 4,418 23,557

Office supplies and expense 17,596 4,061 21,657

Incentive compensation 16,353 3,775 20,128

Credit loss expense 11,320 2,613 13,933

Meetings 9.573 2,210 1 1,783

Performance bond fee 6,732 1,554 8,286

Bank charges 6,336 1,462 7,798

Facility maintenance 5,893 1,361 7,254

Gifts 3,972 917 4,889

Advertising 2,145 495 2,640

Other expense 975 225 1,200

Donations 691 159 850

Printing 288 66 354

Total $ 148;311,883 $  4,311,787 $ 152,623,670

See accompanj'ing notes to the iniancial statements.

5



Docusign Envelope ID: 4E9F6655-E8D9-47FA-BB61-9DE02698841D

COORDINATED TRANSPORTATION SOLUTIONS, INC.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

Program

General

and

Administrative

Total

Ivxpcnscs

Purchased iransportalion $  120.450,50! $ S  120,450,501

Salaries and wages 11,916,594 887,661 12,804,255

Payroll taxes 898,814 65,164 963,978

Employee benefits 860,490 74,120 934,610

Telephone expense 785,255 5,567 790.822

Occupancy 591,913 150,115 742,028

Computer maintenance 678,584 53,345 731,929

Depreciation and amortization 345,580 87,642 433,222

Incentive compensation 332,270 67,028 399,298

Legal lees 256,160 64,965 321,125

Insurance 238,362 60,451 298.813

Other professional services 156,344 35,465 191,809

nenefits 40313 Match 133,990 17,729 151,719

Recruiting expense 89,426 22,679 112,105

Unemployment expense 85,3.34 21,641 i 06,975
Computer equipment 63,317 16,058 79,375

Travel and entertainment 67,742 9,982 77,724

Temporary help 76,952 - 76,952

Computer consulting 53,996 13,694 67,690

Equipment rental 48,770 12,368 61,138

Dues and subscriptions 43,351 10,994 54,345

Interpreter services 53,442 - 53,442

Conference expense 41,720 10,580 52..300

Internet 35,563 9,019 44,582

Payroll service 32,336 8,200 40,536

Accounting fees 28,986 7,351 36,337

Marketing 24,973 6,334 31.307

Employee recognition 24,253 6,151 30,404

Postage 21,982 5,577 27,559

Properly taxes ^ 19,597 4,970 24,567

Interest expense 18,025 4,571 22,596

Meetings 17,206 4,364 21,570

Office supplies and expense 16,321 4,139 20.460

Facility maintenance 13,913 3,529 17,442

Staff training 1 1,287 2,863 14,150

Credit loss expense 13,933 - 13,933

Bank charges 8,445 2,142 10,587

Donations - 7,910 7,910

Performance bond fee 5,462 - 5,462

Gifts - 5,102 5,102

Other expens 3,191 809 4,000

Printing 2,218 563 2,781

Advertising 1,340 -
1,340

Lobbying expense . - -

ToUil S  1.38,567,938 $  1,770,842 S  140,338,780

See accompanying noics to the financial statements.
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COORDINATED TRANSPORTATION SOLUTIONS, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 AND 2023

2024 2023

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in net assets
Amounts to reconcile change in net assets

to net cash used in operating activities;

Depreciation and amortization

Credit loss expense

Changes in:

Cash - restricted

Accounts receivable, net

Other receivables

Prepaid expenses
.  Right of u.se assets

Deferred software cost

Restricted cash - deferred compensation
Accounts payable and accnied expenses
Deferred revenue

Other current liabilities

Deferred compensation payable
Leases payable

S  (898,148) S 1,453,001

407,098

13,933

(90,323)

(2,101,764)

(57.323)

105,831

273,880

42,146

(8,747)

791,525

1,993

(7,520)

8,747

(330,718)

433,222

13,933

37,899

(4,087,241)

15,046

(59,530)

(232,999)

(146,624)

(4,490)

2,271,472

1,917

(24,847)

4,490

213,108

Net cash used in operating activities (1,849,390) (111,643)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property and ciiuipnient (314,360) (331,442)
Net cash used in investing activities (314,360) (331,442)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayments on long-teim debt (30,595) (6,794)
Net cash used in financing activities (30,595) (6,794)

Net decrease in cash (2,194.345) (449,879)

Cash, beginning balance 3,615,166 S 4,065,045

Cash, ending balance $  1,420,821 S 3,615,166

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Amounts paid during the year for:
Interest $  27,835 S 2,408

Sec accompanying notes to the llnancial statements.
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COORDINATED TRANSPORTATION SOLUTIONS, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 AND 2023
%

THE ORGANIZATION AND DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

Coordinated Transporiation Solutions, Inc. (the Organization) was organized as a Connecticut not-for-profit 501(c)(3)
corporation in September 1997. The Organization was formed to enhance the mobility of transportation for
disadvantaged individuals and communities by offering a package of ser\'iccs designed to promote coordination of
service and partnerships between Government, not-for-profit agencies, and for-profit companies.

The Organization has maintained long-term relationships with both its business clients and transportation provider
network. This has been achieved through its expertise in transportation coordination services and planning, brokerage
operations, urban and rural transit operations, para-transit services, provider relations, trip utilization analysis, and
customer service. The Organization coordinates transportation services in various segments including Non-Emergency
Medical Transportation, Special Education Transportation, Veterans Transportation, Workers' Compensation
Transporiation, and ADA Para-transport. It currently delivers over one million trips annually to residents of Vermont,
New Hampshire, Maine, Connecticut, Maryland, Pennsylvania, New York, New Jersey, and Rhode Island. The
majority of the Organization's revenue was generated in New Hampshire, Massachusetts and Pennsylvania.

NOJE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Accounting
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared using the accrual basis of accounting and accordingly
reflect all significant receivables, payables, and other liabilities.

Basis of Presentation

Financial statement presentation follows the recommendations of the Financial Accounting Standards Board in its
Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 958-205, Nol-for-Frofil Lnfilies, Presenlotion of Financial Statemenis, the
Organization is required to report information regarding its financial position and activities according to three classes of
net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets and permanently restricted net assets.

Rcciassifications

Certain rcciassifications and adjustments have been made to the financial statements of the prior year in order to
conform to the current year presentation. These rcciassifications have no effect on previously reported net income or
total net assets.

Estimates

Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing financial statements. Those estimates and assumptions affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported
revenues and expenses. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Net Asset Categories
To ensure observance of limitations and restrictions placed on the use of resources available to the Organization, the
accounts of the Organization are maintained in the following net asset categories:

Ne! assets without donor restrictions - Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations but may be
. designated for specific purposes by the Board of Directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions - Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that may or will be met cither
by the actions of the Organization and/or the passage of time, or which may be perpetual. When a restriction is
satisfied, the associated amount is reclassified from net assets with donor rcsu-iclions to net assets without donor
restrictions and is reported in thc*statemcnt of activities as net assets released from restrictions. At September 30,
2024 and 2023, the Organization had no net assets with donor restrictions.
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COORDINATED TRANSPORTATION SOLUTIONS, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Organization considers all highly liquid instruments purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash
equivalents.

Accounts Receivable

Pursuant to an analysis of open receivables at September 30, 2024 and 2023, the Organization has established an
allowance for credit losses totaling S28,4I6 and $77,092, respectively.

Propcrt)'and Equipment
Property and equipment arc recorded at cost. Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method over the estimated
useful lives of the underlying asset. Those lives range from three to seven years.

Leases

Under ASU No. 2016-02 "Leases (Topic 842), leases are classified as operating or finance leases at the lease
commencement date. The Organization leases certain loeations and equipment. The Organization records leases on the
statements of financial position in the form of a lease liability for the present value of future minimum payments under
lease terms and right-of-iise asset equal to the lease liability adjusted for the items such as deferred or prepaid rent,
lease incentives, and any impairment of the right-of-use asset. The discount rate used in determining the lease liability
is based upon incremental borrowing rates the Organization could obtain for similar loans as of the date of
commencement or renewal. The Organization docs not record leases on the statements of financial position that are
classified as short tenn (less than one year).

At lease inception, the Organization determines the lease term by considering the minimum lease term and all optional
renewal periods that the Organization is reasonably certain to renew. The lease term is also used to calculate straight-
line lease expense. The depreciable life of leasehold improvements is limited by the estimated lease term, including
renewals if they are reasonably certain to be renewed. The Organization's leases do not contain residual value
guarantees or material variable lease payments.

Operating lease expense consists of a single lease cost allocated over the remaining lease term on a straight-line basis,
variable lease payments not included in the lease liability, and any impairment of the righl-of-use asset. Rent expense
and variable lease expense arc included in occupancy and equipment expense on the Organization's statements of
activities. The Organization has elected to treat property leases that include both lease and non-lease components as a
single component and account for it as a lease.

Expense Allocation
The costs of providing various programs and other activities have been reported on a funelional basis in the statements
of activities and in the statements of functional expenses. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the
programs and supporting services benefited.

Marketing and Advertising
The Organization uses marketing and advertising to promote its programs among the audience it serves. These costs arc
expensed as incurred. During the year ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, the Organization incurred marketing and
advertising costs of $27,985 and $32,647, respectively.

Income Tax Status

The Organization is exempt from federal income taxes pursuant to Section 501 (c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. In
addition, the Organization qualifies for the charitable contribution deduction under Section 170 (b)(1)(A) and has been
classified as an organization other than a private foundation imder Section 509(a)(2). The Stale of Connecticut also
recognizes the Organization's tax-exempt status, and therefore, there is no provision for income taxes in these financial
statements.
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COORDINATED TRANSPORTATION SOLUTIONS, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The Organization did not recognize any liability for uncertain lax positions as defined by accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

The Organization's tax return for the year ended September 30, 2024 is subject to examination by the IRS, generally
for three years after it has been filed.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
From time to lime, new accounting pronouncements arc issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
and arc adopted by the Organization as of the specified effective dates. Unless othcrAvisc discussed, such
pronouncements will not have a significant impact on its financial position, results of operations or cash flows, or do
not apply to its operations. The Organization did not adopt any material new FASB accounting standards during the
fiscal year ended September 30, 2024.

NOTE 2 - REVENUE RECOGNITION

The Organization has multiple revenue streams that arc accounted for as reciprocal exchange transactions, mainly
arranging transportation services to disadvantaged individuals and communities. This revenue generally relates to
contracts with customers for which the Organization's performance obligations arc to provide a specific service.
Revenue is recognized at the point in time that the Organization believes its performance obligations under the contract
have been materially satisfied and they are entitled to consideration.

The contractual relationships with customers may involve a third-party payor such as governments and commercial
insurance companies, and the transaction prices for the ser\'iccs arc provided are dependent upon the temis negotiated
with these third-party payers. ^

Transaction prices are based on standard charges for services provided to members, reduced by contractual adjustments
provided to third-party payors, or for certain commercial insurance contracts, are based on the number of eligible
members being covered by the commercial insurance company. Certain contracts with commercial insurance
companies provide for retroactive audit and review of claims. Settlements with third-party payors for retroactive
revenue adjustments due to audits, reviews and/or investigations are considered variable consideration and are included
in the determination of the estimated transaction price for providing scr\aces. Said settlements are recognized in the
periods in which the adjustments become knovs-n.

On the Organization's performance obligations related to contracts with a duration of less than one year, the
Organization has elected to apply the optional exemption provided by FASB ASC 606-10-50-14(a), Revenue from
Contracts with Customers, and, therefore, is not required to disclose the aggregate amount of transaction price allocated
to performance obligations that arc unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied at the end of a reporting period. There are no
incremental costs of obtaining a contract and no significant financing components. On tlie Organization's performance
obligations related to contracts with a duration of more than one year, the Organization recognizes revenue from the
satisfaction of the performance obligation in accordance with paragraph 606-10-55-18.

NOTE 3 - REVOLVING LINE OF CREDIT

The Organization has a $6,000,000 revolving line of credit available with a large commercial bank at September 30,
2024 at a variable interest rate of 7.75% and a $3,000,000 and $1,500,000 revolving line of credit at variable interest
rates of 8.50% and 7.25% at September 30, 2023, respectively. Bank advances on the credit line are payable on
demand. There were no amounts outstanding on the revolving line of credit at September 30, 2024 and 2023.
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COOEU>INATED TRANSPORTATION SOLUTIONS, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 4 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Organization is involved in various claims and legal actions arising in the ordinary course of business.
Management is of the opinion that the ultimate outcome of these matters would not have a material adverse impact on
the financial position of the Organization, its results of operations or cash flows.

NOTE 5-LEASES

Lessee Arrangements •
The Organization entered into an operating lease for 13,177 square feet of ofTice space in Trumbull, Connecticut during
August 2015. On April 1, 2017, the Organization increased the square footage being leased by approximately 3,100
square feel. The amended lease calls for monthly base rent pa>Tncnts that increase at certain intervals during the lease
term, which term expires in November 2029. In addition to the base rent payments, the Organization is responsible for
their proportionate share of the common allocable expenses of operating the facility.

In December 2019, the Organization entered into an operating lease for 13,757 square feet of office space in Shelton,
Connecticut. The lease calls for rental payments beginning on February I, 2020 that increase annually during the lease
lenn which ends on January 31, 2030.

Right of use assets and lease liabilities and the associated financial statement presentation are as follows:

Statement of Financial Position Presentation:

September 30,

2024 2023

Right ofiisc assets:

Operating leases - other assets

Lease liabilities - cuiTCiit liabilities

long-tenn liabilities

Total lease liabilities

Lease Expense Presentation:

Operating lease cost:

Right of use asset amortization

Interest expense

Total lease cost

$  2,089,945 $  2,363,825

$  .375,146 $  330,719

1,960,741 ^335,886

$  2,335,887' $  2,666,605

September 30,

2024 2023

$  273.881 S  254,471

126,547 121,649

S  400,428 S  376.120

The Organization also has operating leases for various small office equipment which are not practical to be recognized
on lease assets and lease liabilities. Management believes this docs not have a material impact on the financial position
of the Organization, its results of operations or cash flows.

NOTE 6 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Organization to concentration of credit risk consist principally of cash
and accounts receivable. The Organization's cash balances within each individual banh are insured by the Federal
Depositary Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000, and one cash sweep account received extended FDIC's fully
insurance coverage on excess balances at September 30, 2024. The Organization's concentration of credit risk with
respect to the accounts receivable is limited due to the large number of customers and their dispersion across
geographic areas. At September 30, 2024 and 2023 the Organization had appro.ximalely $1,648,000 and $2,700,000 of
cash in excess of insurance coverage on deposits. '

II
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COORDINATED TRANSPORTATION SOLUTIONS, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM DEBT

At September 30,2024 and 2023, long-term debt ednsisted of the following:

2024 2023

SBA $500,000 loan at 2.75%: was dated 5/1/20; .

interest is accrued ninthly, however no payments are
due until 10/6/2022. 'nicreaOer, ninthly payments of

$3,662 forintercsl only are due until 10/6/2023.
then nwnthly payments of principal and interest

are due until 5/1/2035. $ 468,778 S ,499,373

SBA $150,000 loan at 2.75%; was dated 8/1/20;

interest is accrued monthly, however no payments arc

due until 1/1/2023. fhcreafler, monthly payments of

$641 for interest only arc due until 9/1/2025, then

monthly payments ofprincipal and interest
are due until 8/1/2035.

Total

150,000 150,000

$  618,778 S 649,373

lOue within one year
Due in nx)rc than one year

$  34,251 S 30,595

584,527 618,778

$  618,778 $ 649,373

Future minimum payments under these notes are as follows:

Year ended September 30,

2025 $ 34,251

2026 35,986

2027 36.988

2028 38,018

2029 38,969

Thereafter 434,566

618,778

NOTE 8-RETIREMENT PLANS

The Organization authorized a deferred compensation program pursuant to section 457 of the Internal Revenue Code.
Under the plan, select employees can contribute a portion of their compensation to the plan. Amounts held in the
account arc restricted for future benefit payrncnts btit arc subject to creditor risk. At September 30, 2024 and 2023 there
was $39,500 and $30,753 in the account which had unrealized gain/(loss) of $8,747 and $4,490 respectively, during the
years.

The Organization also established a retirement plan in accordance with section 403(b) of the Internal Revenue Code.
All employees are eligible to participate in elective salary deferrals upon becoming employed. However, employees
must be of a minimum age of twenty-one to be eligible to receive employer matching contributions. During the years
ended September 30, 2024 and 2023, the Organization made matching contributions of $195,269 and $151,719,
respectively.
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COORDINATED TRANSPORTATION SOLUTIONS, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 AND 2023
NOTE 9 - CONCENTRATIONS

During the years ended September 30, 2024 and 2023 approximately 64% and 63%, respectively, of the Organization's
total transportation brokerage revenue was related to two contracts.

NOTE 10 - LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABLE FOR GENERAL EXPENDITURE

The following reflects the Organization's financial assets as of September 30, 2024 and 2023, reduced by amounts not
available for general use within one year because of contractual or donor-imposed restrictions:

2024 2023

Financial assets:

Cash and cash equivalents S  1,420,821 S  .3.615,166

Accounts rcccK'ablc, net 14,825,106 12,737,275

Other receivables 58,612 1,289

Restricted cash - unenploynirnt trust 116,992 26,669

Restricted cash - deferred coiipcnsalioii 39,500 30,753

Financial assets, at year-end 16,461.031 16,411,152

Ij:ss: those unavailable for general c:q)cnditut\: within one year

Restricted cash - unenploynicnt trust (116,992) (26,669)

Restricted cosh - deferred condensation (39,500) (30,753)

(156,492) (57,422)

Financial assets avaDable for general expenditure wiihm one year S  16,304,539 $  16,353,730

NOTE 11 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has evaluated subsequent events through January 28, 2025, the date the financial statements were
available to be issued.

13
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CTS Board Members Board Withdrawal

1 Reginald Knovvlton Member

2 Stephen Martin Treasurer

3 Beverly Ward Member

4 Julia Feldman Vice Chairperson

5 Pam Green Chairperson

6 Lincoln Liburd Secretary

7 Henry Pittman Member

8 Miguel Mclnnis Member
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Ines Rodriguez

Professional Summary

Service-oriented customer services representative with 7 + year back ground in medical health plan and

fast food resturant industry. Core competencies include attention to communication, building

collaborative relationships and interpersonal awareness as well as excellent communication and time

management skills. Handles tasks with accuracy and efficiency.

Skills

•Bilingual

•Customer and Personal Services

•Active Listening

•Complex Problem Solving

Work History

•Coordination

•Judgment and Decision Making

•Active Learning

•Telecommunications

General Manager, 12/1999 to 06/2007

Mcdonalds-Milford, CT

Mcdonald's is responsible to provide fast, accurate and friendly services to clients.

•Evaluate the performance of vendors, contract employees, or other service providers to ensure qualit)'

and cost-efficiency.

•Explain goals, policies, or procedures to staff members.

•Plan and implement sales promotions or other marketing strategies and activities for operations.

•Identify skill development needs for staff. •Interview and hire new employees.

Bartender, 07/2006 to 09/2012

Club Vandome - New Haven, CT

Club Vandome constantly strive to bring new and exciting promotions for our customers.

•Collect money for drinks served.

•Check identification of customers to verify age requirements for purchase of alcohol.

•Clean glasses, utensils, and bar equipment.

•Balance cash receipts.

• Attempt to limit problems and liability related to customers' excessive drinking by taking steps such as

persuading customers to stop drinking, or ordering taxis or other transportation for intoxicated patrons.
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•brock Dar vvitn Deer, wine, liquor, and related supplies such as ice, glassware, napkins, or straws.

Customer Service Representative, 11/2010 to Current

Community Health Network OF Ct - WalJingford, CT

Our cofnpany is contract by the Department of Social Services to managed the benefits for the state of Ct

Medicaid. We are responsible of reviewing insurance policies to Medicaid clients and medical

providers.

•Review insurance policy to determine coverage.

•Take inbound and make outbound calls to clients.

•Assist with finding medical provider and also provider appointment assistant.

Customer Service Representative, 09/2013 to Current

Coordinated Transportation Solutions -Trumbull, CT

Our company arrange non emergency medical transportation for Medicaid and Medicare recepients. We

are responsible to arrange medical transportation to and from doctors appointments.

Education

High School Diploma: 2003

New Haven Adult Ed - New Haven Ct
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CUSTOMER SERVICEPROFESSICNAL u  I' iL r ■r^ X
Ail

Profile Mote than 12 years of excellent customer service for ATScT. I als«
supervised there at AT&T for other operators on troubled calls.
Answering national calls and international calk in a timely and
pro fessbnal manner in order to cut costs of lengthy calls.
Professionally speak to customers in resolving issues on their lasi
411 experience.I was akounion steward there at AT&T.I
garnered many awards and gift cards for every aspect of
customer service.I also did coUectbns forCingular wireless
before AT&Ttake-over. Experience din data-entry and
correctbns on accounts. Was authorized to disconnect and
connect calk for non-payment.

Synopsis of Achievements Received more than thirty awards for excellence and many gift
cards for overhe ads that were less than three mistake s on a
thirty call ratio. Group leader to other operators that were havin
difficultbs maintaining their calk in a timely rhanner.
Published Author. On February 13, 2013,1 published my first nov(
Tided: The Remcarnation of Ronald.I am currently workbg on
the sequeland my memoir.

Employment AT&T Hamden, CT 1999-20a
Customer Service Representative
• AT&Ttwelve and a half years of quality assurance

with the same company. EEs handled more than 3
million calk in my lifetime there. Dd 0 operator whbh
is localand 00 operator whbh is international.
Connecting customers locally, narionalfy,and
internadonalfy.

Bic Corporation, Milford, CT
During my seventeen years at Bic Corporation,
my requirements there were to operate and
maintain two assembly machines that created the
world renowned Bic Lighters and Pens.

1976-195

Education 15 credits from fbusatonic Community College,
Jw u\c ^ tj-A-
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MARISEliA GARICA- RIVERA

Professional Summary

Motivated customer service specialist with over 15 years retail experience in a fast-paced,

team-based environment.

Skills

• Customer-oriented • Quick learner

• - Organized multi-tasker • Fluent in Spanish

• Good with Numbers and math •. Fast and efficient service worker

WORK HISTORY

^  Teachers Aide

ST,Anns Academy-521 Brewster street

• Communicated regularly with parents about daily activities and behaviors.

• Promoted good behavior by using the positive reinforcement method.

• Supported multiple classroom teachers in implementing a developraentally

appropriate curriculum for a group of many preschoolers.

■  Food Preparation Specialist

Madison School - 376 Wayne Street

Prepared Nutritional supplements for children.

Assisted Monitoring Children Behavior while.in the lunch room.

.  .• ...' Pharmacy Technician

Walgreens Pharmacy ~ 2225 Main street

• Properly filled and dispensed an average of 450 prescriptions per day.

• Effectively resolved insurance rejections and other billing issues.

• Managed approximately 600 dollars in cash and credit card sales daily.

• Assisted other pharmacy staff with drug inventory, purchasing, and receiving.

• Crcetcd customers entering the store to ascertain what each customer wanted or

needed.

'• Cashier/ Customer service

Cashier/Scrvcr

jyunkin Doughnuts - Multiple Locations
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• Verified that prepared food met all standards for quality and quantity.

-• Consistently provided friendly guest service and heartfelt hospitality.

• Operated the drive-through window and sales register quickly and efficiently.

Education

Associate of Arts: Early Childhood Development

Housatonic Community College - 900 Lafayette Blvd. Bridgeport, CT.

High School Diploma:

Central High School Adult Education -1 Lincoln Blvd. Bridgeport, CT
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FE
ledical Administrative Assistant Professional

Customer Service

CAREER SUMMARY

A recently certified Medical Administrative Assistant and a detail-driven, customer service professional with years of
experience. Knowledgeable with medical terminology, commercial Insurance, Medicaid/Medicare. and basic undersianding ol
medical billing and coding with lCD-10, ICD-9, CPT-4. U804. and HCPS. Technical expertise includes reservation scheduling
interface, menu user interface, administrative support, financial reconciliation, and support of large-scale events. Looking for
opportunity to assist in medical office environment by supporting and maintaining business continuity.

EDUCATION PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Sateway Community College -

Viedical Administrative Assistant

Certificate Program

>an Diego High School - High
School Diploma

EXPERTISE

vlicrosoft Office: Outlook. Word, Excel,

'owerPoinL Teams

Chrome .

loom, Webex

^dobe Photoshop/Acrobat
fwitter, Pacebpok, Instagram

.inkedin

PROFESSIONAL

DEVELOPMENT

•  Certified Medical

Administrative Assistant by the

National Health Association

•  Computer Electronic Specialist

A+ Certified

•  Certified Typing Certificate

SERVER/BARTENDER 2017-2020

Union League Cafe/ New Haven, CT

•  Maintained financial reconciliation, provide customer service and guest hospitality

•  Prepared special event, large paily reservations that included detail planning
•  Responsible for training and supervising new hires

SERVER/BARTENDER 2016

Dev's on Bank / New London, CT

•  Prepared special events, large party reservation and guest hospitality

•  Collaborated with department programs Managers

f  Maintained financial reconciliation

PASTRY CHEF/SERVER/BARTENDER/HOST 2DM-2016

Liv's Oyster Bar / Old Saybrook, CT

•  Provided customer service and guest hospitality

•  Coordinated 100+ guest reservations with server schedules per day

•  Responsible for executing season dessert menus that included food ingredient
analysis and allergens

EVF.NT COORDINATOR/TEACHING ASSISTANT 2013-2014

Stay and Play / Old Saybrook, CT

•  Responsible for coordination of large-scale events and after school activities

•  Supported daily office operations with data entry, phone etiquette, analysis of
inventory and maintaining supply chain

•  Promoted communications through social media
•  Responsible for new hire onboarding training

•  Maintained financial reconciliation

STAGE MANAGER/PRODUCTION ASSISTANT 2012-2014

Madhalter's Theater Company / Old Saybrook, CT

•  Supervised and managed backstage cast that included props, set changes,

costume changes, and stage production

•  Collaborated with department programs Managers

•  Maintained financial budget and documentation
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Asra Garner

' P ro f es s 10 n a I s u mhri a ry.
Reliable, patient focused nursing professional with 3+ year track record of providing excellent
patient carc and empathelic communication. Compassionate and technically skilled in attending toj-

Skills
•  -—^ • •

•  Spanish Speaking • Microsoft Office •  Record Keeping ,
•  Medical Terminology •  Empathetic Care ®  Vital Signs & Patient Monit
•  Attention to Detail •  'Patient Care & Safety •  Organization

Experience
Certified Nursing Assistant

Emerest Homecare- Bridgeport, CT

09/2021-11/2021

•  Maintained accurate, comprehensive written documentation of patient care performed, as
vyell as patient condition and vital signs to report to health care providers.

•  Changed bed linens, washed, and ironed laundry, provided light housekeeping, or assisted
with personal care.

•  Assisted the patient with movement around the home and to and from doctor

appointments.

Certified Nursing Assispnt
Caregivers Home Solutions • Stratford, CT

10/2017-07/2020

•  Preserve patient dignity and minimize discomfort while carrying out duties such as
bedpan changes, diapering, emptying drainage bags and bathing.

•  Assist patients with eating, dressing, bathing, and other activities of daily living
•  Assisted In the onboarding of new employees and managed conflict between patient

families and coworkers.

Direct Support Professional

Kencrest Services • Stratford, CT"

05/2018-02/2020
• Worked to improve, enrich, and respect the lives of individuals with developmental,

physical, and mental disabilities

•  Assisted with day-by-day operations of the residence in accordance with regulatory
requirements, agency policy and quality program standards.

•  Assisted residents with personal living and daily care activities In their home and
community and provided direct supervision to the individuals.

Education

Certified Nursing Assistant Certification
Central High School Adult Education • Bridgeport, CT Training Direct- Bridgeport CT
2009 2017
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Sara O'Doughcrty

Qualifications Summary: Customer oriented professional with supervisory and/or Team
Leader experience. Strong administrative and organizational skills to plan, manage, and
execute day-to-day office operations. Experience in payroll preparation, billing, and
knowledge of DOT regulations. Demonstrated ability to listen, communicate (written and
verbal) with all levels of staff, vendors, and clients. Good decision-making skills and the
ability to function well under stress while working in a fast-paced environment.

Education:

Granite State Cbllege-Cohcord. NH

June 2011

Bachelor's Degree - Business Management

• GPA3.69

Employment:

'Granite State Iridepcndcht Living-Gbncord. NH August 2015 - Present
Transportation Manaeer

•  Coordinate the transportation needs of GSIL consumer, broker clients as
well as those within the public seeking (mainly) wheelchair accessible
transportation.

•  Ensure that several company, funding agencies and governmental reports
(that document the variety of services we provide each month) are
generated.

• Oversee the maintenance of company vehicles to ensure the highest level
of safety and efficiency.

• Oversee and actively participate as a State Certified School Bus Driver
Trainer the training of all drivers including those with a school bus
certificate

o Maintain all driver qualification files
•  Participate in: NH Transportation Assistance Prognun, NH State

Coordinating Council for Community Transportation & Region 3-NHRCC

Student Transportation of America - Bradfbrd. NH July 2013 ~ March 2015
,.Trahiine Supervisor

State Certified Driver/ School Bus Driver Trainer
•  Prepare & maintain driver/monitor files of staff of 60+ including all

documents for their required background checks & clearances, school bus,
first aid & CPR certifications, physicals & licensing for state & company
records
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Prepare & submit all weekly, monthly & annual reports of this training to
pupil transportation with the state of NH as well as direct report supervisor
with company

School Bus Driver - STA Oct. 2010-March 2015

•  Provide safe, reliable transportation to school age children to & from school
'• Prepare daily & weekly reports & paperwork necessary to document this task

such as pre/post trip reports, milage logs & student counts

Krvstal's Restaurant - Aiken, SC July 2008 - July 2009
Shift Mdnaeer

• Assisted General Mgr with the shift operations

•  Supervised crew of between 5-10 during the breakfast and lunch shifts
> Assigned specific tasks during shifts to optimize customer service. At end of

the shift, I counted the drawers for the shift and prepared the deposits
•  Processed shift inventory: ordered supplies based on need

Laidlaw Education Services-r Peterbbrough. NH June 2000 - April 2007

Branch Mahdeer

•  Successfully coordinated the day-to-day operations for the safe transportation
of roughly 10,000 students for 4 separate school districts simultaneously

• This included assigning bus routes to drivers, reviewing the daily maintenance
schedule to ensure that there are plenty of safe buses for each run, and help
with training new and veteran drivers to keep in compliance witli DOT
standards.

Processed weekly payroll for branch staff
•  Processed branch invoices for billing
•  Successfully maintained a monthly budget
• Oversaw maintenance of over 1 GO staff and vehicle files for DOT and

company criteria
•  Processed the necessary documentation of branch operations for company,

including daily, weekly, monthly and annual reports
• Directed the recruitment of over 100 branch positions
•  Trained, supervised and evaluated staff, coached improvements; resulted in

multilateral staff achievement of work objectives
•  Successfully refined and implemented new projects
• Maintained a very high level of customer satisfaction

Laidlaw Education Services (other position's^

Driver Trainer — State Certified March 1997 - Present



Docusign Envelope ID; 4E9F6655-E8D947FA-BB61-9DE02698e41D

School Bus Driver Nov. 1996 - March 1997

Relevant Experience & Accomplishments:

Organized church fundraiser -
8 separate venues featuring different performances

Oirl Scout Troop Leader
Little League Softball Coach
Honored as Branch Manager of the year for 2005 by Company District
Managers

Dean's list with Granite State College
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Keith Downing

Work Experience

Member Services, New York, NY 2019-2020
HADAisSAH
September 2020 to Febnjai7 2021

Served customers by providing product arxl service Information and resolving product and service
problems. Maintains customer records by updating account information. Contributes to team effort by
acconiplishing related results as needed. Respond to members' requests, problems, concerns and/or
direct them to the proper person for specific Information, assistance, and problem resolution.

Membership Assistant
New York State Society of Certified Public Accountants

2018 to . 2019

Provided member services by take calls or greet members In-person to respond to their needs and
concern. Offering high-quality custorher service,, listening to members' requests and working to find
the appropriate solution, providing ongoing education and information to members h regards to the
organization's benefits, policies and procedures. They must be aware of all of the organization's services

and processes to provide accurate information.

Proxy Solicitor
Disclosed Fidelity Board - New York. NY

April 2014 to September 2017

D.F. King Tel Services - Proxy Solicitor - New York, NY 2014-2017

Offered daily proxy client support to Fidelity Investment shareholders.

Answ/ered questions and offered information on the-upcoming shareholders meeting.

Disclosed Fidelity Board of Trustee proposal's to shareholders and collected verbal votes.

Duties included call disposition between 200 -350 outbound call dally.

Case Manager
Lutheran Sodal Services of New York - New York, NY

2012 to 2013

Held meetings with a sensitive population assisting with enrollment for NYC benefits and entitlements.

•Conducted up to 50 individual meetings daily, collecting and updating data of HIPPA sensitive Information

of caseload clients. Regularly updated Psycho Socials and Medical logs for transitional home tenants.
Provided community resources and counseling/social work practices vyilh high risk populations. Provided
holistic and comprehensive case management services to all clients Including: Intake assessment, benefit
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assessment, goal setting, long-term case plan development, vveekly case plan development, progress
monitoring, individual money management, tenant education, advocacy and referrals.

College Advisor
Harlem Children's Zone - New York, NY

2009 to 2011

Defined and developed realistic educational career plans. Monitored the Progress toward educational/
career goals for college age students. Daily meetings with Individual students at least once or twice

each semester to review the progress toward completing the proposed academic program and to discuss

grades and other performance indicators. Daily review caseload of 40-60 students providing academic
advisement. Updated an average of 70 - 80 case notes per week to meet deadlines. Organized and lead
college programs geared toward academic improvement. Developed and conducted workshops on public
speaking and vocational interviewing.

Education
«

BFA

S.U.N.Y. Purchase College

2004

Skills

• Case Management

• Intake Experience

• Individual/ Group Counseling

• Motivational Interviewing

• Crisis Intervention

• Addiction Counseling

• Social Work

• Group Therapy

• Cognitive Behavioral Therapy

• Medical Records

• Program Development . ̂
• Curriculum Development

• Crisis Management

• Applied Behavior Analysis

• Child & Family Counseling
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Mana Moria

Objective

Analytical and precise individual looking for a position as a Customcr Scrvicc Representative.

Skills & Abilities

Leadership

Responsible

Organized

Electronic Records

Assignment of proper diagnostic codes

Clinical review of records

Case Management

HIPAA Compliance

Medical Terminology

Customer Service Delivery

.Experience

Prior Authorization and Record Request Specialist! Performance Physical Therapy! Westport,
CT| 05/2016-06/2017

Customer Service

Handles the Verification for fnsurance Benefits for Customers

Regularly Call Insurance to Follow up
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Coniacts Customer when Needing to Obtain information

Import Data into Management System

Moke Copies and Scans of Documents and File Paper Work

Task as Assigned

Housekeeper! Temco Service IndusLries| Slratford, CT| 08/2010-06/2013

Maintain clean and sanitized environment

Customer Service

Task as Assigned

_  Pharmacy Technician! Slop & Shop] Starnfnrd, CT| 1.1/2007-12/2008

Customer ScrN'icc

Filling Prescriptions

Handling ail Monetary Transactions

Inventory Shipping and Receiving

Some Clerical Duties

Task as Assigned

Sales Associate! The Children's Placej Stamford, CT! 05/2006-08/2007

Customer Service

Maintain clean and safe environment

Handling ail monetary transactions

Task as Assigned

Education

Training Direct] Bridgeport, Ctj Certified Medical Biller& Coder] March 2015

Proficient In ICD9, CPT, HCPCS Coding, as well as HIPAA Compliance

Proficient Medical Terminology and Anatorriy

Claims Processing (EDI/Manual Transmission). Precertification's

Accounts Receivable/Payable using Practice Manager (Mcdi iSOFT)

• Knowledgeable regarding Private, Medicare, Medicaid, Tricarc, Workers Compensation insurance policies
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Microsoft office suite 2013

Housatonic Community College| Bridgeport, CT| General Studies | 2014



Docusign Envelope ID: 4E9F6655-E8D9-47FA-BB61-9DE02698841D

Elaine Trizulino

TEAM LEADER - OPERATIONS
•  A highly effective Olent Executive of Account Management / Subject Matter Expert leading and assisting with Broker Client

Implementations on several multi-million-dollar accounts, workitfa to recoub compariv bw^ funds and save the orQanlzation
funds during aieht desk' audits.-

•  Proven team leader working well under pressure, pnorltidng workflow dealing with time sensitive, HIPAA and PHI compliant
infonnation. Farriiliarih/ with the DQH PNDS Submission Portal for edlHna and testing Transoortatjon P'rdvider'files.

•  Solid background in new business development from new and existing clients; takes initiative demonstrating the following
outstanding skills: arwiytical,. organizational, relationship building, client management, proactive, problem-solving, verbal, and
written communication skills.

AREAS OF EXPERTISE

•  Leadership/Management/Project Management • Implementations/De-Implementations
•  Vendor Management/Build Solid Qient Relationships • Recouping Funds / Cost Savings
•  Compliance/Risk/Audlts/Broker Qient Set Up • Prioritlzing/Multltasking/Detall-Oriented/Organized
•  Subject Matter Expert/Qlent Retention/Completed • Production/Sourcing

48hr DISC Assessment Course

WORK EXPERIENCE

'Modivcare f forineiiv L6disb'Ca^e^ 8/2015 - Present
Qient Executive, Account Management (MCO/MLTC) Operations
(Remote)

•  Qient Services Account Manager effectively managing 22 MCO/MLTC books of business worth over $150mll.

•  Successfully worked to save the organization $100k In funds at the ciose of a full desk audit.

•  Introducing new initiatives to Oients to improve business that would benefit both the Client and the company; Cost savinos
for brgarilzatjon Include' successfully working with clients to migrate call taking to of^hore locations, alleviating volume In
house, thus exceeding contractual metrics.

•  Partner with the Operations teams to address and resolve service and/or performance issues; proactively notifies client of root
cause and action plan for resolution.

•  Present findings and opportunities for improvement and propose solutions to senior management.

•  Develop, implement, and provide oversight of operations and corporate policies and procedures to comply with contractual
requirements.

•  Leading Implementations of new Qients as well as for expanding business with existing Clients with the focus on achieving
target completion dates. Leader of De-Implementing books of business no longer in service.

•  Collaborate with the National Sales and Corporate Teams building and developing reporting templates, editing, redlining, and
approving documents, such as contract's, statements of work, and structured Amendments that includes but is not limited to
incurring cost implications, benefit changes or adding new lines of business. Leading and aiding In the completion of all year-
end changes with all Qients.

•  Analyze and collect business Information using various tools (proprietary software: Excel, Salesforce, WebEx/Teams, SFTP
sites, CItrIx, Qlik Sense, Tableau) to share with underwriting and upper management, as well as clients.

•  Oversee client-supporting deliverables and maintain accountability of the supporting departments. Including Legal,
Compliance, Underwriting, Rnance, QA, Telecom, Call Centers, and Information Technology Departments.

•  Serve as a client/account liaison gathering Information and resolving Issues, leading conference calls and quarterly client
meetings, attending Client member events and Sales Rep Expos serving as the company Ambassador, as well as assisting in
preparing and reviewing monthly scorecard Client reports, quarterly Power Point presentations via Teams, and
company/employee desk audits.

[jirhlar Corboration/Gtobal Brands Gfbub/New York; NY
Team Leader/Production/ Account Manager 7/2010 - 3/2015
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•  Managed the operations of 6 Private Label Footwear accounts worth over $35mll.
•  Successfullv abolished ̂ SOk In damaged shtpnTent'ftnes imposed on the company,
•  Managed arid reviewed all Production Schedules, T8iA Calendars and commerciallzatlcn schedules; Transmlttal of MSS's and

ISI's'to the overseas office preceding aeating GnN#'s In Excel; as well as obtaining UPC codes via SAP; Navigated GT'
Nexus, Land's Ends' Vendor Net Website, GH Bass' GOL/FedEx system on a daily basis. Coordinated and reviewed
weekly vessel and WIP reports and generated and distributed sales reports from BPS website.

•  Responsible for the dally workflow by prioritizing and multitasking, handling all issues with the customer and our offices in
China via direct correspondence, In regard to order receipt, factory space and delivery confirmation.

•  Verified compliance to US Customs specifications as they relate to inner and outer carton markings and C.0.0. designation
requirements. Communicated all Information related to International vessel bookings to the factory and the customer. Also
functioned as subject matter expert with regards to new factory set up In China, including obtaining General Conformity
Certificates and Certincate of Insurance.

•  Assisted In ensuring pricing Is provided for order projections in a timely manner, administered pridng and T&A calendar In
LE's IPLM system.

•  Monitored monthly booking/shlpplng reports for senior management to ensure that monthly goals were satisfied.

•  Functioned as primary liaison for issues concerning the customer and the factory, including managing documentation flow to
ensure factory receives payment from customer's advising bank, processing all chargeback's and claims from the customer to
the factory, as well as Issuing liability claims to the customer from the factory.

•  Performed quality control on productton lots, confirmation samples and TOP samples to ensure they met production
standards.

•  Trained data entry associates on daily operating procedures of accounts; Assisted In training other members of the Private
Label Department on accounts previously held, including Sofia Vegara for Kmart, Cabela's, FootSmart/Benchmark;-Meijer's,
Sears Men's, Shoe Show, The Walking Company, and Zappos.

Temp Work - Account Manager
Duties available upon request •

BCNY Iritcniatio'nal. mcksvtlle; LI - Temp Work 4/2010 • 6/2010

Astucci NY Ooticai f^se. LIC. NY - Temp Work 1/2010 - 4/2010

Steve Madden. Wobdside; NY 1/2007-2/2009
Customer Accburit Executivie / Iriterriational Logistics Cobrdlnatqr

•  Account Executive for large retailers, such as Sears, Marshalls, Payless, Fred Meyer, Ross, Shoe Show, etc.; also assisting with
Target & Kohl's accounts.

•  Responsible for all aspects of sales order llfecycle, including, but not limited to: creating look books, the shipment of style-
outs, confirmation samples, advertising samples, fit samples and production samples.

•  Utilize IBM's AS400 Wholesale System to record customer orders, international factory order quotes, and generate Pro Forma
invoices as the basis of all subsequently necessary Letters of Credit as well as managing documentation flow to ensure factory
receives payment from customer's advising bank via SWIFT money transfer.

Garden Bay Manor Condbrnthlum. Astoria. NY 2/2003-12/2006
Administrative Assistant:

•  Direct report to the manager and assisted with daily operations, which consisted of answering heavy phones,
being in contact with all condo owners/renters to expedite their repairs/complaints In a timely fashion.

•  Reviewed bids from contractors for various repairs and necessary maintenance throughout the complex's
common areas; Typing of all correspondence, letters and quotes.

•  Responsible for the payroll to a large staff, as well as accounts receivable/payable through QuickBooks 2005 from
various contractors and businesses.

SKILLS

Microsoft Word, Excel, PowerPoint and Outlook 2007, 2008, 2010, 2016, SalesForce Classic & Lightening, WebEx,
Teams, Zoom, Citrix, Qlik Sense, Dropbox, Tableau, Smartsheet, and Various Internal Systems (Homegrown: LCAD,
Portals: FSW, CSW, MSW), SAP, QuickBooks 2005, AS400 Wholesale System, Bluechenry, Peachtree.
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Jennifer Garcia

Work Experience

Customer Service Representative

Penske Automotive Group - Fairfield, CT

September 2017 to February 2022

Proficient in Administrative Assisting for the office manager

Answer incoming calls, emails and any questions or concerns for customers.

Handled hundreds of calls daily, with duties including signing up new customers, retrieving customer
data, presenting relevant product information, and cancelling services

Pulling VMl's to check for recalls/campaigns.
Scheduling appointments through Dealer Socket.

Assisting Service advisors.
Following up with customers after service visits to ensure great customer satisfaction was met.

Work from home Experience.

Chat Support Experience.

Able to manage a high volume of leads.

Administrative Assistant

F and F Electrical Corp. - Bronx, NY

January 2015 to September 2017

• Managing office

• Customer service

• Creating invoices

• Handling filing and record keeping

• Answering phone and transferring to the correct technician

• Appointment setting

• Maintaining cleanliness of office

Education

High school diploma

Skills

Clear Communication

Attentiveness

Time Management

Ability to use Positive Language

Spanish speaking

Front Desk

Microsoft Office

Customer Ser\'ice
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Multilingual

Business Development

Cold Calling

CRM Software • Customer support

Assessments

Receptionist — Highly Proficient

December 2019

Using basic scheduling, attention to detail, and organizational skills in an office setting. Full
results: Highly Proficient

Customer Service — Proficient

July 2020

Identifying and resolving common customer issues
Full results: Proficient

Indeed Assessnnents provides skills tests that arc not indicative of a license or certification, or continued
development in any professionaf field.

Additional Information

Bilingual Spanish
Microsoft Word

Microsoft Office

Customer Ser\'ice
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Jenna Mcqualg V VU' -k '

t\T,

Professional Summary

Experienced in worVing as a Cashier and Customer Service fields for 5 years. Txpcrtly displays

responsibility and trustworthiness while uphofding company policy.' Excels in time management and

ensuring that deadlines are met. Ability ru multitask in a fast-paced environment with a high degree of

accuracy. Highly motivated team player dedicated to customei satisfaction. Ability to work

independently with little supefvi.sion.

Professional History

Walmart; Milford, CT 12/2013-05/2018

Coshler/Dept Manager of Pick Up Today

Greeted customers on the sales floor and once they entered the cash out lanes.

Processed monetary, gift cards, debit and credit cards transactions successfully.

Answered customer's questions and/or concerns about products.

<> Promoted to Department Manager of Pick Up Today in 2015.

•> Checked and read reports for the department, checked and called customers regarding their

comments and concerns for Pick Up.

❖ Checked with FedEx and UPS In receiving departments.

❖ Made sure orders were corresponding to bar codes for each department for a seamless check

out.

^ Continuously checked with online Pick Up orders, wont out to sales floor to select necessary

items and prepared for pick up.

❖ Covered other departments as needed.

Stop & Shop; Stratford, CT 01/2007-01/2010

Cashier

•> Checked out customers as they entered the fane and bagged items appropriately.

<* Handled cash and credit card transactions. '

^ During overnight shifts, processed returns and cleaned cash registers.

<• Assisted customers and inuciitored Self-Checkout when assigned.

Education

High School Diploma

CenemI Course

Retail end Customer Service Certlfcote

Stratford High School

Housatonic Community College

Goodwill of Weiterrr & Northern

Stratford, CT

Bridgeport, CT

Bridgeport, CT
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SHARON MELENDEZ

HigNy mottvat«d emploype looking io giow •AHin a companY, where I can ulili/e my extensive

customer service experience. BilinBual; English and Spanish speaking, proficient in reading and
writing in both languages. Eager to learn new skills. Very dependable, reliable, minimal
supervision required.

EXPERIENCE

NOV 2016-DEC 2017

CASHIER TOM STURGIS RREHELS .READING PA

•  Monicor sales llooi.*

Identify customers and pfovlde assistance.

•  Operated cash rogistcts. Cash, credit catfls and chprks

•  P.esiotVt^duietchandise,,

IUNE2014-NOV 2016

FRONT DESK GEORGE DENTAl OH ICE .

•  Managed alt front desk task

. ♦ Operated rnulii line telephones and 0'switchboards

•  Route calls to appropriate personnel

•  Maintain patient records, verified insurance, updating iccords.

EDUCATION

2013-2014

MEDICAL BILUN AND COOING BRANOFROD HALL INSTITUTE

20J3'20ia

2018

Deisartirieni of Iduc'iiinn Ponce PR

CilD

SKILLS

•  OependaPlf/Reliatrk- • Mirtlmal Supervision

• Miiiti laskc • Bilingual CiiRiish/Spanish

«  Customer Service OnenicO
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Starshanna Clark

Work Experience

Manager
J Bagels & Cafe - Trumbull. CT
September 2018 to Present

• Overseeing daily company operation

• Perp Food

• food service

• Barista

• Answer calls and questions needed

• Cook food

• Call service

• Shift Scheduler

• Bank runs

• Money deposit

• Inventory

Customer Service representative/Receptlonlst/swItchboard
Connecticut post - Bridgeport. CT

November 2018 to januai^ 2021

Helped customers with selections of desired newspaper subscriptions

Accurately processed cash, credit and debit cards transactions
Handled customer credit card Issues, delivery "requests

Assisted department by processing various promotional, efforts

Respond to patient questions and or concerns according to clinic Policies.

Answering Telephones.

Appointment Management; Scheduling, Confirming and Maintaining Appointment book. Follow up on no
shows/cancellation of Appointments.

Communicate effectively, both orally and in writing.

Interacts at all levels within organization.

Interacts v/lth customers personnel

Interacts across departmental boundaries

^^achers Aid/ Receptionist
YMCA- Bridgeport. CT
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April 2008 to June 2018

Assisting with projects

Organized various art activities during the week

Supervised children In classroom setting

Office Duties payment processing

Clerical work

Telecommunicating

Food handling

Assistant Manager
KFC - Bridgeport, CT

December 2008 to March 2014

• Assist the manager

• Bank runs

• Deposits money

• Inventory

• Food service

• Cook Food

• Perp Food

Education

Associate in bakery pastry arts
Johnson and wales university - Providence, Rl

September 2005 to April 2009

High school diploma
Havens Technical High School - Bridgeport. CT

AugpsJ?2^.001 to June 2005

Skills

• Crew Member

• Shift Lead

• Shift Supervisor

• Fast Food

• Food Service

• Manager Experience

• Barista Experience

• Cash Handling

• Classroom Experience

• Coffee Experience

• Experience with Children

• Food Preparation
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Teaching

Chlldcare

Special Education

Cooking

Cashiering

Experience Working With Students

Classroom Management

POS

Early Childhood Education

Food Handling

Math

Autism Experience

Writing Skills

Special Needs

Certifications and Licenses

CPR Certification

First Aid Certification

ServSafe Food Protection Manager
March 2021 to March 2026

Medication Administration

Present
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Alvin Ferguson

Frofessloosl Elxpcricnce

CAJUPAX Corporate

Desler Sopport Castom Care from May 2021- Cnrreot

Cuslomer Service

Meeting daily/monthly goals.

Prc^lem Solving

Billing

RelenllDn Acceuat Manager fVoiTi June 2019 - April 2020

Retention

Cuslomer Service

Tech Support

Assisting Customers daily

Meeting daily/monlhly goals.
Problem Solving

Cold Calling

Frootier Corarounications:

Customer service Representative Trom Deeetnbcr 2015 - April 2019.

Sales

Customer Service

Retention ,

Rilling

Handling customers daily,

Account management. .

Meeting monthly commission goals.

Skills:

Being able to use Microsoft software such as Microsoft Word, Excel, Powerpoint. Outlook, etc.
Being able to use various CRM's such as Salesforce.

Basic ofTtce skills

.Account maiiagcmenl skills

EDUCATION

Wilbur Cross High New Haven CP United States

High School Diploma, Jun 2008

University Of Connecticut Slorrs CT United States

Bachelor's in Communications. May 2013

II
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CONTRACTOR NAME

K.ev Personnel

First Name Last Name- Job Title

.  o/oPaid

From this

Contract

Amount Paid

from this

Contract

(Salary)

Annaul

Ines Ftodriguez C3R3 5.00% $2,238.29 .$ 44,765.80

Shelley Wlliams CSR3 5.00% $2,188.43 $  43,768.60

Marisella Garcia-Rvera Contact Center Supervisor 5.00% $2,813.51 $  56,270.20

Ferron IVbgollAn Call Center Team Lead 2.00% $933.50 $  46,675.00

Asia Garner CSR2 50.00% $21,496.80 $  42,993.60

Sara ODougherty ProvFtelatns Reld Supv 5.00% $3,786.98 $  75,739.60

i^ith Downing CAREAssociate 10.00% $4,752.91 $  47,529.10

Maria Moria Zbrriila ^nish Speaking CSR2 30.00% $12,898.08 $  42,993.60

Baine Trizulino SrAcct R"ogMgr 10.00% $10,190.82 $  101,908.20

Jennifer Badia Spanish Speaking CSR2 50.00% $21,496.80 $  42,993.60 ■

Jenna Mcquaig CSR2 30.00% $13,156.04 $. 43,853.47

Sharon Melendez Danish faking CSR2 15.00% $6,779.76 $  45,198.40

Sarshanna Qark Call Center Team Lead 10.00% $4,576.00 $  . 45,760.00

AJvin Ferguson Compliance Associate 25.00% $10,660.00 $  42,640.00
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DfyJSION OFMEDICAID SERFICES

Uri A. Weever >29 PLEASA^n^ STREET. CONCX)RD, NH 03301
ConmissiOBfr 603-271.9422 1-800-852.3345 Ext 9422

Fai: 603-271-8431 TOD Acceu: 1-800-735-2964 www.dbhi.nh.sov
lfcBi7 D, Upmin

Dirrclor

January 10, 2024

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Medicaid Services,
to enter Into a Sole Source.amendment to an existing contract with Coordinated Transportation
Solutions. Inc. (VC#271968), Trumbull, CT to provide a statewide non-emergency medical
transportation for Medicaid Fee-for-Service memt>ers, by increasing the price limitation by
$1,006,808 frbrri $1,541,079 to $2,547,887 and by extending the completion date from January
31, 2024 to June 30, 2025. effectiye February 1,2024 upon Governor and Coundl approval. 56®yt
Federal Funds. 21% General Funds. 23% OtherFunds (as defined in RSA 126-AA; 3,1).

The original contract was approved by Governor and Counci! on March 23,2022, Item #1 i
and most recently amended with Governor and Council approval on January 18,2023, item #17A.

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Years 2024 arid 2025, with
the authority to adjust budget line items within the price lirriitation. and encurribrances between
state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because the Department is seeking to extend the contract
beyond the completion date and there are no renewal options available, The original contract was
sole source due to a departure of the incumbent Contractor from the market with insufficient notice
to" establish a new network and conduct a competitive procurement. A sole source extension is
sought for an add.iiional eighteen-month period for the small populatibh served In Medicaid Fee-
for-Service, which Is declining due to the upcoming completion of the continuous coverage
unwind. As part of the development of the Medicaid Care Management re-procuremen! to begin
September 2024, the Department explored an alternative delivery system for NEMT In
cbdrdinatiori with major in-state transportation providers; this alternative did not prove feasible.
The new proposed contract teiminatiori date will align with the Medicaid Care Management
contract cyde and program development to ensure Department dperatiorial capacity to meet
members' service needs and further assess the feasibility of a new non-emergency rnedical
transpbrtatiori model or procurement of new vendors.

The purpose of this request is to continue to. provide .Medicaid members in the State's
Fee-for-Services program with access to non-emergency medical transportation (NEMT) for all
Medicaid covered services. Eligibility for services are verified through the Department's Medicaid
Management Information System. The Department wilj contiriue to pursue opportunities that will
innovate NEMT delivery statewide by assessirig the feasibility of a ,new NEMT model or the
procurement of new vendors for NEMT delivery as noted above.
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His Excellency, ̂ vemor Christopher T..Sununu
and the Honot^e.Councii

Page 2 of 2

Approximately 1,171 individuals will be served annually. The Department anticipates,a
relatively stable population served given the near end of federal continuous eligibility
requirements. The rates for this contract were not re-negotiated other than adjustments to the
Medicaid fee schedule in line with House Bill 2 2023.

The Contractor will continue to provide a statewide network of transportation providers
that transport beneficiaries in various modes of transportation, which include taxi, vyheelchair
vans, non-emergency ambulances, or vans. The Contractor ensures beneficiaries receive the
most efficient mode of transportation based on their physical and/dr cognitive impairments. The
Contractor will also continue to maintain a call center for beneficiaries to call when scheduling
rides. The Contractor ensures all transportation providers complete cultural and linguistic
sensitivity, defensive driving, dn'ver code of conduct, situatiorial behavioral training, first aid and
Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation training. The contractor will complete beneficiary satisfaction
surveys and take necessary corrective actions. The Contractor will handle all grievances
communicated In a tiniely manner, unless It is Significant or Reportabte, which will be reported to
the Department within twelve (12) and twenty-four (24) hours respectively. The Contractor will
•keep the Department apprised throughout the entire grievance process. If there is an accident,
the Department will be notified within twenty-four (24) hours, unless it results in an ir^ury in whjch
the.Department will be notified syithin twelve (12) hours.

The Department will monitor services by:

•. Meeting bi-weekly with the contractor to address provider and member concems.

•  Meeting regularly with key stakeholders to collect feedback on program
performance.

Collecting reporting on contract performance such as ride completion and call
center wait times.

•  Completing routine audits of claims.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request. Medicaid beneffclaries in the
Fee-for-Services program, who are dependent on the non-emergency transportation program,
may not have access to needed transportation to Medlcald-covered services, and would make
the Depar^ent nohcdmpliant with Its State Plan.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number#93.778, FAIN #2405NH5MAP.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, additional General Funds
will no1.be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Lpri A. Weaver
Commissioner

The Departmenl of Health and Human Services' Mitslon is to join communities and fomilies
in providing opporiuniiies for citizens to achieve heallliand independence.
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
FISCAL DETAILS SHEET

Coordinated Transportation Solutions-Amendment 2
SS-2022-DMS-01.NEMT-01-A02

05-95-47•470010-2358 Health and Social Services; Health and Human Svcs Dopt; HHS: OFC of Medlcald Servlcea; Oivlalon of Medlcald Services;
NH Granite ADV Health Care Trust Fund

State Fiscal
Class 1 Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2022 101/500729 Medicald Payments to Providers 47004369 $10,955 . $0 S10.955

2023 101/500729 ' Medicaid Payments to Providers 47004369 $85,598 SO S85.598

2024- 101/500729 Medicaid Pavments to Providers 47004369 $52,225 $44,418 $96,643

2025 101/500729 Medicaid Payments to Providers 47004369 $0 $106,603 S106.603

Sub Total $148,778 $151,021 $299,769

05-95-47-470010-7948 Health and Social Servicas; Health and Human Svcs Dept; HHS: OFC of Medicald Servicoe; Division of Medlcald Services.
Medlcald Care Management

50% Federal Funds. 26.35% Other Funds and 23.65% General Funds

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Arnount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2022 101/500729 Medicald Pavments to Providers 47004050 $101,415 ' $0 $101,415

2023 101/500729, Medicald Payments to Providers 47004050 $783,662 SO $783,662

2024 101/500729 Medicaid Payments to Providers 47004050 $474,805 $242,616 $717,623

2025 101/500729 Medicaid Pavments to Providers 47004050 ■SO $582,764 $58Z764

Subtotal $1,359,882 S82S.S82 '$2,185,464

■05-95-47-470010-7051 Health and Social Services; Health and Human Svcs Dept; HHS: OFC of Modicald Sorvlces; Dtvlslori of,Medlcald Services,
Child Health Insurance Program

State Fiscal Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount
Increase

(Decrease]
Revised Amount

2022 101/500729 Medicaid Payments to Providers 47004060 $1,629 SO $1,629

2023 101/500729 Medicaid Payments to Providers 47004060 $17,903 SO $17,903

2024 101/500729 Medicaid Payments to Providers 47004060 $12,887 $6,884 $21.77.1

2025 101/500729 Medicaid Payments to Providers 47004060 $0 $21,321 $21,321

Sub Total $32,419 $30,205 $62,624

Total! $1.541,079! $1.006.808| $2iS47,887{

Governor and Couricil Letter Attachment -
Fiscal Details

Page I of 1
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

27 Hazen Dr.; Concord, NH 03301

Fax: 603-271-1516 TOD Access: 1-800-735-2964

www.nh.gov/doit

Denis Goulet

Commissioner

December 21, 2023

Lori A. Weaver, Commissioner
Department of Health and Human SeKHccs

State of New Hampshire
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

Dear Commissioner Weaver:

This letter represents formal notification that the Department of Information Technology (DolT)
has approved your agency's request to enter into a contract amendment with Coordinated Transportation
Solutions, Inc., as described below and referenced as D6IT No. 2022-1 14B.

The purpose of this request is to provide a statewide non-emergency medical transportation for
Medicaid Fee-for-Service members.

The Total Price Limitation will increase by $1,006,808 for a New Total Price Limitation
of $2,547,887 effective upon Governor and Council approval through June 30, 2025.

A copy of this letter should accompany the Department of Health and Human Services' submission
to the Governor and Executive Council for approval.

Sincerely,

Denis Goulet

DG/jd
DoIT #2022-1148

cc: Michael Williams, IT Manager, DoIT

"Innovative Technologies Today for New Hampshire's Tomorrow"
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2

This Amendment to the Non-Emergency Medical Transportation (NEMT) Program for Fee-for-Service
(FFS) Medicaid Beneficiaries contract, is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of
■Health and Humari Services ("State" or "Department") and Coordinated Transportation Solutions, Inc.
("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive,Council
on March 23. 2022 (Item #11). as amended on January 18. 2023 (Item #17A), the Contractor agreed to
perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and
in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30; 2025

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$2,547,887

3. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 1.1, to read:

1.1. 56% Federal Funds from Medicaid Title XIX. Medical Assistance Program as awarded on
10/1/20i23 by the US Department of Health and Human Services, Centers for Medicare and
Medicaid Services, CFDA # 93.778, FAIN 2405NH5MAP.

1.2. 21% General Funds. .

1.3.23% Other funds (Medicaid Enhancement Tax and New Hampshire Granite Advantage Health
Care Program Trust Fund).

4. Modify Exhibit C-l, Transportation Rates, Amendment #1, in its entirety with Exhibit C-1,
Transportation Rates, Amendment #2 which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

Coordinated Transportation Solutions, Inc. A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials '-
1/2/2024"

SS-2022-DMS-01-NEMT-01-A02 Page 1 of 3 Date
v7.12'23
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective February 1, 2024, upon Governor and Council
approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

Stale of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

1/10/2024

Date

'DoevStgrMd toy-.

iklMYU

Name:

Title:

Henry Lipman

Medicaid Director

1/2/2024

Date

Coordinated Transportation Solutions, Inc.

'OoevSiofttd toy-.

eJifUH

Title;
VP/COO

Coordinated Transportation Solutions. Inc.

SS-2022-DMS-01-NEMT-01-A02

eff. 7.12.23

A-S-1.3

Page 2 of 3



Docusign Envelope ID: 4E9F6655-E8D9-47FA-BB61-9DE0269B841D
UOCUiiign tnveiope lU; «>4t/^C:j'2Bh1-4714-A7eA-B38E58C76264

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
executioh:

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Oocu»iontd by:

1/11/2024

IT—; ^ 'orsiiMatiiaoo,.."
Date Name: Robyn Guarino

Title:
Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: ^ (date of meeting) (

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Coordinaled Transportation Solutions, Inc. A-S-1.3

SS-2022-DMS-01-NEMT.D1.A02 ' Page3of3
eff. 7.12.23
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Non-Emergency Medical Transportation (NEMT) Program for
Fee-for-Service (FFS) Medlcald Beneficiaries

./V.

Exhibit C-1 Transportation Rates Amendment #2

Transportation Rates

1. The capped Administrative Rate to manage transportation benefits for Medlcaid Fee-for-Service

(FFS) participants shall be at a rate of $7)000 per month.

2. The Fee-for-Service (FFS) rates for direct transportation costs for Medicaid FFS participants shall be

in accordance with the table below*:

F.ee-for-ServJce Transportation Rates.Paidito GTS Rroylders-
AOIOO Taxi/Livery Base (includes first 5 miles) $15.00

S021S Taxi/Livery Mileage (after mile 5) $1.40/mile

S021S three T/L transportation providers in the

CTS Network are on a different mileage fee

schedule (from first mile)

$1.60/mile - Adventure Transportation

A0130 Wheel Chair Accessible Base $29.07

A1030 certain WC providers are on a different

base fee schedule

$30.00

S0209 Wheel Chair Mileage (from first mile) $2.70/mile

S02D9 WC providers are on a different mileage

fee schedule (from first mile)

$3.00/mile

A0426 Advanced Life Support Ambulance base - $333.21

AOllO Public Transportation Actual Cost

A0170 Parking Fees, Tolls, Lodging Actual Cost

A0390 Advanced Life Support Ambulance

Mileage (from first mile)

$8.71

A0428 Basic Life Support Ambulance Base $277.68

A0380 Basic Life Support Ambulance Mileage

(from first mile)

$8.71

T2005 Stretcher Van Base (includes first 5 miles) $102.00

T2049 Stretcher Van Mileage (after mile 5) $2.51

T2003 Unloaded miles Mileage rate by mode, above, calculated

based on the number of miles between a

provider's base location over twenty miles and

the covered tndividuars pickup location.

If additional fees are required In outlier cases,

the Contractor shall seek prior approval from

the Department.

T2007 Walt Time; Paid In 15-minute increments** Fee Range: $12.00 to $25.00 per hour

Ap090 Friends & Family Mileage Reimbursement $0.625/mile current, subject to adjustment by

NHDHHS

Coordinated Transportation Solutions, Inc. Exhibit C-1 Transportation Rates-Amendment 2

SS-2022-0MS-01-NEMT-01-A02 Page 1 of 2

Contractor Initials

•0$

Date

1/2/2024
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Non-Emergency Medical Transportation (NEMT) Prograrn for
Fee-for-Servlce (FFS) Medicaid Beneficiaries

Exhibit C-1 Transport^ion Rates Amendment #2
•The Contractor must seek written approval from DHHS for any rate deviations based on demand within
the state.

••Wait Time is paid:

1) When dollar amount is less than paying the mileage for driver to return to base.
2) For ambulance trips when member stays on the stretcher during the appointment.

Coordinated Transportation Solutions, Inc. Exhibit C-l Transportation Rates - Amendment 2 Contractor initials

SS-2022-DMS-01.NEMT.01-A02 Page2of2 Date
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Leri A. W««V*r
IfitrHa CeaoJtslOMr

HcA^' D. UpaM
Dim tor

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISIOI^ OF MEDICAID SERVICES

I2J PLEASANTSTREFT, CONCORD, NH «30i
60>-27t-9422 l-800^2«lM5Ext9422

Pix;60J-27i-$43l TDDAcetii: 1-800-733-2964 www.dbhi.nEfov

nA

December 30. 2022

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Departrrieni of Health and Human Services; Division of Medicaid Seryices;
to enter Into a Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with Coordinated Transportation
Solutions. Inc. (\/C#271968). Trumbull. CT for the continuMlon of a statevCdde norvemergency
medical transportation for Medicaid Fee-for-Service members, by exercising a contract renewal
option by Increasing the price limltatlori by $1,085,079 from $456,000 to $1,Ml,079 and
extending the cornpletion date from January 31, 2023 to January 31, 2024, effective February 1.
2023, upon Governor and Council approval. 55% Federal Funds. 21% General Funds. 24% Other
Funds (as defined in RSA 126-AA:3.I).

The original contract was approved by Goverrior and Couricll on March 23, 2022, item
#11.

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2023, and are,
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2024, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds In the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line Herns
\Mthin the prico limitation and encumbrances between state,fiscal years through the Biidget Offfce,
if needed and justlfred.
05-96^7^70010-2358 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES; HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS
DEPT: HNS: OFC OF MEDICAID SERVICES. DIVISION OF MEDICAID SERVICES. NH
GF^NITE ADVANTAGE TRUST FUND

State
Fiscal
Year

Class /
Account

Class Title Job
Number

Current
Budget

Increased
(Decreased)

Amount

Revised
Budget

■2022 101-500'729 r^edicaid
Payments to

Prbvldere

47004369 $10,955 $0 $10,955

2023 101-500729 Medicaid
Payments to

Providers

47004369 $32,866 $52,732 $85,598

2024 101-500729 Medicaid
Payments to

Providefs

47004369 -$0 $52,226 $52,225

Subtotal $4$,S21 $104,957 $148,m

77»* Dtp^rinuM o/Hfotlh and Uumon Mission is ujoin eommuaUUt and fo/riilia
in providingopportunilits fot n<u»nj la achUcvt htotlh and iiidsptndtnct.
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05:95-47-470010-7943 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES; HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS

DEPT. HHS: OFC MEDICAIO SERVICES, DIVISION OF MEOICAID SERVICES, .MEDICAID
CARE MANAGEMENT

State

Fiscal

Year'

Class /

Account
Class Tide

Job

Number ,
•Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revls^
Budget

.2022 101-500729 Medicaid
Payments to
Providers

47004050 $101,415 *  $0 $101,415

2023 101-500729 Medicaid.
Payments to
Providers

47004050 $304,244 $479,418 _ $783,662

2024 101-500729 Medicaid

Payments to
Providers

47004050 $0 $474,805 $474,805

,

* Subfotaf. $405,659 $954,223 $1,359,882

05-95-47-470010-7051 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES'; HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS
DEPT. HHS: OFC MEDICAID SERVICES, OiViSION OF MEDICAID SERVICES, CHILD
HEALTH INSURANCE PROGRAM

State

Fiscal

Year

■ Class /

Account.
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget 1

2022 101-500729 Medicaid

Payments to,.
Providers

.47004060 $1,629 $0 $1,629

2023 101-500729 Medicaid

Payments to
Providers'

47004060 $4,691 $13,012 .$17,903

2024 101-500729 Medicaid'
Payments to
providers

47004060 $0 $12,887 $12,887

Subfota/ $6,520 $25,899 $32,419

• Total $456,000 $1,085,079 $1,541,079

EXPLANATION •

This request is Solo Source because MOP 150 requires all amendments to agreements
previously approved as sole source to be identified as sole source. The original coritract was sole
source due to a departure of the Incumbent Contractor from the market with insuffidenl notice to
establish a new network and conduct a competitive procurement. The Contractor was selected
due to their operational readiness to provide continuity of services for beneficiaries, favorable
coritract temis and relative performance to tho one available alternative vendor already enrolled
with network capacity to serve the Medicald program In the time period allowed. A sole source
extension is soughi'for this l-year period in response to the Department's operational capacity;
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the Department is preparing for a re-procurement of the Medica'id Care Management program to
t)8 initiated in 2023 as the current managed care organization (MOO) contracts expire in August
of 2024. As a part of this re-procurement effort, the model for delivering non-ernergency medical
transportation will be considered.

The price limitation has exceeded the original request due to the impact of continuous
•eligibility requirements resulting in higher enrollment and utilization. This request reflects a rate'
increase to the friend and*family mileage reimbursement from $0.41 to $0,625. meeting the,
internal Revenue Service mileage rate for 2022. Wh^lchair and stretcher van service rates have
also been Increased by 2% to align with MOO reimbursement for these services

The purpose of this request Is to continue to provide Merticald memt>efs In the State's
Fee-for-Seryice program with access to non-^ergency medical transportation for ajl Medicaid

' covered sen/ices: State Medicaid programs.are required to provide necessary and appropriate
transportation, includirrg the provision of non-emergency ambulance and wheelchair van services,
for beneficiaries to travel to and from their home or nursing facility to Medicaid covered services.

The Contractor must ensure beneficiaries receive the most efHclent mode of transportation
based on their physical and/or cognitive impairments. The Contractor must maintain a call center
for beneficiaries to call when schedufir>g rides. Eligibility for services must tie verified through the
Department's Medicaid Management Information System. The Contractor is responsible for the
statewide network of Transportation Providers that transport beneficiaries in various rncdes of
transportation, which include taxi, wtieelchair vans,' non-emergency ambulances, vans and!
stretcher vans. The Contractor Is responsible for credentialing each.Transportation Provider and
ensuring training Is completed, which Inciudes, but is not limited to cultural and linguistic
sensitivity; defensive driving; driver code of conduct; situational behavioral training; Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act compliance: and fraud, waste, and'abuse of program
services. In addition to the trainings, the Cbntractof'requ'ires certification in passenger service and

'  safety as well as first aid and Cardiopulmoriary Resuscitation.

Approximately 4,000 members will epgible each rriorith for transportation services
through the end of the federally itiandated continuous eligibility requirements, and start.lo dedlne

•  incrementally following the end of these requirements. The Department is assuming based on
receridy passed federal legislation that erirollment decline will start in April 2023 urider yel-lo-be-
issued CMS guidance.

The Contractor vrill conduct beneficia^ satisfaction survey and take necessary corrective
actions. The Cpntractor .vrilt handle all grieyahces corrimunicated in a timely manner, unless it is

. Signiftcanl or Reportable, which will be reported to the Department within tvirelye (12) and twenty-
four (24) hours respectively. The Contractor will keep the Department apprised throughout the
entire grievance process..If there is an accident, the Department will be notified within twenty-four
(24) hours, unless it results In an Injury in which the Department \MII be notified within twelve (12)
hours.

The Department will monrtor contracted services by.

• Member scheduled rides for all services are delivered within 15 minutes of the
scheduled pick-up or appointment time.

•  Ensuring Transportation Providers and drivers comply with the Driver Code of
Conduct, pre-employment screening, annual employment screeriing, driver
requirements, and all education requirements.

As referenced in Exhibit A of the original agreement, the parties have the dptiori to extend
the agreement for up to one (1) additional year; contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services,
available funding, agreement of the parties and Governor arid Council approval. The Department
is exercising its option to renew services for one (1) of the one (i) years available.
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Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request. Medicaid tseneftdaries in the
Fee-foriService program, wtio are dependent on the non-emergency transportation program, may
not have access to ne^ed transportation to Medicaid-covered services, ar*d would make the
Department noncompliant with rts State Plan.

Area served: Statewide

■ Source of Funds; CFOA #93.778. FAIN #2205NH5MAP, General Funds, and Other Funds
(as defined in RSA 126-AA:3.I). .

In the event that the Federal or Other Funds become no longer available, additional
Genera! Funds vwll not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Lorj A. Weaver
Interim Commissioner
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENTTOF [NFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

27.Haien Dr., Concord, NH 03301

Fax; 603-271-1516 TOO Access: 1 •600-735-2064

www.nh.gov/doit

Denb Goulct

Commissioner >

January 6, 2023

Lori Weaver, Commissioner

Department of Health and .Human Services

State of New Hampshire
29 Hazcn Drive

Concord, NH 0330 i
♦

Dear Commissioner Weaver: "

This letter represents forma! notification that the Department of Information Technology (DolT)
has approved your agency's request to entd- into an amendment with Coordinated Transportation Solutions,
Inc., as described below and referenced as DoIT No. 2022-114A.

.The purpose of this request is for the continuation of a statewide non-emergency medical
transportation for Medicaid Fee-for-Service members.

The Price Limitation will increase by $1,085,079 for a total new Price Limitation of
1,541,079 effective upon Governor and Executive Council, approval through January 31,

,2024.' " . . •

A copy of this letter must accompany the Department of Health and Human Services' submission
to the Governor and Executive Council for approval. . ^ •

.  ' ' Sincerely,

Denis Goulet

DG/jd
Do1T#2022-I14A

cc; Mike Williams, IT Manager

"Innovative Technologies Today for New Hampshire's Tomorrow'



Docusign Envelope ID: 4E9F6655-E8D9-47FA-BB61-9DEq2698841D

OocuSlgn En>^ope 10:0297AED6-S536^2B6-A0OC-gDB995C066GC

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1

This Amendment to the Non-Emergency Medical Transportation (NEMT) Program for Fee-for-Service
(FFS) Medlcaid Beneficiaries contract is by and between the State of New.Harnpshire, Department of
Health and Human,:Service$ fStale" or "Department") and Coordinated Transportation Solutions. Inc.

.  {"the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
• on March 23, 2022. (Item #1-1). the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms
and conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions. Paragraph 17, and Exhibit A, the Contract may
bo arnended upon written agreement of-the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive

Council; and • . '

WHEREAS, the parties,agree to e)dend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery.of.these services: and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
In the Contract and set forth herein; the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

January 31.2024

2. Form P-37. General Provisions, Block 1.8. Price Limitation, to read:

■  $1,541,079

3. Form P-37, General Provisions. BItxk 1.9, Contracting Officerfor State Agency. toVead:

Robert W. Moore, Director.

4. Modify Exhibit C-1 Transportation Rates by replacing In Its entirety wth Exhibit C-1 Transportalioh
Rate Amendment #1. which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

Coordinated Transportation Solutions, inc. A-S-1.3

SS-2022-DMS^l-NeMf-Ol-A01 Pago 1 of 3

d
VContraclor initials

^  1/4/2025
Date. ••
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All terms and condilions of the Contract not modified by this Amendment remain In full force and effect.
This Amendment shall be effective February 1.2023, or upon Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parlies have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

1/4/2023

Date

r—0»ewSle*e< Vft
Naftr^-Landry ^

Title: Associate Commissioner

1/4/2023

Date

Coordinated Transportation Solutions, Inc.

-DeeuS%iW»y.

I  PUf

TItleyp/coo

Coordinated Transportation Solutions, Inc. A-S-1.2

SS-2022-DMS-01-NEMT-01-A01 Page 2 oJ 3
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The preceding Amendmenl. having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution. .

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

N3m^SoHy?^u7rTno ^ '*
1/V2023

Date

Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendrhenl was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the Stale of New Hampshire at the Meeting on:. {dale of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Coordinaied Transportation Solutions, inc. A-S-t .2

SS-2022.0MS-01-NEMT-01-A01 Page 3 of 3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Non-Emergency Mediul Transportation (NEMT) Program for

Fee-for-Service (FFS) Medicaid Beneficiaries

Exhibit C'l Transportation Rates Amendment #1

Transportation Rates

1. The capped Administrative Rate to manage transportation benefits for Medicaid Fee-for-Servlce

(FFS) participants shal| be at a rate of $7,000 per month.

2. The Fee-for-Service (FFS) rates for direct transportation costs for Medicaid FFS participants shall be

in accordance with the table below*;

•fA .s- ; Feerf6i;rSefyiceTranspbftation.RateX'Raid to..GTS
AOIOO faxi/Llvery Base (includes first S miles) $15.00

S0215 Taxi/Livery Mileage (after mile S) $1.40/mlle

$0215 three T/L'transportation providers In the

CTS Network are on a different mileage fee

schedule (from first mile)

$1.60/mile -Adventure Transportation ^
$1.so/mile - Abba Transportation
$1.25/mlle - Nashua Express ■

A0130 Wheel Chair Accessible Base $29.07

A1030 certain WC providers are on a different

base fee schedule

$30.00

S0209 Wheel Chair Mileage (from first mile) $2.70/mite . .

$0209 WC'providers are on a different mileage

fee schedule (from first mile)

S3.00/mile

A0426 Advanced Life Support Ambulance base $154.23 $175.00

Adllp Public Transportation Actual Cost

A0170 Parking Fees,,Tolls, Lodging Actual Cost

-

A0390 Advanced Life Support Ambulance

. Mileage (from first mile)

S2.60

A0428 Basic Life Support Ambulance Base $145.00

A0380 Basic Life Support Ambulance Mileage

(from first mile)
$2.60

T200S Stretcher Van Base (includes first S miles)' $102.00

T2049 Stretcher Van Mileage (after mile 5) $2.51

T2003 Unloaded miles Mileage rate by mode, aboye, calculated

based on the number of miles betweeri a

provider's base location over twehty miles and

the covered individual's pickup location.

If additional fees arf required in outlier cases,

the Contractor shall seek prior approval from

the Department.

T2007 Wzll Time: Paid in 15-m(nute increments** Fee Range: $12.00 to $25.00 per hour

A0090 Friends & Family Mileage Reirnbursement
\

S0.625/mile current, subject to adjustment by
NH OHHS

Coordinated Transportation SoKrllons. Inc. - Czhitiit C-i Tramponatton Rates rAmendmcrit \

SS-2O22-OMS-O1-NEMT-O1-A01 Paselc»f2

Contractor Initial)

Date

&
*  .'C

1/4/2023
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New Hampshire.Department of Health and Hurnan Services
Non-Emergency Medical Transportation (NEMT) Program for

Fec-for-Scrvicc (FFS) Mcdicald Beneficiaries

. Exhibit C-1 Trahsportatlon Rates Amendment #1
•The Contractor rnyst seek written approval fronri DHHS for any rate deviation's based on demand within
the state. '

••Wait Time is paid: ■

1) When dollar arnount Is,less than paying the mileage for driver to return.to base;.

2) For ambulance trips when member stays on the stretcher durlng'lhe appointment.

,s;

Coordinated Transportation Solutions. Inc. Cxhlbii C-1 Transponaiion Rates - Amendment i

S$-20i2-DMS^l-N£MT:01.Abl Page2ol2

Contractor Initials

Date

0

1/4/2023
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

OmSiON OF MEOlCAiO SER VICES

129 PLEASAKT STREET, COiNCORD, NM 03J01
60>271'9422 l-em52.3345 EiL 9422

Fu: Mi<27l443i TDDAretu; l:«00>73S-2^
vrww.dhh9.oh.go'v

March 9. 2022

His Excellent. Governor Christopher T. Sununu.
arKJ tho Honorable Couhcil . • , .

Slate House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Oepartrnent of Health and Human Services. Division of fWedicald Services,
to enter into a ■Sole Source contract with Coordinated Transporlatipn Solutions, Inc.
(VC#271968). Trumbull, CT In the amount of $456,000 for statewide non-emergency medical
Iransportalion for Medicaid Fee-for-Seryice members, with the option to renew for up.to one (1)
addHiona) year, effective upon Governor and Council approval through January 31. 2023, 54%
Federal Funds, 22% Qeneral Funds and 24% Other Funds .(Medicaid Enhancement Tax end New
Hampshire Granite Advantage Health Care.Program Trust Fund).

Funds-are available In the following accbunls for SUte Fiscal Years 2022.and 2023, with
the authority, to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between
state-fiscal years through the Budget Office,'if needed and justified.
05-95-47*-476o10,-2368 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES; HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS
DEPf: HHS: OFC OF MEDICAID SERVICES. DIVISION OF- MEDICAID -SERViCES, NH
GRANITE ADVANTAGE TRUST FUND

State
.Fiscal Year

Class /
Account

Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2022 101-500729
Medicaid Payments to

Providers
470C)4369 $10,955

2023 101-500729
Medicaid Payments to^

Providers
■47004369

'  $32,866'

'  • Subtotal $41821

05-95-47-470b'l0-7948 .HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES; HEALTH AND HUMAN .SVCS
DEPT, HHS: OFC MEDICAID SERVICES, DIVISION OF MEDICAID SERVICES, MEDIQAID
CARE MANAGEMENT

State
Fiscal Year

.'Class/
Account

Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2022 101-500729 ' Medicaid Payments to
Providers'

47004050
$101,415

J}\e'OtporUntn\ oj UeaUh ond Ihinwn S/tjvicet'.Mmion i> to/din «mniwni'/icionrf/dmi7i«
-»n prdviilngbp'pbtiuniiiit far aiittnt Id dchUir'/unllii and independence.-
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2023 101-500729
Medicald Payments to

Providers
•47004050

$304,244

■
• Subfofaf $405,659

05-9&-47-470010-7051 HEALTH AND SOCIAL'SERVICES; HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS

DEPT, HHS; OFC MEDICAID SERVICES, DIVISION OF MEDICAID SERVICES. CHILD
HEALTH INSURANCE PROGRAM

State

Fiscal Year

Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2022 • 101-500729
Medicald Payments to

Providers
47004060 ,

$1,629

2023 101-500729
■ Medicald Payments to

Providers
47004060

$4,891

- Sublotai $6,520

Total $456,000

EXPLANATION

This request Is Sole Source because the Department received limited, notification from
One Call Government Solutions, LLC {One Call) that corporately they were exiting the Medicald
NEMT business-line nation-wide. Out of concern that One Call's driver network could unwind and
In the Interest of preventing a gap in service for Medic'aid beneficiaries. Conducting ^ full
prqcuremenl and setting up a new network with the lime'window available, wi'thout puttiiig
benefidarys transportation continuity at risk, was not possible with the notice given.

The proposed vendor Is Coordinated Transportation Solutions. Inc. who has previously
provided non-emergent medical transportation services to the Department for its ,Fee-for-Sejyice
Medi.cald population. Additionally. Coordinated Transportation Solutions, Iric; is currently
contracted, with one of the NH Medicald managed care organizations to provide non-emergent
medical transportation services for beneficiaries enrolled in their.plan. As a rdsulf of that existing
cbntract end their knov^edge of the NH Medicald non^mergency medical tfanspbrtatlpn program,
■Coordlnateid Trarisportatloh Solutions, Inc. has a network of enrolled transpprtaUon providers a.nd
has-famllia'rity with the Stale's claims and encounter system v^lch will allow for a more seamless
•transition for the beneflclaries.served. Coordinated Transportation Solutions. Inc. will be'8l)le to
meet theiOepartment's need for npn-emergenl medical transportation services with little to no
transition preparation. The Department was co.htacled by the other. Medicald transportation
broker in the market about assuming the terms of the One.-Cal! contract. The terms we were able
to negotiate with the Coordinated Transportation Solutions, Inc. contract were more favorable
than having the contract assumed by the other broker. Additionally, a number of stakeholders
•conveyed .the trahsition contemplated with Coordinated Transportation Solutions, Inc. would be
preferred-and less challenging based on their model of assignlng'and fulfilling rides.,, particularly
for nursing facilities.

The purpose of this repMa.st is to ensure'Medicaid members in the State's'FeerfoK-Service
P.fOQfafh have'uninterrupted apces.s to non-emergency me.dical iransportaljon to all Medicald
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.covered services. State Medlcaid programs are required to provide necessary and appropriate
transportation, including the provision of non-emergency ambulance and wheelchair van services,
for beneficiaries to travel to and from their home or nursing facility to Medicald covered sen/ices.'

Approximately 4.000 members will be eligible each month for transportation services
through the end of the public health emergency, and start to decilne beginning the. month
thereafter.

The Contractor Is resp6r«ible for the statewide network of Transportation Providers that
transport beneficiaries in various modes of transportation, which Include taxi, wheelchair vans,
non-emergency ambulances, vans and stretcher vans. The Contractor.must ensure beneficiaries
receive the most efficient mode of transportation based on'their physical and/or cognitive

.  Impairments. The Contractor must maintain a can center for beneficiaries to call when scheduling
rides. Eligibility for services must be verified through the Department's Medlcaid Management

-  Information System. The Contractor Is responsible for credenlialing each Transportation Provider
•and ensuring training Is completed, which includes, but Is not limited to cultural and linguistic,
sensitivity: defensive driving; driver code of conduct; sltualional behavioral training; Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act compliance; and fraud, waste, and abuse of program
services. In addition to the trainings. the Contractor requires certification Iri passenger service and
safety as well as first'ajd and Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation.

The Cootracfor will conduct beneficiary salisfaclion survey and take necessary corrective
actions. The Conlractor wlll.handle ell grievances communicated In a llrhely rnanner. unless it Is
Significant or Repoiiable. which will be reported to the Department within twelve (12) and twenty-
four (24) hours respectively. The Contractor will keep the Department apprised throughout the
entire grievance process. If there is an accideni, the Department will be notified within twenty-four.
(24) hours, unless it results In an injury in which the Department will be notified within twelve (12)
hours.

The Department will monitor contracted services by: ■

•  Member scheduled rides for all services are delivered within 15 minutes of the

scheduled pick-up or appointment time.

•  Ensuring Trarisportalion Providers and drivers comply with the Driver Code of
Conduct, pre-employment screening, annual employment .screening, driver
requirements, a.nd all education requirements.

As referenced in Exhibit A pf the attached contract, the parties have the option to ext'end
the agreement for. up'to one (1.) additional year, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services,
available funding, agreerridnt of the parlies, and Governor and Council approval.

Under the current procured MCO ̂conlracl, the State's three (3) managed care
orgariizaliofi's. have the .a.bllity to .contract with the non-emergency IrahspOrtaliori broker of their
choosing. Prior;to'One Call leaving the non-emergency Iransportatiori market, there were three
(3) transportation brokers .serving New Hampshire's Medlcaid beneficiaries, the Department
Intend.s to use the time duririg the upcomlr^g contract to ovaluato tho efficlohcy and .effectiveness
of the current model of delivering NEMT under the next procurement.

•Shouid the Governor and Council not authorize this request Medicaid berieficlarfes in the
Fee-for-Service' program. v4^o are dependent on the non-emergency transpbrtaliori program, riiay
not have access to needed transportation to Medicald-covered services, .and would rnake the
Department noncompliarit with Its State plan.

•Area serv.ed: Statevi/ide
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His ExwDoncv. Governor Chrtslophcr T. Sununu
end the Honoreble Council

PegeAoU

Source of Fuodsi.CFDA #93.778, FAIN #2205NH5MAP, General Funds, and Other Funds
(MedicaW Enhancerrient Tax and New Hampshire Granite Advantage Health Care Program Triisl
Fun)

In the event that the Federal or Other Funds t>ecome no longer available, additional
General Funds-will not be requested to support this program.

*  » I
Respectfully submitted.

tfuK R: Ifii

Ldri A. Shibinette

Commissioner
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

27 Helen Dr^ Concord, NH 03301

Fax: .603-27M516 TOO Access; 1-W0-735-29M

vAvw.nh.gov/dpil

Dcob Coulet

Commhsioner

•  f . February 18, 2022

Lori A. Shibinctic, Commissioner
Department'of Health and Human-Services
Slaw ofNcw Hampshire
129 Pleuant Street

Concord, NH 03301 ^

Dear Commissioner Shibinetie:

This letter rcprescnls formal notifrcation thai the Department of Information Tcchnplogy (DoIT)
has approved your agency's request to enter into o comraci with C(>ordinaied Transportation Solutions, Inc.
of frambull, CT, OS described below and referenced as DoIT No. 2022-1 14.

.. The Department of Healih and Human Servicb requests approval to enter into a
contract with Cooridinated Transportation Solutions to ensure Mcdicaid members in' the
State's Fcc-for-Service prograni .have access to non-cmcrgcncy transportation to all
Mcdicaid covered services. State Mcdicaid programs ore required to provide necessary
and opproprlaie transporialion, including the provision of non-emergency ambulance and
wheelchair van services, for beneficiaries to travel to and from their home or nursing
facility to Mcdicaid covered services.

the cost of the contract is not to exceed $456,000.00 and it shall become cfTccrivc upon-
Gpvcrnor and Council approval through January 31,2023. * • ̂

A copy of this letter should accompany the Department of Health and Human Services' submission
to Governor and Extcutivc Councii for approval.

Sincerely.

Denis Goulet

OG/RA

D6ITW2622-I14

.cc: Michael Williams. IT Manager, D61T'

'Innovative Technologies Today fof New Hompshire's Tomorrow'
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Subject: Non-Emcfgcncy Medical Transportation (NEMT) Program for Fcc'for-Scrvicc (FFS) Mcdicoid Beneficiaries
.  "(SS-2022-DMS-01-NEMT-0I)

•Notice: This agreement and all oflls attachments shall become public upon submission to Governcr'and
Executive Council for appros-at. Any information that is private, confideniial or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in uTiting prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The Slate of New Hampshire and the Contractor-hereby mutually ogree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

I.I Slate Agency Name

New Nampshirc-Dcp&rtmenl of Health end Human'Scrvices

1.2 State Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street

Concord. KH 0)301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

Coordinated Transporlaiion Solutions, Inc.

#

1.4 Contracior Address

3i5 Nutmeg Drive Suite 120' ,
TrumbuIl^ CT 0661 1

1.5 Contractor phone

Number

(2.03)736-8.'8;iQ

1.6 Account Number

05-95-47-4700I0-2358;
05-95-4^470010-7948;
05-95-47-470010.7051'

).7 Compleliftn Dale

January 31., 2023

1.8 - Price Limitation

$456,000

1 ;9 Cbniraciirig Officcr.for Slate Agency

Nalhan D. White,Director , '

1 .10 Stale-Agency Telephone Number

(603)271-9631 . - -

I.It CQQy^9t|0j^'^|iffiaturc

tlMfrl fWf Djlc: 3/10/2022
otOArfror itiMAi-

1.12 Name and Title of Contracior Signatory

•Edward Platt vp/coo

1.13 Stole Agency Signature

3/10/2022

1.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

Henry 0. t.ipman Medica'id Direct

1.15 Appro\ral faVilic"N>L Department of Adminislraiiori, Dtvision of Personnel (if oppUcnble)

By: Director, On:

1.16 -Approval ̂  the Atiomcy General (Fprm, Substance and Excculion) (if applicable)

6/: On:

1;17 Approval by the Governor and Execiiiis'e Coundl fi/pp/y/icoWe) ^

•C&Cltcm number: G&C Meeting Dale;

or

Page 1 of4.
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Cbniracior Initials "

•  ' Date
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2. SERVfCBS TO BE PERFORMED. The Stale of New

Hompshiir; acdng through the Agency idenlified in block I.I
("SiAtc"), engages contractor identified in block 1.3
("Contnctor") to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the
u-ork or sale of goods, or both, idenlified and more particularly
described in the attached EXl-IFBIT D which is incorporated
herein by reference ("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SEHVlCflS.

3.1 Noiv^ih^nding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the 8^.ro\-a) of the Covxmor and
Executive Council of the Slate of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hercun^'r, shall
become.cfTcciive on the date the Governor and Executive

Council approve this Agreement as Indicated in block 1.17,
unless no such approval is required, in which case the Agreement

' shall become elTeciive on the date the Agreement \s. signed by
the State Agency as shown in block 1.13 ("EfTective Date").
3.2 If the Cbntredor commences the Services prior to the
EiTeciive Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to
■the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, end in the event that this Agreement does not become
effective, the State shall have no liability to the .Contractor,
including unthout limitation, any obligation to pay the-

^  Contractor for any" costs incurred or Services pcribnncd.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Dale
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the

.  conirary;, all obligations of the State hercunder, including,
■without limitation, ihc'cominuancc-orpayments hereur^er.'arc
contingent upon the availability and cohtihucd appropriation of
funds.-affecied by .any stale or federal Icgis.iative or e.rccutivc
action that reduces, eliminates or- otherwise modifies the
appropriDilon or availdb.ilily of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT 8. in whole or in
pan: In no-event shall the State be liable for any payments
her'eundcr in excess of such available appropriated funds. In the
event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
Slate-shall have the right to withhold payment until such fundt
bccoTTie available, if e>-e^ arid shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services .under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Coritrft'ctor notice of such reduction or termination.
The Slate shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
account or source to the Account idenllfjed in block 1.6 in the
event fuhds.iri that Account arc reduced or unavailable.

5.:C0NTRACT P.RIC;E/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMEW:
i.IThc contract price, method of payment, and tcrm.c of payment'
ore identified-and more panicularty described in'EXHlDIT C
which is incorporated hcrdn by reference.
5.'2 payment by the-Slaic of the contract price shall be the
only end the complete rei.m.burscmcni to .the dontracior for all
c.x'perues, of. whatever naiurc.mcurrcd by the Conimctpr in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

compcnsation.to the Conimctor for the Services. The Stale shall
have no liability to ihc Contractor other than the contract price.
5.3 The State reserves the right (o offset from any amounts
otherwise payable lo the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated anioums required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA iB0:7< or any other provision of law.-
5.4 Notu-ithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hereundcr, exceed the Price Umttaiion set forth In block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.
6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulatioh.e, -and orders of federal, .state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, cisril rights and equal
employment opportunity laws. In addition, if this Agreement is
funded in any part by monies of the United States, the Contractor
shall comply u-iih all federal c.xccutive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and unth any rules, regulations and guidelines as the
State or the United States issue to implement these regulations.
The Contractor shall also comply with all applicable intellectual
-property laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discrimina.te ogaittsi employees or applicants fo.r ctnploymcitl.
because of race, color, religion, creed, age. sex, hixlictip, sexual
orieniaiion, or national origin and will ttikc affirmative action to
prevent such discrimination.
6.3. 'The Comractor-ngrccs to permit the State or United Stales
Access 10 any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for
the purpose ofascertaining compliance with all rules, rcgulaiion.":
and orders, and the covenants, terms and conditions of this
Agreement. ,

7. PERSONNEL.
7.1 The Contractor shall oi its own expense provide oil personnel
necessary to perform the Services.. The Conlradpr warrants that
all personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to
perform the Services, and shall be property licensed and,
othcrNvisc oiithorizcd to do so under ell applicable laws.
7.2"Unless othcnyisc authorize in writing, during the term of
this-Agrccmcni. and for a period of six (6) months afler the
Completion.Date in block 1.7, the Comrtictdr shall not hire, and
shall not permit any sub^ntracior or other person, fi rm or
corporaiiori with whom it i.x cngag^ in a combined icffon .to
perform the Servicc.s to hire, any person who"is a State crnpldycc
or official, who is rnalcnally involved i.n .thc- p'rocO.rcmc.nt,
admini.streiion or pcrforrhancc of this Agreement. This
provision shall sur\'ivc termination of this Agreemcril.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block i;9, or his or her
successor, shall be the State's reprcscnialivc. In the evcniofnny
dispute concerning the interpretation of this. Agreement, the
Contracting Officer's dccisipii shall be' fi nal fpr'l.he_StBlc.

DS
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6. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the folioNving &ct3 or omissions of (he
Contniclor shnll constitute an event ofdefault hcreunder ( 'Event
of Oefauir):
8.1.1 failure lo perform the Services saiisfaclority or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to subrhit any report required hcreunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to p'erforrh any other covenant, term.or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
tahe any one, or more, or all. of the following actioriS:
8  I ^ivc the Contmcior a written notice specifyins (he Event of
Default and requiring It lo be remedied within, in the absence of
a greater or lesser spcctficatton of time, thiny (30) days from the
date of the noiice;'and if the Event of Default Is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) days after giving the
Contmtor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default -and suspending all payrhei^ts to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which N^uld pth'cr\vise accrue to the Contractor during (he
period frorn the date of such notice until ̂ ch lime u the State
determines Ih&l the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Conlractor;
8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations (he State may
owe to the.Conlractor any damages (he State suffers by reason of
any Event ofDefaull; ortd/or
8.2.4 give the Contractor euTiltcn notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both.

8.3. No failure by the Stale lo enforce any provisions hereof after
any. Eventof Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard to that Event of Default, or -any subsequent Event of
Default. No express failure lo enforce any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of (he right of (he State to enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of
Defpuli on the pan of the Contractor.

9.TERMiNATJ6N.
9.1 Not\Mih.stan'ding paragraph.8. the State may. at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agrcem'eni'fpr any reason. In whole or
In part, by thiny (30) days wnttcn notice to the Contractor that
the State is exercising its option to terminate (he Agreernent,
9.-3 In the event of an early termination of this Agrccihox for
any reason cMhcr than -the completion of the -ScA'iccs, the
Coni'mctdr shall, at the State's discretion, deliver to the
Contracting Officer, not later thw fifteen (15) days after the date'
of termination, a repon ("Termination R'epon") describing in
detail .all Services performed, and ihc contmd price earned, to
and including thr; date of lermiriatiqn. The fonn, subject molic'r,
cbntehl, and number of copies of the Tcrmiriaiion Rc^ shall
be identical (o'those of any Final Rcpqri described in.ihCiaii8chcd
EXHIBrr B. In.additi.qn, At (he 'Stnte!s discretion,-the Contractor
shall, within 15.d3>'S of notice of early tcrrhinalion, dcvcjop and

page 3 of'd

submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the

Agreement.

10. DATA/ACCESS/COiNFIDENTIALITV/

PRESERVATICiN.
10.1 As used in this Agreement, ihc vvord "data" shall mean all
inrormaiion and thing.? developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this.
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, rcp'orls,
files, formulae, sur%'eys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, plciorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
rcprescritatioas, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memo^da, p^rs, and documents, all whether
finished or unfinished.

10.2 All data and any propcriy which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be (he properly of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand br upon termination
of this Agreement for any reason.
10.3 Conndeniiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other c.tisting law. Oisclosurc ofdaia requires
prior written approval of the State.

11. CONTRA CI'OR'S RKLATION TO THE STATE. In the
performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects
an independent contractor, and is neither an ogcnl nor an
employee of the State. Neither (he Contractor nor-any of its
oftlcers, employees, agents or members shall have aiilhprity to
bind the Sute or receive any benefits, tvorkeb' corhpensaiion or
other emoluments provided by the Stale to it.? employees.

.12. ASSrCNMENT/DELECATION/SUDCONTRACTS.

12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest In this Agreement without (he prior written notice, which
shall be provided to the State at least fifteen (15) days prior to
ihe-assignment, and a written consent of the-Statc. For purposes
of (his paragraph, a . Change of Control shall constitute
assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) .merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related tranuctions'in
u'hich a third parly, together with its afniiaics, becomes the
direct or irKJircci owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the
voting share.? or similar equity interest.?, lor-corhbincd -voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all
of the assets of the Contractor.

12.2 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior wriiieh notice and consent of the'Stale.
The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts wd assignment
agreements and shall^noi be bound by any provisions conlalned
in a subcontract;9r an assignment agreement to which it.is not a
party.

13. INDEMMFICATf ON. Unless otherwise exempted by law,
the Conlractor shall indcmriify and hold .harmless the State, its
officers and employees, from and against any and all claims,
liabHiiics and.costs for any personal injury or property damages,
patent or copyright infringement, or other clai ms asserted against.
the Slate, its pfficers or employees, which arise out of (orj^'hichmay be claimed to arise out oO the sets or cmifijid^^f the

Conli^ctcir Initials

Dale ■37IU57U22
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Conirector. or nibcomrscior;, including bui not limited to Ihc
neglisefKc, reckless or inieniionol conduct. The State shall not
be liable for any costi incurred by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, tiothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a v.'^'wxt of the sovereign
.immunity of the ̂ latc, which immunity is hereby iwrvcd to the
State. This coveriant in pamgraph 13 shall survive the
termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall rc<)uire any

. subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the
following insurance:
14.1.1 commercial genemi liability Insurance agaln.<R all cbim.«
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in omounls ornoi
less than SI.OOO.OOO per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate
or excess; arid
14.1.2 special cause of toss coWragc form covering all property
subject to subparagroph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacerhcnt value of the property.
14.2 The policies de.scribed'ln$ubparagraph 14.1 heremshallbc
on policy forms and endorsements apprcNtd-fof use in the Stoic
of New Hampshire by ihc N'.H. Department of Insurance, and
issued by insurers licensed in the Stale pfNew Hampshire.
14.3 Tl^ Contracipr shall furnish to the Contracting ORlccr
identified In block 1.^,'or his or her successor, a ceiilficate(s)or
inwrancc for- all ihsurtmcc required under" this Agreement.
Conlreclor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer tdenii ficd
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, ccftincaie(s) of insurance
for all rehc\val(s) of insurance required under this Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior to the e.xplration date of each
insurance, policy. The ccnificalcfs) of insurance and any
renewals ihcrcorshall be attached and arc incorporated herein by
reference.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.
15.1 By signing this agreement,-the Contractor agrees, certifies
ari'd wnrranu that the Contractor is in corhpliancc with or exempt
from, Ihc requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A ff^'orkcrj'
Compensoiion
15.2 Toihe extent the Coni'ractor is subject to the requirements
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor Khali maihtnin, and
•require any wbcontroclor or assignee to secure and rnaintain,
•payment of Workers' Compensation in connection wiih
.activities \vhich the person propioscs to undertake pursuant to this
AfifccfPcfiL The Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, proof of Workers'
Compensation in the manner described in N.H.-RSA chapter
281 •: A .and any-applicable rcncwal(s) thereof, which shall be
Attached and arc incorporated herein by reference. The State

. shall • rrot be responsible for payment of any -Workers'
Compensation, premiums or -for any'Other claim or benefit for
Conirocior, or any .subcontractor or employee of Contractor,
.which, might arls.e tjfidcr applicable State of.New l-lampshirc
'Workers'- CoYnpensaiign laws in conneciian with the
performance of ihc'Scrviccsbridcr ihis Agrcerncnt. '

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States
Post Office addressed to the- parties at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may bc-amended, waived
or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the

' parties hereto and only after approval oT such amendment,
waiver or discharge by the Governor and Executive Council.of
the Slate of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required
under the circumstances pursuant to Stale law, rule'or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement sha|l
be governed, interpreted and construed in accordance with the'
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors
and assigns. The wording used in Ihis Agreement is the .wording
chosen by the parties to e.xprcss their mutual intern, and no rule
of construction shoU be opplied against or in favor of any party.
Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be brou^l end
maintained in New Hiimpshirc Superior Court which shall have
c.\clusive jurisdiction thereof.

1.9. CGNFLlCrriNC TERMS.. In the event of o conflict
between the terms of Ihis P-37 form (as modified in CXHrBIT
A) and/of attachments and amendment thereof. )hc terms.of the
P-37 (a.s modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

.20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third panics and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such'benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout ihc.Agrccmcnt arc
for reference purposes only, and ihe words contained .therein
shall In no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

■22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set fpnh in the attached EXHIBIT A ore incorporated
herein by reference.

23. SEN'ERABILITV. Inihc event any.ofihe provisions of this
Agreement arc held by a court of c6rnpctent jurisdicijon to be
contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining provision's of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect,

24. ENTIRE-AGREEMENT. Thi.s Agriccnicnt.'whrch may be
executed in a number of counlcrpajts, each of which shall be
dccmc'd an original, constitutes' the entire agreement and
understanding-between Ihc parties,, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect lo the subject mailer
hereof.

Page d of 4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Noh-Emergoncy Medical Transportation (NEMT) Program for
FeO'for^ervice (FFS) Medicald Beneftciaries

EXHIBIT A

REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT PROVISIONS

1. Revisions to Form Pt37, Genera! Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3, Effective Daie/Cpmplelion of Services, is amended by adding
subparag'raph 3.3 as follows:

3.3. The parties may extend the Agreement for up to one (1) additional year
from the Cprnplelidn Dale, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of

.services, available funding.'agreement of the parties, and approval of the
Governor and Executive Council.

1.2. Paragraph 12, Assignment/Delegation/Subconiracts. is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.3 as follows:

12.1 Subcoritractors-are subject to the same.contractual coriditidns as.the
Coniraclor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall have written
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed
and how corrective action shall be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is inad.equate. The Contractor shall manage the
subcpntracto'r's performance on an ongoing basis and take corrective
adtion as necessary. The Contracior shall annually provide the State with'
a iist of all subcqnlractors provided for under this Agreement and notify
the Stat^ of any inadequate subcontractor performance.

•y^.n

. if
•SS-2022-DM$-01-N£MTpi, EjhWl A • Rovls!on»lo Standard CofUfOCl" Prbvtsioinj .Conlfaclw. inldals

3/10/2022
Page 1 of 1 Dato
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New Hampshlrie Department of Health and Human Services
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EXHIBIT a

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1. The Contractor shall provide transportation services, statewide, to Medicaid
beneficiaries who are enrolled in the Fee-For-Service (FFS) program, which
include:

.1.1,1. Individuals with a spenddown. referred to as In-and-Out Medical.
,  ' /^sistance;

1.1.2. Individuals enrolled in the Health Insurance Premium Payment
Program (HIPP).

1.1.3. ' Individuals who are eligible through presumptive eligibility (PE); and

1.1.4. Military veterans receiving Veterans Administration benefits that
include;

1.1.4.1. - VA Pension Benefits;

1.1.4.2. VA Nursing Facility Pension;

1.1.4.3. „ VA Disability;

1.1.4.4. VA Aid and Attendance; and/or

1.1.4.5: VA Frozen Pension.

1.2. For the purposes of this agreement, all references to days shall mean" business
days, Monday through Friday.

1.3. For the" purposes of this agreement, all references to business hours shall
mean Monday through Friday from 8am to 5pm EST, .excluding , state and
federal holidays.

2. Statement of Work - Process and Futfill'Trip Request

2.1. The Contractor shall complete a pre-trip verification review by verifying the
medical appointment for a covered service with the service provider on iC)0% of
scheduled trips prior to providing transportation services. The Goritraclor'shail;

2,1.1.. Verify the beneficiary is eligible; . "

,, . 2.1.2. Verify that the reason for the trip is a'covered service; and

2.1,3'. Consult with the Department If the Contractor'is unabie;"t6 verify the
beneficiary information.

2.2. the Contractor shall ensure Medicaid FFS beneficiaries eligible, for"standard
Medicaid. or-the 'Medicaid Alternative. Benefit Plan ;(ABP) have access to
transportation to;

-M
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2.2.1. Non-emergent Medicaid covered medical and dental appointments;
and/or

2.2.2." Pick up prescriptions.

2.3. The Contractor shall determine the most cost-effective mode of transportatiort
based on medical necessity and ensure transportation services are available to
Individuals found .eligible under presumptive"eligibility, as connrmed through a
Presumptive Eligibility form.

2.4. The Contractor shall ensure various modes of transportation are avaiiabteTor all
beneficiaries, including individuals who need special-assistance.and individuals
who utilize durable medical equjpmenl.

2:5. The. Contractor shall ensure transportation services are available to FFS
■beneficiaries, Including individuals who may have vulnerable medical and/or
psychological condiiions. to and from nob-emergent medically necessa^
Medicaid covered appointments, statewide and. at times, to adjacent states.
The Contractor'shall utilize a priority of utilization of transportation, which shall
be in the following order:
2.5.1. Beneficiary's own vehicle>

2.5.2. Friends and/or family transit. ~ ;
2.5.3. .Bus or other public transporlation.

.2-5.4. Taxi and/or van transit.

2.5.5. Other modes based ori medical necessity.
2.6. The Contractor shall provide various rriodes of transportation that ensure safe

and .timely arrjval to rion-emergency medical services. The Contractor shall
provide modes of transportation that include, but are not limited to:

2.6.'1. Public transit (bus).
2.6:2. Taxi. '
2.6-3. Multi-passenger van. t '
2.6.4. Wheelchair van.

2.6.5. Non-emergency ambulance Advanced Life.Support, Level 1 (ALS1)
or Basic Life -Support (BLS).

2.6.6. ;Siretcher van.

2.6.7.. Mileage reimbursemenl.
2.6.'8. Rideshafe. as approved by the Department.

2.7; The Contractor shalj mpnitor the number of-daily trips and the m.bd
transportation by analyzing:

SS-2022-DMS-0l-NEMT:0l GontfaclOf Initials
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27.1. Current Medicald enrollment for the specified covered service area
and any anticipated enrolirrient changes;

2.7.2. Expected utilization of services by mode of transportation;

2.7.3. Number of trips each vehicle can complete each day;

2.7.4. Geographic location of transportation providers and beneficiaries;-
and

2.7.5. Ability to render services on a routine and at-will basis.

2.8. The Contractor shall ensure covered transportation services are available to .
meet urgent and non-.urgent transportation needs seven (7) days per week.

2.9. The Contractor shall waive the advanced notice requirements of two (2)
business days for routine appointments and ensure transportation and mileage
reimbursement for:

2.9.1. Travel to methadone clinic and MAT clinical services;

,2.9.2. Hospital discharges; and ^

2.9.3. ■ Urgent, medically necessary appointments

2.10. The Contractor shall ensure .routine trips are scheduled with a Jrarispprtation
Provider,within twenty-four (24) hours of receiving the request and all urgent .
trips shall be scheduled within two (2) hours.

2.T1. The Contractor shall schedule'and authorize routine" recurrir^g trips to ensure,
trips are pre^scheduled and automatically assigned to the provider best qualified
to deliver services'.in order to ensure continuity of services.

2..12, The Contractor shall accommodate special needs, which include, but-are not
•  limlted.to: ..

2.12.1. Transporting durable medical equipment, as needed.

.2.12.2. Assisting beneficiaries with limited mobility to and from the vehicle,
as heeded.

2.13. The' Contractor .shall develop strategies In rural areas to support the
transportation .needs of beneficiaries, which Incjude, but are not limited to: •

2.13.1. Developing .relationships with communily-base'd providers who have
access to vehicles or who have tradillonally arranged for transportation
of clients,- which may include:

2.13.1.1. Easter Seals.

2/13.1.2. Granite State Independent Living.

2.13.1.3. Nursing home facilities.

•2.13.2. Developing relationships \yith adult day facilities.

■SS-2022-OMS-01-NEMT-01 Conl/aclor Inllials ' ^
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•  2.13.3. Promoting mileage reimbursement solutions for the tjeneficiary, their
family, or other authorized caregivers.

2.14. The Contractor shall ensure the transportation needs of beneficiaries residing in
nursing home facilities are met by:

2.14.1. Ailowing all nursing home facilities to schedule transportation for their
residents directly with the Transportation Provider, as directed by the
Department, father than scheduling trips through the Contractor.

V

2.14.2. Complying with all Department-issued guidance with regard to the
procedures for nursing home facility transportation processes.

2.15. The Contractor shall review, approve, and pay mileage reimbursement to
beneficiaries who need assistance with paying for gasoline to get to Medlcaid-
covered services. The Conlractor shall:

2.15.1. Must confirm beneficiary eligibility before paying a mileage
reirribursement claim.

2.15.2. Review mileage reimbursement forms, as completed by beneficiaries
and signed by medical providers, within thirty (30) days of trip
completion.

2.16. The Contractor shall reimburse individuals for utilizing public transportation after
the reimbursement form is completed and verified.

2.17. The Contractor shall ensure that beneficiaries living in the same household, who. .
are travelirig'lb the sarne location for an appointment/are orily reimbursed drice
for mileage.

2.18. The Contractor shall reimburse Transportation Providers through an electronic
claims portal. The Contractor shall;

2^i^. Review the claim submission to ensure all requiredfields have been
properly completed by the provider; and

2.18.2. Make payment to the Transportation Provider within thirty (3.0)
business days from the transportation claim being'^received if all criteria
forsubmllting a claim are met; or

2.18.3. Mariually review, all claims that fall into exception status due to not
meeting all criteria arid, once information is verified, make payment
within thirty (30) business days of the manual verification.

3. Scope of'.Services - Operation of Call. Center

3.1. The Contractor shall operate a ca1| center that schedules transportation for'
Medicaid beneridaries arid ahswers queslions from beneficiaries andproviders.
The Contractor shall:

, tf
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"  ,, Ensure call-center representatives provide the beneficiary with the
most cost-effective mode of transportation. ^

3.1.2. Provide customer service' representative trainings tailored to
addressing beneficiary physical and cognitive needs, which include,
but are not limited to:

3.1.2.1. Hands-on product training in transportation services.

3.1.2.2. Quality monitored feedback.

3.1.2.3. Plan-speciric level agreements (SLAs).

3.1.2.4. Focused soft skills training on beneficiary Interactions.
1  ihcluding" how to handle challenging callers.

,  3.1.2.5. Fast, efficient order intake and schedulirig.

3.1.2.6. Cultural sensitivity and confidentiality training.

3.1.2.7. Fraud, waste, and abuse (FWA) training.

3.1.2.8. Health, safely, and welfare training.

3.2; The Contractor shall utilize real-time monitoring and dashboards to continuously
- monitor service levels to ensure continuity of services.

3.3. The Qontractbr shall ensure the call center has muHi-lingual capabilities and
operates a telephone device for the deaf and hard of hearing (TTY) during hours
of operation. The Contractor shall:

3.3.1. Capture and document the preferred language of beneficiaries.

.  3.3.2. Stay on the telephone with both the beneficiary and the translator
until all questions are answered and services are either provid.ed or
scheduled.

3.4. The Conlraclor shall ensure the call center is staffed with personnel
knowledgeable about Medicaid FFS with the ability to communicate with
indlylduals who may be experiencing communication barriers! The Contractor
shall ensure accessibility to call center services through:

3.4.1. A-statewide toll-free Department-dedicated telephohe number.-

.3.4.2. Online booking capabilities.

3.5. The Contractor shall confirm the trip request with the beneficiaiy, through a text
or a telephone call if texling capabilities are not available, once the trip has been
scheduled.

3.6. The Contractor'Shall ensure that, after regular.busiriess hours, the call center
telephone lirie is answered by a live attendant or an automated system with the
capability io provide callers with Information that inciudes, but is not lirriileiHe^^

•SS-2022-DMS-01-NEMT-01 ConUsclbf Initiais .
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3:6.1. Operating hours and instructions on how to obtain entergency
medical care.

3.6.2. How to call 911 in the event of an emergency.

3.6.3. How to leave a message regarding an urgent request for
transportation.

3.6.4. How to leave e message regarding a rioh-urgent request for
transportation. .

3.7. The Contractor shall ensure after-hours calls are reviewed within one (1) hou.r
of the beneficiary's call. The Contractor shall ensure:

3.7.1. The call is returned within the hour and transportation is scheduled
within two (2) hours of the beneficiary's call, If the request Is urgent:
or

3.7."2, The calj is returned 'during the next business day, If .the-request is
non-urgerit.

3.8. * The Cpntraclor shall ensure the call center is operational, at a Tnlnlmum,
excluding weather emergency declarations by the State of New Hampshire and
•State Holidays:

3.8.'l.. Monday thru Friday: 8:00 am ESJ to 5:00 pm EST; and

3.8.2. During major program transitions or peak events, as determined by
the peparlment, at which time the" Contractor shall accornrhpdate
^additionarhours'and capacity, subject to mutual agreement.

3'.9. The Contractor shajl coordinate its call center with Ihe Oepartment's Customer
ServiceCenler.

3.10. .The Contractor shall answer all calls within ninety (90) seconds being placed in
queue to have the call answered.

3.T1. The Contractor shajl develop a warrh transfer protocol for beneficiaries who may
call the incorrect call center to be' transferred to speak to the'correct
representative.

:3'.12. The Cpnlractpr shall have a compreherisive plan to handle call" volume that
exceeds staff capacity, which includes, but is not limited to:

"3'.12.1. The capacity to roll calls over by shifting resources to accommodate
■- expanded capacity within one hour of the increase in (^|l volume.

■3.12;2. Enacting disaster recovery protocols that leverage multiple .-contact
center-sites.

9
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3.13. The Contractor shall ensure that call center staff verify each caller's identity
utilizing a rninimum of t>yo (2) points of verification against the eligibility files
provided by Ihie Department.

3.14. The Contractor shall develop and subrriil telephone scrii?ts to be utijized by
Customer Services Representatives for Department approval.

3.15. The Contractor shall erasure the telephone system ullllzed to provide services
includes, but is not limited to:

■  3.15.1. The capability to. transfer calls to the Department's Voice Over
Internet Protocol (VOIP) system.

3.15.2. The capability of accepting inbound and placing outbound calls..

3.15.3. The ability to transfer calls received that have unique circumstances
or situations that need to be transferred to the Department..

3.15.4.- The, ability to route calls to specific queues, which may jri'dude an
automatic call distribution system. .

.3.15.5. The ability to track call statistics necessary to prdvide. required
reports Identified in Subsection 10. below.

3.16. The Contractor shall allow the Department to monitor call center activities.'which
•  Includes, but is not limited to: '

3.16.1. Allov/ing the Department to monitor liye-calls while on-sile'al the call
center. . ^

3.16.2. Making digital files of calls received available to the' Department on
the same day that calls are received, as requested by the
Department.'

3.17. The Contractor shall ensure a separate, toll-free phone number is available for
use by the Contractor's Transportation Providers.

4. Scope of Services - Beneficiary Satisfaction Surveys and Grievance & Appeals
Process

4.1; The Contractor shall conduct beneficiary salisfaction surveys to measure
customer salisfaction.

4.2. The Contractor shall ensure beneficiary complaints are processed in the order
they are received by severity of the complaint. The Contractor shall categorize
each pomplaiht as either a Significant Event or a Reportable Eyent:

4:2.T Risk Level l-Sighlficant Event; Beneficiary (or beneficiary's family ^
or properly), health, or well-being is .or .was in seriousTeopardy. For
example, one or more sentinei.events. such as death or bodily injury
have occurred. The Contractor shall handle arid report .cdfrt^Etfs'

SS-2022-DMS-01 -NEMT-01 Conu^clofInillals ■ " "•
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EXHIBIT B

within twelve. (12) hours of the event to the Department and to the
beneficiary. ^ -

4.2.2. Risk Level 2-Reportable Events: This category includes all other
adverse or reportable events including but not limited to a beneficiary
receiving Inappropriate equipment or services in required time frame,
a provider's action or inaction has caused the Department, and/or the

,  ' . Contractor's relationship with the Department, reputation, Industry
status, or financial benefit to be negatively Impacted. The Contractor
shall report and communicate corriDlaints within twenty- four (24)
hours of receiving the reported concern to the Department and to the
benefidaiy.

4.3. The Contractor shall ensure all complaints received regarding Transportation
Providers are processed in accordance with the assigned Risk Level specified
In Subsection 4.3, above. The Contractor shall:

4.3.1. Speak with, or send an email, or send written correspondence
directly to the beneficiary confirming the receipt of the concern
stating that the concern has been documented and is being resolved.

4.3.2. Conduct research and review all trip details by reaching out to the
beneficiary, provider, and/or facility.

4.3.3. Keep the Department apprised of the progress of the review.

4.3.4. If the complaint is .not resolved with initial correspondence, the
Contractor will send the findings and recommended respliition to the
Departmerit for review and approval.

4.3.5. If there- is a dtssalisfaclion with the inilial attempts made by the
Contractor to resolve the complaint, ensure:

'4.3.5.1. The complalnl.is escalated'within the organization;

4.3.5.2. Thb management team collaborates vyith experts, to
resolve the current conflict and mitigate future co'mplaints;
and

4.3.5.3. Experts may include, but are not limited to:

4.3.5.3.1. The training unit.

4.3.5.3.2. Medical experts.

4.3.5.3.3. Transportation experts.

4.3.6. Ensure all appeals are resolved within thirty (30) calendar days after
the iappeal Is .filed, the Cohtracjor sha.ll ensure the Department, is
appraised of all progress, including but hot limited to:' ^

■* &
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i

4.3.6.1. Continuing research and documentation'of the complaint
-throughout the process.

r  4.3.6.2. Sharing all details and findings with the Department.

4.3.6.3. Ensuring the Department Is notified of the resolution and/or •
action lakes place as a result of the escalation.

•4.4. The Contractor shall ensure when a.grievance Is made against a Transportation
Provider, actions include, but are not limited to:

4.4.1. Education, which includes, but is no! limited to'distributiorl of
appropriate training or education materials and access to available,
webinars'.

4.4.2. Escalation, which includes, but is not limited to. engaging assistance
as outlined In Paragraph 4.4.5.

4.4.3. 'Remediation, which may include; but is not limited to. a corrective
action plan, probation, or terrriination.

4.5. The Contractor shall ensure the grievance process includes swift action when
the Contractor or the Transportation Provider receives complairits.regarding a
■particular driver that indicates an immediate risk to benericiaries. the

;  Contractor shall ensure swift action includes, but,is not limited 16:
-4.'5.1. Notifying the Department within' twelve (12) hours)' of making the

determination of immediate risk.

'  4.5.2. Directing the Transportation Provider to suspend the .driver's ability •
to transport any beneficiaries pending further review.-

4.5.3: Investigating the matter in order to determine the level of risk, if any.
posed by the'dfiver.' . ' •

■  4.5.4. Determining any" further steps to be taken, if any, v/hlch may include,
'  but are not limited to:

•  4.5.4.1. Further driver training.

4.5.4.2. Continued suspension.

4.5.4:3. Termination of t'tie driver's employment with the Contraclor '
'or Transportation Provider, therefore placing the driver in
the "^do not use" (DNU) status.

.4.5.4.4. Referral to the proper law enforcement and/or licensing
authorities.

4:5.4.5. Notification to the Department of further steps ta'ken.

4.6. The Cohfractor shall Inform'the Trarisporta'tiop Provider of th? right .lp.a^R?!
the CQhtractpr's decision of any DNU action. The Contractor shalI.ensurS: ^

SS-2b22-DMS-0l-NEMT-01 Conl/fiClOf IniUals ^ ^
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4.6.1. ■ Notificalion includes instructions on how to file an appeal.

4.6.2. Notification that the appeal must be filed within 72 hours of l)eing,
notified of the DNU status.

4.6.3. Appeals are reviewed by the Coritractor's credentialing team on a
rhonthly basts.

4.6.4. the Department is informed of any appeals that resu[t in the DNU
status being overturned.

4.7. The Contractor shall ensure; cpmpiaints against their organization are processed
Iri the order they are received by severity of the corripiaint; The Contractor shall

.  categorize each complaint as either sigrilficant or reportable,-which include;

4.7 .1. Significant: Any Issue brought to the Contractor's attention by the
transportation Provider that Involves a higher.authority or punitive
outcome, which may include legal involvement or

4.7.2. Reportable; Any Issue brought to the Contractor's attention by the
Transportation Provider that is adversely affecting the transportation
provider or transportation' network, which may include payrrient
Issues, payment rates, ornetwork adequacy.

4.8. The Contractor shajl process complaints against themselves in accordance with,
processes-outlined in Subsection 4.4i above..

4.9. The .Contractor .shall review all complaints on-a rhonthly'basis to ensure
complaints have bee.n handled in accordance processes specified In Subsectiori
4.4..'above.

5. Incident Rep.orling

5.1. The Contractor; shall ensure all inllial notifications of adverse.evenls or Incidents,"
and any follow-up actions taken" are documented and provided to the
Department usirig the approved process for incident rep.orting,

,5.2. The'Contractor shall notify the Department within twelve (1.2) business hours of
the Contractor being notified, or becorhing aware, of events Involving.a
bene.n.ciary who is the alleged victim or perpetrator of.any of the following events!

5.2.1. A suspected or alleged criminal offense: or

5.2.2. Any irijury to a beneficiary or to a contracted or subcontracted staff
beneficiary that requires any level of medjcal inten/eption.-

5.3. The Contractor and.Its Transportation Providers shall report to the Department,
all accidents, Injuries, and incidents that have otcu'rred in conjunction with a
scheduled trip wben.a beneficiary is present in a vehicle, approaching "orexitihg
a vehicle for purposes of schedule transportation.- The .Contractor shall ensure
accidents, injuries, and incidents.are reported to'the Department as follov^"*
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5.3.1. Events involving a beneficiary who |s the alleged victim or perpetrator
of a suspected xrinfiinai offense requires notification within tvvelve
(12) business hours of being notified or otherwise becoming aware
of such an event.

5.3.2. An Accident/Incident with resulting injury requires notification within
twelve (12) business hours of the event.

5.3.3. An Accident/Incident without Injury resulting requires notification
within twenty-four (24) business hours of the event.

5.3.4. Notificatipn to the Department within one (1) business day of any
incident that was referred to the Medlcaid Fraud Control Unit by the
Contractor or their Transportation Providers.

5.4. The Contractor shall report alleged incidence of beneficiary abuse and neglect
pursuant to a|l state and federal laws.

■5.5. The Contractor shall provide a corrective action plan that identifies mitigating,
steps for the prevention" of future incidents, as requested by the Department. :

5.6. The Contractor shall require ail Transportation Providers to report fraud, waste,
or abuse (FWA) to the Contractor, who is responsible for reporting FWA'to the
Department and anyapprapriate authorities. The Contractor shall adhere to the
following practices; •' '
5.6.1. ' Comprehensive provider credenlia|ing and ongoing .monitoring to

identify providers committing fraud and exclude them from the
Transportation Provider network;

• 5.6.2. In instances of allegations of FWA, implemenl pre-payment reviews
to detect suspicious claims prior to payment;

5.6.3; , Use of post-payment audits to identify single daims, arid clatrp,trends
and provider trends th'at require further FWA review; •

5.6.4.- ConducI comprehensive investigations in suspected FWA;
'  5.6.5. Appropriate recovery initiatives to recoup Medlcaid dollars that were

paid for fraudulent claims or to fraudulent providers; and.
5.6.6. Regular communication with customers and where appropriate, state

and federal agencies who oversee the program.s to report, effectively
^  target; and track providers Suspected of FWA activities.

5.7. The_Contracjor shall report incidents not outlined in Subsection 5.6 as-required
by. state and'federal laws.

5:8. The Conlractpr-shaJ! take appropriate action'against transportation Providers,
and/or driver^ In response lo'driver misconduct that.constitutes ah alleged

-  ■ ■ dSS*2022-DM$-01'NEMT-bl Contfactof Initials
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•  EXHIBIT B

criminal-offense or a deviation of policy that is likely to have put a beneficiary at
risk.

6. Scope of Services-Driver Selection and Maintenance of Records Requirements

6.1. The Contractor shall ensure all Transportation Providers comply with the
following requirements. The Contractor shall ensure all Transportation Provider *
subcontract requirernents include, but are not limited to;

6.1.1. Confideniialitv. Transportation Providers shall treat every aspect of
covered services as confidential, including' the fact of Department
eiigit^ility and/or enrollment arid all information pertalnirig to a
beneficiary's physical or mental health status or condition. . Each
Transportation Provider shall execute a valid HiPAA-subcontractor..
agreement with the Contractor pursuant to the terms "of the
Contractor's Business Associate Agreement with the Department
prior to the commencement of covered services..

6.1.2. Hold Harmless. Transportation Providers shall accept the amdunts
paid by the Contractor for covered services furnished to beneficiaries
as payment in full and in no event. Including but .not limited to • •
nonpayment by Ihe.Coritracldr, or'the Contractor's insolvency, or
breach of the Contractor's agreement with the Transportation
Provider, shall-the Transportation Provider bill, charge; cdlleci a
deposit from, seek cornpensation. remuneration or reirnbureement
from or have any recourse against a beneficiary, the Deijartment, the
Contractor (if the Contractor has made payments in accorda.nce with

• this. Agreement) or parties other than the .Contractor for covered
services provided to beneHciaries in accordance with - this
Agreement.

6.1.3. .Legal Comoliance. Cprppliance. Licensure and Certifications.
Tra"nspo"rt"atior> Providers'.and, as applicable, any Drivers employed
or cpKtracled by Transportation Providers, shall corriply with all
applicable local, slate, and federal laws and regulations, and shall
hold In good standing any and all licenses and certifications required .
under such laws and regulations for the pfpvision of covered
services.

.6.1.4.. Safety and Comfort Standards. Transportation Providers shall
comply with all applicable locat...sta(e, and federal transportation*
safety standards, Department pglicies and procedures and
applicable industry and.accreditatipn standards relating to passenger-
safety: and comfort, including but not limited to':

'6.1.4.1. Requirements relating to the ■ maintenance'pf vehicles
arid equipment.

.SS-2022-DMS-0,I:NE,MT-01 Conlractor Initials v. '
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6.1.4.2. * Passenger and wheelchair accessibility.

6.1.4.3. Availability and functioning of seat belts.

6.1.5. Insurance. (Subpa'ragraph 6.1.5.1. through 6.1.5.4. apply to
Commercial Trahsportation Providers.) Throughout the term of the
subcontract with the Contractor, and for so long as the
Transportation Provider Is providing covered .services In accordance

with this Agreement, the Transportation Provider shall obtain and
maintain insurance, including but not limited to automobile liability
insurance and general commercial liability insurance, as is'

"  necessary to provide coverage for losses and liabilities arising out of
•the acts and/or omissions of Transportation Providers, or their
respective employees and/or agents, in the performance of, or
Injuries sustained during the provision of, covered services to

'beneficiaries as contemplated in this Agreement.

6.1.5.1. For, Corrimerclal Transportation Providers, insurance
coverage shall be':in amounts that are in'keeping with
industry standards and that are acceptable to the
Contractor and the Department, the minimum amounts
of which shall be not le.ss than $500,000. for automobile

■  liability to include bodily injury and property damage to
orie person for any one accident, and $750,000, ,for
bodily injury and property damage to two or more
persons for any one accident, including coverage for all
owned, hired, or non-owned vehicles, as applicable.

6.1.5.2. Insurance coverage shall list the Contractor and the
Departrnent as additional insureds and shall ibe
evidenced by certificates of Insurance issued by one !or
more-insurance companies licensed, to do business in
:New Hampshire, containing a thirty (30) calendar day '
notice of cancellation endorsement.

6.1.'5,3. Transportajion Providers shall submit to the Contractor
evidence of its 'compliance with all .requirements
regarding insurance and shall maintain ifisurance
policies In ,ihe types and amounts, and with carriers,
consistent with industry standards, but in no event in
anhiounls less than those required to operate
transportation providers vehicles in the slate(sj in which
transportation providers shall be providirig ^services
hereunder. At e minimum, transportation, providers shall
maintain (he following types of insurance: VehljJe
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Liability Coverage, Comprehensive General Liability
Coverage, and Woriters* Compensation.

6.15.4.

6.1.5.5. Unless a municlpajly owned entity-or not-for-profit
corporation under the laws of the Slate, transportation
providers will narne the Contractor as additional insured
with respect to work or operations performed Utider this

t  " Agreement. ■ * *

6.1.5.6.

6.1.5.7. Consistent with State reporting requirements
'  , Transportation Providers shall inform the Contractor of

'  'any vehicle collision or incident involving a vehicle
transporting a Medicaid Fee For Service client or any
other incident resulting in injury or potential Injury to a
'Fee For Service Beneficiary.'

-6.1.5.8.

6.1.5.9. Transportation Providers .shall forward copies of
'• c. . certificates of insurance'to.the Contractor prior to. the-

commencement of covered services, and shall issue to

the Contractor arid the Departrnent. .at .any time upon
request, copies of any applicable certificates of
insurance, renewal, surcharge, cancellation notice,
and/or verification of coverage.

"  6.1.5.10, Transportation Providers shall provide the Contractor
with at least fifteen (15) calendar days advance written
notice in the-event of cancellation, restriction or non-
renewal of any insurance coverage required herein. •

6.1.6. ' Perforrhance Commitments'.

6.1.6.1. Dfiver No-Show Limits. Driver No-Shows are defihed as

instances where a beneficiary has requested
■transportation within the advance notice requirement but
where the transportation request is not fulfilled by the
Conlraclor through no fault of the beneficiary. The
Contractor shall have a zero tolerance policy for driver
no-shows. Upon a report of driver no-show, the
Contractor shall:

6.1.6.'1.1.. Arrange for alternative transportation;

p
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6.1.6.1.2.. Keep the-beneficiary apprised of the status
of the aiternalive accommodations;

-  6.1.6.1.3. Immediately attempt to .contact the
beneficiary and determine their ability .to
reschedule the service/appointment to . a
later date/lime.

6.1.6.1.4. If needed, assist In re-scheduling of the
appointment that is missed by the

-  beneficiary:

6.1.6.1.5. * Complete an investigation Into the root
cause of the driver no-shdw. with findings
reported to the Department within ten (10)
business days via the documented
complaint process; and

6.1.6.1.6. Develop a plan to ensure sustainable
performance of transportation (or affected
beneficiaries.

6.1.6.2. On Time Arrival. Transportation Providers must ensure

drivers arrive on time for ail scheduled trips. On time is
.  defined as fifteen (15) minutes-prior to and fifteen (15)

minutes after the appointment time or scheduled pickup '
time as defined injhe NEMT Quality Metrics.

6.1.6.3. Beneficiarv No-Show. The Transportation Provider'shall
wait a minimum of fifteen (15) minutes past the pickup or
appoinlment time before Teporting a no-show. The
Transportation Provider shall contact Contractor who will
verify all elements are correct, then attempt to contact
the beneficiary to confirm the no-show arid determine if
a pickup is still needed prior-to leaving the pickup
location. The Contractor shall notify the Department of
no-shows.

6.1.6.4. Return Pickup. The Transportation . Provider shall be
notified by the beneficiaiy if there is a .delay In pickup'
•tirnes. The Transportation Provider shall pjckup wilhin"'60
minutes, similar to the. will-call- requirements, of
notific'atlQn that the member is ready for return pickup.

6.1.7. Corrective Action Plans fCAP),

6.1.7.1. If there are greater than 1% of completed .trip
Transpbrtatidn Provider ho-shows or hbn-onrt;nffle-

\w
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arrivals within a thirty (30) calendar day lime period the
Contracior shall inimediately lake steps to resolve
Identified risks with Transportation Provider, includihg

■  . but not limited to. investigation of the circumstances
surrounding the no-show or non-on time arrival.

6.1.7.2. The Contractor shall ensure a Corrective Action Plan

•  • (CAP) Is submitted by the Transportation Provider in
instances of more than 1% driver no-shows or non-on
tirhe arrivals within thirty (30) calendar days.

6.1.7.3. The Contractor shall provide a copy of the CAP to the
Department, followed by a summary report when the
CAP is completed.

6.1.8. Transoortation Provider No-Show Resoonsibilitv. The Contractor
shall facilitate the subsequent rescheduling of transportation
following a. Transportation Provider no-show; Transportation
Provider cancellation less than twenty-four (24) hours in advance; or
the Contractor's failureto Identify a Transportaiion Providerfor a trip.

^  , The Contractor shall be responsible for any transportation fees or
costs Incurred by the Departrnent or beneficiary as a result of the no-
show or late cancellation. Any such transportation fees shall be
deducted from the Contractor's compensation.

6.1.9. Outbound Calls and Beneficiary Confirmation. The Contractor shall

confirm transportation with the beneficiary upon a beneficiary's
request. The Contractor shall call or text, as appropriate, the
beneficiary at least twenty-four (24) hours, or within a time period, as
specified by the parties, in advance of the scheduled transportation
time. All.oulbound calls to beneficiaries shall be in accordance with

applicable federal regulations and state laws, Including but not
limited to Telephone Communication Protection Act (TCPA) 47 USC
227.

6.1.10. Trio Assignment. The Contractor shall ensure that trips.requested
.within ihe required advance notice period, as mutually defined by the
parties, are assigned to an available Transportaiion Provider. If no
Transportation Provider is available, th.e Contractor-shall notify the
beneficiary at least twenty-four (24) hours before the-scheduled trip
time.

6.1.11. Transportation Provider Monitoring. The Contractor" shall submit to -

the Department for approval a plan for a transportation Perforrnance"
report card ihcluding standards and quantitative metrics.. The
Cor)traclor shall ensure:

Ur
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6.1.11.1. Transportation Providers receiving a score of less than
95% for successive monitoring periods submit a CAP to
the Contractor.

6.1.11.2. The terms of the CAP are available to the Department.

6.2. The Contractor shall ensure Transportation Providers not-certified by the State
of New Hampshire are in compliance with vehicle and -safety .standards as
outliried below, all inspections must take place In-persoh:

.  6.2.1. Condition of Vehicle and-Safetv Eouipment. Vehicles used in the
provision of covered services are properly maintained for the
beneficiary's safety.and comfort. Maintenance includes, but is not
limited to. ensuring;

■.6.2.1.'1. Interior of each vehicle is clean and. well-maintained.
"6.2.1.2. Availability of. appropriate and adequate sealing for

secure and safe transport,of each beheficiaj7 and any
accompanying individuals.

6.2.1.3. .'Strict adherence to prohibition of smoking in al| vehicles,
.  including drivers and passengers. All vehicles shall have

"no smoking" signs posted in vehicle inlerjors in a
mariner that is easily visible to passengers.

6.2.1.4. Vehicles shall not have signage connected to political or
religious aifiliations!

6.2.1.5. Appropriate safely equipment is present and fully
operational in the vehicle, including but not limited to the
following:

8.2.1.5.1. First Aid kit, includlrig appropriate .gloves
and other personal protective equipment
appropriate for the vehicle type.

6.2.1.5.2. Roadside reflective or warning devices.
'i 6.2.1.5.3. Flashlight.-

6.2.1.5.4. One(1)fullychar9eddry"carbondi6xidefire
extinguisher, in operating condition, with at
least a one ABC rating and bearing the label
of Underwriter's Laboratory, Inc. The fire
exlinguisher shajl 'be securely mounted in
the vehicle in . a clearly marked
compartrrient'and,be feadijy accessible..

6.2.1.5.5. Chains or other tracjipn device^pas'
appropriate.
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6.2.1.5.6. Accident Report Forms.

6.2.1.6. Good operaling condition, that includes, but is not limited
to ensuring the following items are in functioning
condition:

6.2.1.6.1. Brakes.

6:2.1.6.2. Tires.
•  a ,

6.2.1.6.3. Side.and rearyiew mifrors:

6:2.1.6.4. hiom.

6.2.1.6.5. Functioning speedometer and-odometer.

6.2.1.6.6. Functioning two-way communication
system to link all vehicles to the
Transportation Providers' place • of
busiriess.

6.2..1.6.7. Working turn signals, headlights, tailiighls,
and windshield wipers.

6.2.1.6.8. Adequate and functioning heatiiig and air
conditioning systems.

6.2.1.6.9. Seatbeits' equipped with an .adjustable
driver's restraining belt with the-

*  requirements of FMVSS 209, 'Seal Belt
Asserriblies" (See 49 C.F.R. 571.209) and
FMVSS 210. "Seat . Belt Assembly
Anchorages!' (See 49 C.F.R. 571.210).

6.2.1.7. Vehicles are roalnlained in accordance vyith:

6.2.1.7.1. The manufacturer's safety and •mechanical
operating' and preventive riiaihtenahce
standards inclusive of tire Inflatipn and tread
g'roove pattern: and

6.2.1.7.2. State and federal laws, as applicable.

6.2.1.8. Providing written documentation of preventive'
maintenance; regular maintenance; inspections;
lubrication and repairs performed for each vehicle under
their coritrot. Transportation Providers shall maintain
documentation for a minimurn of seven (7) years
ensuring records include; but are not lini]ted to. "the
foijowinginforrhation:
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6.2.1.8.1. Identification of the vehicle, which may"
include make, niode! and license number or
other means of positive, identification, and
proof of ownership.,

6.2:1.8:2. Date, mileage, type of . inspection,
maintenance, (ubrlcation or repair
performed.

•6.2.1.8.3. ' Ifnot owned by the Transportation Provider,
the name of the person or lessor furnishing
the vehicle.

6.2.1.8.4. The name and-address of any entity or
individual performing .an inspection,
maintenance, lubrication or repair.

6.'2.1.9. Information Displayed. All vehicles of Corrirfiercial
Transportation Providers shall have:

6.2.1.9.1. The Transportation Provider's name,
vehicle number, if applicable,, and the
Contractor's 'Departmenl-specific phone .
number prominenlly displayed, within the
interior of each vehicle; and

6.2.1.9.2. Instructions for ndfntal and emergency-
operation of anyjift or ramp, which rriust be
.carried or displayed- in every vehicle-
equipped with these items.

•  •

6.2.1.10. ADA. Vehicles of Commercial Transportation Providers
must comply with, the American's with bisabiiitjes Act
(ADA) regulations. Any vehicles used for the.purpose of
transporting Individuals with disabliitie's.^must meet the
requirements, set .forth in 49 CFR Part 38, hereby
incorporated by reference.- and the foilpwing:

6.2.1.10.1. Ih'slallatipn of a whieelchalr lift or ramp rh'usi
not cause the manufacturer's GVWR, gross
axle weight rating or. ti.fe raiing lo- be
exceeded.

6.2.1.10.2.' Except In locations within thrfee and orie half
(3!^) inches .of the .vehicle floor, all readily
accessible 'exposed edges or other
hazardous protrusions of parts _ of
wheelchair lift assemblies or ramps thff^e
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located in the passenger compartment must
be padded with energy absorbing material
to mitigate injury in normal use and in case
of a collision. This requirement also applies
to parts, of the vehicle associated with the
operation of the lift or ramp.

6.2.'1.10.3. The controls for operating the lift shall be at
a location where the driver or lift, attendant '
has a full . view, unobstructed by
passengers, of the lift platforrn, its entrance
and exit, and the wheelchair passenger,
either directly or with partial assistance of
mirrors. Lifts located entirely to the rear of
the driver's seat shall not be operable from • '
the driver's seat but must have an override
control at the. driver's position that can be
activated to prevent the lift from being
operated by the other controls, except for
emergency .manual operation upon power
failure.

6.2.1.10.4. The Installation of the-wheelchair'lift or ramp
and its controls and the method of
attachment in the vehicle body or chassis
shall nol diminish the structural integrity of
the vehicle nor cause a hazardous

Imbalance of the vehicle. No pad bf'the
assembly, when installed and slowed, shall
extend ialerally beyond the normal side
contour of the vehicle" of vertically beyond !.
the. lowest part- of 'the rim of the wheel"
closest to the lift.

.6.2.1.10.5. Each'wh'eelchajr.lifl or ramp assembly shall -
'  be legibly and permanently marked by the

manufacturer or installer with, at a
rrilninium, the following information:

6.2.1.10.5.1. The manufacturer's name
and address.

6.2.1.10.5.2. The month and year of
nhanufacture.

6.2.1.10.5.3. An inspection certificate
that the wheelchair lift or I ̂
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ramp securemenl devices,
and their Instaltation.
conform. to State

requirements applicable to
accessible vehicles.

6.2.1.11. Vehicle State Inspection Reouirement.

6.2.1.11.1. Transportation Provider shall ensure all
vehicles are inspected and meet state
inspection standards. Transportation

• - Providers .identified in this section, exclude
public transportation and/or mass transit,
which are required to comply with federal
and state requirements and inspections. All
vehicles used to transport beneficiaries
shall be state inspected and registered in
accordance with state law prior to the
provision of services. Records - and
documentation of annual state inspectiohs/
as well as docum'enlatioh of any required
corrective .actions, 'shall be retained for.
compliance review, a mlnimum bf seven (7)
years by the Transportation Provider.

r  6.2.1.11.2. Transportation Provider shall obtain and
provide to the Contractor relevant
documentation that the vehicle meets the

standards prescribed by law and is safe for
•  transportation services. Documentation of

the state inspection shall include;

6.2.1.11.2.1. Identification " -of 'the"

indiyidual(s) performmg the
ihsp'ectiori.

6.2.1.11.2.2. The date of Inspection;

6.2.1.11.2.3. ' Identification of-the vehicle
inspected.

6-.2.1.11.2.4. Identification of the

equipment * and devices.
■  • inspected including .the

identification .of equiprnent
■  and devices found deficierit

■or defective .(specifically

S^2022-DMS^1.NEMT^1 ConUoctor Iniliais
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identify corrections
required in order for the
Transportation Provider's
vehicle to - meet the
requirements of the state
inspection.).

6.2.1.11.2.5. Identification of deficient or-
defective, items and notice
of the actions taken to
correct the deficiencies.

6.2.1.11.3. For taxis and all other commercial vehicles.
Transportation Provider shall ensure all
vehicles are maintained and operated in
accordance with town or city municipal
ordinances or codes in addition to all
applicable state or federal law
requirements.

6.2.1.12. • Transportation Provider Pre-Service Inspections.

■  6.2.1.12.1. The Contractor-shall require Transportation
Providers to complete an Inspection pf all-
vehicles prior to'the provision of services,
each day. The inspection shall evidence
the vehicle is safe, clean and in good
working order. The Transportation Provider
shall not provide services and shall re.port to
the Contractor, all defects and deficiencies
that are likely to affect safe operation of-.the
vehicle or cause mechanical malfunctions
that are likely to result In the discontinuation
ofvehlcleuse. TheTranspprt.atipn Provider
shall make available upon request of the
Contractor, documentation of a vehicle's,
•corrective action when safe -.operatiori was
in question, in accordance with the .above.

6.2.1.12.2. The Transportation Provider's inspection
.  log shall be available for audit by the

Contractor upon request and shall contain,
at a minimum, the following iihspe'cted.
Items: . - »

6.2.1.12.2.1. Service
brakes.

and parking

SSi2022.DMS-0.1 :NEMT-p1
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6.2.1.12.2.2.

6.2.1.12.2.3.

6.2.1.12.2.4.

6.2.1.12.2.5.

6.2.1.12.2.6.

6.2.1.12.2.7.

6.2.1.12.2.8.

6.2.1.12.2.9.

6.2.1.12.2.10.

Tires and wheels" (noting
the tires and wheels are
visibly free from cracks and
distortion, including bald
tires, do not have missing,
cracked or broken
mounting tugs).

Steering.
Horn.

Lighting, including but not
limited to -directipnal, and
hazards. •

Windshield wipers.
'Mirrors. ;
Passenger doors and
seats.

6:2.1.12.2.11.

Exhaust systems.
Equipment (or transporting
wheelchairs, which may
include but are hot limited
to wheelchair lifts or belts to
secure the wheel In the
vehicle. .

Safety and emergency
equipment, includihg .but
not limited to flares and first
aid kits.

6.2.1.12.3. The results of safety inspections shall be
randorniy audited by (he Contractor during
site visits.

■' 6.2.1.12.4. Records of Transportation Providers'daily
pre-operational inspections Shall be
maintained for cornpliance review for a
period no less than seven (7) years.

6.3.Tran$ppr1atidn Providers that are. certified by the State of New,Harnpshlre must
comply with all required standards,

SS.2022-pMS^l-NEMT^t
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6.3.1. The above referenced shall use only those.vehicles that are properly
registered to the Transportation Providers and approved for use in
performing transportation services for hire.

6.3.2. Transportation Providers will be in compliance with appropriate local. *
state, and federal licenses and ce.hificalions.

6.3.3. Transportation Providers shall only utilize Its own leased or owned
vehicles to perform transportation hereunder and shall not sublet, or
subcontract or arrange transportation under this Agreement from any third-
party provider without-the Contractor's written approval.

, 6.3.4. Transportation Providers will be in compliance with all Ipcal. state, and
federal transportatiori standards regarding passenger safety .and comfort.
Applicable standards may include but not be limited to the proper use of
seat b'elts and shoulder restraints and child restraint svstems depending
upon the state operated in.

6.3.5. Transportation Providers will be in possession of current appropriate local,
state and, federal licenses required bv:respective lurisdlclions. "

6,-3.6. Each of driver shall be p;rdper!y trained, possess a.yalid and,proper
license and meets all the appropriate license requirements of the statefs) in
which he or she drives and all applicable federal requirements.' •

6.3.7. Transportation Providers must assure the comfort arid safety of customers ■
' by .proper mairileriarice of its vehicies. - ■ ;

6.3.8. Transportation Providers shall permit the Contractor (or designate) to'
inspecl'Transportation Providers vehi.cles and vehicle repair logs and will,
assist the Contractor in examining all requested documentation.

. 6.3.9. Transportation Pfoviders-shall permit (he ContractorYof desianatei to
inspect driver-training records and will assisl-the Contractor in exartiinino all
feouested documentation.

6.4. Driver Standards.

6..4.1. Driver Responsibility and Trainino.

6.4.1.1. The Contractor'shall monitor or provide trainings to all
drivers via live webinar or recorded sessions, which
include:

f  0»

•  " ■ ■9'
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6.4.1.1.1. Assessment wilh.a minimum passing score of
80%: ■

6.4.1.1.1.1. Cultural and linguistic sensitivity;

6.4.1.1.1.2. Defensive driving;

6.4.1.1.1.3. Driver code of conduct;

6.4.1.1.1.4. Situatlonal behavioral training;

6.4.1.1.1.5. HIPAA compliance: arid

6.4.1.1.1.6. Fraud, waste and abuse (FWA)

6.4.1.2. The Contractor shall assess drivers to ensure-all .drivers
providing direct services attain a minimum passing'score
of 80%.

6'4.1;3. The Contractor shall obtairi proof 'of* the following
certincaliorisfor each driver-when applicable;

6.4.1.3.1. Passenger service and safety .'(PASS) or
NHRTAP (New Hampshire Rural Transit
Assistance Program) PAT (Passenger
Assistarice Techniques)' training or an
approved equivalent; 'and

6.4.1.3.2. Ambulance providers must be certified in First
Aid'andCPR.

6.'4..1.4. The Contractor shall continuously provide the following
training materials to the Transportation Providers at time
of initial contracting, annually, thereafter, or as requested
by the provider:

6.4.1.4.1. Provider'education materials, trainings, or
documentation which inciude, but are nol
limited to: .

6.4" 1.4.1.1. Provider introduction :arid/dr
overview of Contractor. poHcie's
and procedures.

6.4.1.4.1.2. Regulatory Cqmpliance.

6.4;1.4.1.3.- Provider Credentialing.

■0.4.1.4.1.4. • Provider Invoicing, Payment
Information, & Protocols.

SS-2022.pM$-OlrNEMT-p1
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6.4.1.4.1.5. Provider Payment Notifications
& Automated Clearinghouse
(ACH).

6.4.1.4.1.6. Contracl Termination.

6.4/1.4.1.7. Grievance & Provider

•  Remediation Program.

6.4.1.4.1.8. Provider portals for applicable
product lines.

6.4.1.4.1.9. Provider protocols.

6.4,. 1.4.'1.10. Provider communication
campaigns'

6.4.1.4.1.11. Provider job aids/reference
guides.

6.4.1.4.1.12. Nevy provider onboarding
wetiiinars.

6,4.1.4.1:13. Provider satisfaction surveys.

6,4.1.4.1.14. Provider manual review

webinars.

■  6.4.1.4.1.15. Provider educational webinars.

6.4.1.4.1.16. Service Protocols, S'tandards^i
Guidelines

6.4.1.4.1.17. Provider Portal. ■ when
applicable. *

6.4.1.4.1..18. Sarriple Fo.hnns.

6;4.1.4.2. Provider newsletters- or' comrnunlcation
campaigns'.

6.4.1.4.3. Provider job aids/reference guides.

6.4.1.4.4. Provider satisfaction surveys.

' , 6.4,1.5. Tti'e Contractor sliali ensure competence in the following
areas:

6.4.1.5.1. Briefing about- -the transportation program.
fepbrtirig forms, vehicle operafioh and pre-
service Inspection requirements, . and the
geographic area In which Drivers will be
providing service;

SS-2b22-bMS-0VNEMT-01 Conlraclor Iriiiials
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•  , 6.4.1.5.2. Transportation Provider Invoicing Policy and
Procedures:

6.4.1.5.3. Road testing with the type of vehicle the Driver
will be operating;

6.4.1.5.4. Safety policies and responsibilities;

6.4.1.5.5. Operational vehicle and equipment
inspections;

6.4.1:5.6. Basic operations, maneuvering and defensive
driving techniques including vehicle operation
in adverse driving conditions;

6.4.1.5.7. Boarding, alighting, assisting ar}d securing
passengers;

6.4.1.5.8. Operation of wheelchair lift and other special
equipment; and

6.4.1.5:9. Handling emergencies, security threats, and
threat awareness. Including communication of
unsafe situations.

6.4.T.6.' The Contractor shall monitor and track all-training and
initial credentialing via a system that provides for tracking
and reporting.

6.4.1.7. The Contractor shall require the transportation Providers
to be credenliaied upon hire and arinualiy during the re-
credentiaiing process.

6.4.1.8. The Contractor shall.perform periodic audits on random
■  trips to ensure all Transportation Prpviders are properly

trained and credentialed.

6.4.2., Driver Selection. ReDortino and Record Maintenance.

6.4.2.1. The Contractor shall ensure that background checks are
conducted on all Transportation Providers, including
rideshare/transportation network company providers but
excluding pubiic transit drivers.

6.4.2.2. The Contracior shall ensure each Transportation
Provider and each individual driver is not Excluded fronh

. participation in any federal healthcare; program (as
defined In s'ectioh , 112B(0 of the Cohsolidaied

•  Appropriations Act, 2021 (Public Law 1.16-260), Division
GC, Title II, Section :209) and is "not listed

■  :l#
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exclusion list of the Inspector General and the
Department of Health and Human Services.

6.4.2.3. The Contractor shall en'sure Transportation Providers
ensure driver selection prior to hire and at least annually
thereafter, includes at • a minimum the following

.  requirements:

6.4.2.3.1. Driver's appropriate and valid State driver's
license, includirig a valid state chauffeur or
taxi license and/or designation, if
applicable.

6.4.2.3.2. Review ofdriver applicant's criminal history
and Divislbh of Motor Vehicle records.
Including review of both personal and
commercial or business'driving records for
the past five (5) years, which shall show that

'  • the driver applicant has not had more than
two (2) moving violations or two '(2)
accidents within the last twelve (12)-
months.

6.4.2.3.3. Drivers, shall not have been' convicted of-

•  any felony or rnisdemeahor crimes related
to drugs, alcohol, healthcare fraud, patient
abuse, .child abuse, elder abuse, domestic
violence, or sexual misconduct. A driver
shall not be on any state or Tederal Sex-
Offender Registry.

6.4.2.3.4. ■ Within .the last ten (10) years, drivers .shall
not have beencionvlcted of anyfelpny crime
or misdemeanor cnmes for theft,

. embezzlement, breach of fiduclafy
responsibility, other fi.nanclal misconduct,
domestic violence, assault, drugs"., or
weapons. ' '

6.4:2.3;5. Clean rnptor vehicle record in accordance
with Contractor guidelines.-

6.4.2.3.6. Currerit vehicle registration' 'arid vehicle
Identification number- (VIN), vVn to be'
photographed and matched to
docurrientatlbn.

&
•SS-2022-OMS-01-NEMT-01 Contfadof Initials
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.6.4.2.3.7. Training certifications, which Include, but
are no! limited to:: PASS or NHRTAP PAT.

6.4.2.3.8. . The abpve criteria must be examined prior
to employment and, a! a minimum, annually
thereafter.

6.4.2.4. The Contractor shairestabiish'a drug screening policy,
for all Transportation Providers and drivers with which alt

parties shall comply in accordance with state and federal
regulations related to drug screening for drivers.

6.4.2.5. The .Contractor shall establish a policy for all
Transportaiion Providers .and drivers to disclose
violations of drug screening policies and state and
•federal drug laws. • -

'6.4.2.6-. The Contractor and Transportation Providers shall have
in place a process to disclose to the "state Medicaid
program- the driving .history. Including any traffic
violations, of each such Individual driver erhployed by a
Transportation Provider. (Consolidated Appropriations *
Act. 2021 (Public Law 116-260). Division CC. Title II.
Section 209}

6.4.3. Driver Code of Conduct.

6.4.3.1. Transportation Providers shall ensure all drivers comply
with a pfiyer Code of Conduct which includes, but'is not
limited to:

6.4.3.1.1. Drivers, shall maintain a valid driver's
license and shall comply with-state and
federal regulations for vehicle transport on-
roaciways. .

6.4.3.1.2. No driver shall use alcohol,.narcotics, illegal
drugs or any dnjgs that Impair the abiljly to
perform all required tasks while on "duty.

6;4.3.1.-3. No driver shall operate a vehicle .when
impaired as described above or if Impaired
by illness or fatigue while on duty.

6.4.3.1:4. . Drivers shall not allow passengers to sit in
the front -sea.t of the yehicle. unless
niedically necessary.

"  ■ &
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6.4.3.1.5. Drivers shall not assist wheelchair '
passengers, unless it is determined by the/

■beneficiary or guardian, and dhver that
assistance can be provided safely, if either
the driver or beneficiary and/or guardian do
not feel an assist can be provided safety,
the driver shall not assist.

6.4.3.1.6. Drivers shall ensure the safe, transport of
childreri in accordance with .state law,
including the proper installation and use of

•  a car seal, provided by, the beneficiary,
based on the age and height of the child.

6.4.3.1.7. Dnversshall'ensure beneficiaries under the
age of 13 do not travel alone without an
adult who is 18 years of age or older. For

.  childreri between the .ages'of/13' and 15
.years old, wrillen peimlsslon from the
beneficiary's parent or guardian Is required
for the child to travel alone with a "^driver

.when utilizing contracted services." Children
ages 16 and older may travel aione'when
using contracted services. •

6.4.3.1.8. Drivers shall not make sexually implicit or
•  ■ explicit cpm'menls, or solicit sexual favors,

or engage In sexual activity with a
beneficiary or other passjengers. Drivers
shall not respond to or encourage such

.behavior frorh a beneficiary or "other
passenger.

6.4.3.1.9. Drivers shall . not- rpake derogatory of
demeanjng ' slale/nents based on a
beneficiary's race, ethnicity; age, national
origin, gendef, color, djsa'bility, familial
status,' religious creed, gender identity,
sexual orientation or health condition.

6.4.3.1.10. Drivers shall not splicil, accept or provide .
controlled substances, alcohdl, or
medications from and/or to benenciaries or
olhe^r passengers.-

6:4.3.1.11. Drivers shall not attempt' to influer^oor
restrain beneficiaries, Iheir families ingjbr*

SS-.2022-OMS-O1-NEMT-O1 Conlrector Initials
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guardians, or medical providers from
making complaints or reports regarding
transportation, which includes refusal .to
give driver identification and/or contact
information.

6.4.3.1.12. Drivers shall not attempt to influence
beneficiaries, their families ond/or
guardians,, or medical providers to obtain
additional business.

6.4.3.1.13. Drivers shall not operate a vehicle with
inoperable doors or with the doors in the
open position;

6.4.3.1.14. Drivers, sha|i not leave the vehicle

unattended when unsafe to do so with

passenger(s) on board at any time.

6.4.3.1.15. Drivers shall not leave the vehicle

unattended for more than five (5) minutes
when passengers are on board.

6.4.3.1.16. Drivers shall not wear strong fragrances,
eat, smoke, or text in the vehicle.

6.4.3.;1.17. Drivers shall not consume fluids unless

.  ̂ ' medically necessary for. sustenance during
transport.

6.4.3.1.18. Drivers shall not penriil use of the vehicle In
,  a mannernot permitted by the construction

or design of the vehicle.

6.4.3.1.19". ■ Drivers ■shall not operate, any vehicle with
recapped, regrooved or retreaded tires on
Ihe steering axle.

(  ,
6.4.3.1.2'0. Drivers shall not operate unclean vehicles *

or vehicles containing strong odors.

6.4.3.2. The Transportation Pfovidershallfiol permit or require a
driver to drive more than twelve (12) hours in any one
twenty-four (24) hour period. A driver shall not drive until .
the driver fulfills the requirement of eight (8) consecutive-
hours off duly.

6.^.3.3. the Transportation Provider shall not refuel vehicles in a
closed building. '

I #
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6.4.3.4. • ■ ■ The Contractor shalj establish procedures for drivers to
deal with situations in which emergency care is needed
for benendaries assigned for transport.

6.4.4. Driver Service Obiloations. Transportation Providers' shall ensure
that all drivers satisfy the following requirements:

6.4.4;1. All drivers shall offer boarding assistance If necessary or
requested into the seating portion of the vehicle, which
.includes, but is not limited to:

6.4.4.1.1. Opening ariddosing the vehicle doors..

6.4.4.1.2; Fastening the seal belt when. medically
necessary.

6.4.4.1.3. Storing mobility assislive devices.

6.4.4.2. Drivers shall not refuel when passengers are in the
vehicle. ^

6.4.4.3. Drivers shall only'pick up and deliver, beneficiaries to
locations assigned by the Contractor.

6.4.4.4. Drivers shall speak English.

6.4.4.5. Drivers shall be courteous at all times with their
passengers.

6.4.4.6. Beneficiary property that can be carried by the
passenger and/or-driver shali'be stored safejy on' the
vehicle's at no additional charge: The driver shall provide
safe and secure transportation of (he following'iterns. as
applicable, within the capabilities of the vehicle:

6.4.4.6.1. Wheelchairs.

6.4.4.6.2. Child seats.

6.4.4.6.3. Stretchers.

6.4.4.6.4. Secured oxygen.

6.4.4.6.5. Personal assistive devices.

6.4.4.6.6. Intravenous devices. •

6.4.4.7. Drivers shall Identify Ihemselves'by name and company
up.on arrival to alt passengers' except in situations where
the.prive'r transports a'benenciary.on a recurring basis.

6.4.4.8. Jn the dppr:to-door transit service-category, the Driver
shall open and close doors'to buildings, except in

f'
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situations in which assistance in opening and/or closing
building doors is not safe for passengers remaining in the
•vehicle.

6.4.5. Representation and Warranties. The Transportation Provider shall
represent and warrant that any information furnished to the
Conlractor in connection with the background check of the Driver's is
true and correct and the Transportation Provider Is not now and.
never has been excluded from the participation in any slate or federal,
health .^re program.

The Contractor shall provide confirmation from the Transportation Provider .on
the business day prior to each trip with an additional cohfirmation after each trip
to ensure the trip was completed as scheduled.-

The Contraclor shall document a record of each trip, which includes, but is riot
limited to:

6.5.

6.6.

6.6.1. Assigned trips.

6.6.2. Completed trips.

6.6.3. Beneficiary no-shows.

.6.6.4. Driver no-shows.

■ 6.6.5. Unfulfilled trips.

6.6.6., Cancelled trips.

6.6.7. Costs fortrips.

6.7.

6.8.

The Co_ntractor shall implement an online system for Transportation Providers
to submit ttieir'claims. r

The Contractor shall require all Transportation Providers to track and maintain
records .of preventaliye and routine, vehicle service for a rpinimum period of
seven (7) years, inctuding daily irispectipn reports.. The Gontractorshal! conduct
routine audlts of the.se materials to ensure compliance with this requirement.

'7. Information Technology Security Requirements

7.'1.. The" Contraclor shall subrriil claims "for trarisportation services provided to
.eligible beneficiaries to the NH^Medicaid Management Information System
(MMIS) in l.rie Accredited.Standards-Ccmmitlee (ASC) X12 637P claim format

.  in order for tracking of encounter data.

The'Gbntraclor shall inquire against MMIS to verify that beneficiaries'are.eligible
.on the date ;0f .service to .receive the NEMT services. The Conlractor shall
'Subrriit electronic inquiries:

7.2.1. Online using the MMIS portal; or

7.2.

.SS-2022.pMS-01-NEMT-01
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7.2.2. ■ By submitting an ASC X12N 270 compliant Eligibility Inquiry
transaction; or

7.2.3. Inquiries can be made through the MMIS automated voice response
system. •

7.3. The Contractor shall receive the ASC X12 834 Benefit Enrollment and
Maintenance transaction from the MMIS.

8. Readiness Testing

8.1. The Contractor shall complete readiness.testing to ensure a cornprehensive
network and ah adequate service coverage is in place to meet .the needs of
eligible beneficiaries, statewide, The Contractor shall complete the below
readiness testing within 30 days from contract effective date. The Contractor

. shall:

8.1.1. Reach out to the Contractor's current In-network Transportation
Providers.

8.1.'2. ■' Facilitate regularly scheduled Transportation Provider-town halls, "or
other group meetings with in-network and prospective Transportation
Providers either in-persqn or via an internet platform.

8.1.3. Identify and recruit additional Transportation Providers as needed to :
'ensure network adequacy.

8..2. The Contractor'shall continue coordination of care needs for beneficiaries and
recruit Transportation Providers via nomination's from:

6.2.1. Payer customers.
8.2.1 Prescribing physicians.
6.2.3. Other providers.

8.3. Th;e Contractor shall conduct a credentlaling process through .readiness testing
that includes. but,is not limited to: • .

8.3.1. Prior-to the transportation services go-liye date:

8..3.1.1. RevieWthe service area geography and identify barriers, if
any.

8.3.1.2. .Develop a compliance matrix and modify documents t'o meet
contract requirements.

8.3.1.3. Initiat.e outreach to Transporlalidn Providers.
8.3.1.4. Identify new potential Transportation Providers currently

rendering Medicai.d transpqrlajio.fi covered s.ervices.
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8;3-.1.5."• Conduct town halls organized and.scheduled in select cities,
and/or through virtual meetings, which must include an
introduction and overview of the prograrn,

8.3.1.6. Coritracting wilh Transportation Providers to ensure
statewide coverage.

8.3.2. Prior to the transportation services go-live date:

8.3.2.1. Colled executed contracts with Transportation Providers and
continue in-depih provider outreach.

8.3.2.2. Recruit additional Transportation Providers to address any
gaps identified during adequacy analysis, Including rural
coverage areas.

8.3.2.3. Collect and review Transportation Provider credentialing
documentation.

8.3.2.4. Cohducl site visits and/or vehicle inspections.

-6.3.-2.5. Begin driver training and education

8.3.3. prior to the transportation services go-live date:

8.3.3.j. Finalize ajl aspects of the program. .

8.3.3.2. Complete remaining vehicle inspections and Transportation
Provider audits.

8.3.3.3. Ensure all Transportation Providers are fully crederilialed
and approved with rates and service areas configured. '

8.3.3.4-. Complete remaining driver training and education.

8.3.3.5. Organize tov/n hails in selected cities and/or virtual meetings,
for final revlewof the program with Trarisportalion Providers

• ensuringopportunity for Transportation Provider Q.& A.-

8.3.3.6. Secure and schedule beneficiary standing orders with in-
network providers.

8.3.3.7. Fine tune provider network- adequacy, service areas, and
capacity.

8.3.3:8. Conduct at least one (1) town hall as outlined'in Subsection
8.1. above. , •

8.3.4. Post Go-Live

8.3.4:1. Reviev; turn-backs and escalated trips.

8:3.4.2. Adjust Transportation Provider capacity and service'areas.

Tas necessary. »
•SS-2622.DMS^1.NEMJ-01 ' ConUactor InHials
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8.3.4.3. Conduct continuous monitoring of program.

8.3.4.4. Conduct town hall or all-provider meetings at least quarterly.

9. Exhibits Incorporated

9.1.. The Contractor shall use and disclose Protected Health Information in compliance
with the Standards for Privacy of Individually .Identifiable Health .Information
(Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 1.64) under the Health Insurance PortablHty-
and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and In accordance with the attached
Exhibit I, Business Associate Agreement, which has been executed by the parties.

9.2. The Contractor shall manage ail confidential data related to this Agreemerit in
accordance with (he terms of Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security Requiremerits.

9.3. The Contractor shall comply with all Exhibits D through K. which are. attached
hereto and incorporated by-reference herein.

10.Reporting Flequirements. , .

10.1: The Contractor shall subrnil the initial report no later than thirty (30) calendar
days from the.contract effective,date and subsequent reports will be.due every
thirty (30) calendar days thereafter.

10.2. The- Contractor' shall provide additional reports, as determined by the -
Department.

'10.3. The Contractor shall provide reports lhal include, but are not limited to:

10.3.1. Call Center Statistics.

■■ 10.3.2. Trip'Statistics.

10.3.3. .Utilization of Service. i

10.3.4. Provider Ne^prk..

10:3.5, Accide.nl/lncidenlReport.

10.4. The Cpntractdfshall maintain arid provide to the Departhient upon request, and
'  on. a quarterly basis, a list of in-network Transportation F^rovlders'Including

' vehicle typ'es arid nurnber of each type of vehicle.

10.5. The Departmeril expressly reserves the right to reject, suspend, or terminate the
participatioh of any Trapsportation Provider and/or one or rnore of tKeir Drivers.

11.Performance Measures

11.1. The Coritraclor must adhere-to the requirements and minimum performance
measures identified in Exhibit B-1-Liquidated Damages.

11.2. The Department will monitor performance of the Contractor by .reviewirig data
relative to Contractor performance report cards ensuring that the data reflects a
minimum score oif no (ess than 95% satisfaction rate from consumers.

I &
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11 ;3. The Department seeks to actively and regularly collaborate with Transportation
Providers to enhance contracl management. Improve results, and adjust
program delivery and policy based on successful outcomes.

11.4. The Department may collect other key data and metrics from the Contractor
including client-level demographic, performance", and service data.

11.5. The Department may Identify expeclafions for active.and regular collaboration,
including key performance objectives, in the resulting contract. Where
applicable, the Contractor shall collect and share data with the Departrrtent in a
format specified by the Department.

12. Additional Terms

12.1. Iriipacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

12.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right to modify service priorities
;and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith. This would require a review of contract terms
including any possible financial impact.

T2.2. Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate Services (CLAS)

12.2.1". The Contractor shall submit and comply with a delailed.descripiion of
the language assistance services theywIH provide to persons with
limited English proficiency and/or hearing inhpairrrrenl to ehsure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10)
days of the contract effective date.

12.-3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

12.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and .other ^
materials prepared during or resulting from the'performance of the

; services.pf the Contracl shall include the following staterTient,-''The
prepafa'tion of this (report, docunfienl etc.) was financed under a
Contract with the State of New Harppshire, Department of Health and
Human Services, with funds, provided in pail by the "-Slate of New
Hampshire a.nd/or such other funding sources as were av.allable or
required,'e.g., the United States Departrrierit of Health and Hum.an
S'ervices."

12.3-2. All malerials produced or purchased under the contract shall have
prior approval from the Department before printing, .production,,
distribution of use. " ' ' .

.  12.3..3. The Departrrient shall retain copyright ownership,'for any and-all
original materials produced, iricluding, but not limited to;

'  ̂ '■SS-_2022-pMS.O,1-NEMT-pl Contracio/Inllials,
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12.3.3.1. Brochures.

12.3.3.2. Resource directories.

. 12.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

12.3.3.4. Posters.

12.3.3.5. Reports.

T 2.3.4. The Contractor shall not reproduce.any materials produced under the
contract without prior wriKen.approval from the Department.

12.4. Eligibility Determinations

12.4.1. If the Contractor |s permitted.to determine the eligibility of individuals,
such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with
applicable federal and state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines,
policies and procedures.

12.4.2. Eligibility determinations .shall be made on forms provided by the
Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such
times as are prescritied by the Department.

12.4.3. In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the-
Contractor shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services
hereunder. which .file shall include all information neces'sary to
suppprt an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests, The Contractor shall furnish the Department
with all forms and documentation regarding eligibility determinations
that the Department may request or require.

T 2.4.4. The Contractor understands that all applicants -for services
hereunder, as well as individuals declared Ineligible have a right to a

..fair heafirig regarding that determination. The Cohtraclor hereby
covenants and agrees that all.applicants for services shall be
permitted to fill'but an appHcalion form and that each applicant or re-
applicant -shall be informed of his/her right to a fair hearing In

-  accordance with Department regulations.

13. Records

13.1. The Contractor shall keep records for ten (10) ye'ars that include, but are:"nol
limited to: ,

13.1;1. Books, records, dqcuments and other electronic or physical data
, evidencing and, reflecting all costs and other expehs'es"incurred by the"

Contractor in the p.erformance of the Contract, and all income received
or collecied by the Contractor.

13.'1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting

SS-2022-OMS'01-N£MT-01 Contractor Initials,
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procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such
costs and expenses, and.which are acceptable to the Department, and
•to include, without limltalion.'all ledgers' books, records, and original
evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers,
requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions,
labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by
the Department.

13.2. During the term of'thrs ContracI and the period for retention hereunder. the
Department, the United Slates Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives shall have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Contract for purposes'of audit, examination,
excerpts and transcripts. Upoti the purchase by, the Departrnent of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract.and .upon payrnerit of
the price limitation hereunder; the ContracI and all the obligations of the parlies
hereunder.(except.such obligations as, by the terms.pMhe CbntracI are to be
performed- after the end of the term of this CoritracI arid/pr survive the

_  ■ terminaliori of the" Contract) .shall terminate, provided however, lhat if, upon
review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any
expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder the Dep'artment shall
relajn the right, afits discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as are

•  disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.
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' ExhibitB-1 Liquidated Damages
"" "I' l l I - " I ■. I... I . - -- . 1 -j

The Department may regularly review the Contractors perfbrtnance, through means including but not limited to, reports..to ^
determine that the Contractor Is meeting performance standards. • . S

The Department and the Contractor agree that it shall be extremely impracticable and difficult to determine actual damages " |
thatlhe.Department will sustain in the event the Gontractorfails to maintain the required performance standards within the S
Agreement.

.. . . • . • . * * o
The. parties agree that liquidated darnages as specified in Exhibit B-l, Liquidated Damages are reasonable. Assessment S
of'Iiquidated darnages may be in a'ddition to. not In lieu of. such other remedies that niay be available to the Department |
Liquidated damages may be assessed based on the categorization of the violation or non-compliance as set,forth in Exhibit S
B-1. Liquidated Damages. . - 8
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f
p
o

qu idafe'd jDamages^'

Exhibit B, Section 10
Reporting
Requirements
Timely and Accurate
Delivery of Regulatory
Reports

The Contractor shall deliveraccurate and timely regulalorV and
management reports, and data submissions to the Department
according to the timefrarnes set forth in the Contract.

$25.00 for each late
report.

Exhibit B, Section 3,
Subsections-3.6

through 3.10
Operation of Call
Center

p

The Contractor shall meet all Call Center and call response
performance standards on a monthly basis.

• Calls must be answer 90% of calls within 90 seconds.
•  Urgent, after hours calls must be retumed within one (1) hour of

receipt of call and transportation scheduled within two (2) hours
of receipt of call.

• After-hour non-urpent calls retumed during next business day.

$175.00 per month not
satisfied within
timeframes.

Exhibit 8,,Section 5
Incident/ Accident/
Significant Event
Reporting

The Contractor shall report 100% of incidents and significant events
within the-prescribed timefrarnes.

•  VVithin twelve (12) business hours of the Contractor being notiried,
or becoming aware, of events involving a beneficiary who is (he
alleged victim or perpetratbr of a suspected criititrial offense.

• Accidentrinddent with injury: notification, within twelve (12)
business hours.

• Accident/lnddent without injury: notification within twenty-four
(24) business hours

$500.00 per incident
not reported within
prescribed timeframe.

• -V—D*
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Exhibit B,. Section S

andlSection.S

Failure to Act and/or

Pattem's'of Concern

Exhibit B, Section 6,
Subsection 6.1,
Paragraph 6.1.6,
Subparagraph 6.1.6.1
and 6.1.6.2

Provider Timeliness

Within one (1) working day of any iriddenfthatwas referred to the
M'edicald Fraud! Control Unit-by the Contractor or Transportation
Provider.

The Contractor shall take remedial action against Transportation
Prdyidef or driver In response to driver misconduct that constitutes an
alleged criminal offense or a deviation of.pollcy that is likeiy to have put
a beneficiary at risk.

The Contractor shall address. repeated driver misconduct related to a
•feportable incident or accident or repeated-violatibn of policy.
98% of routine trips requested shall be assigned.to a transportation
pVovider and completed (6.1.6.1)

95% of urgent trips requested shall be assigned to a transportation
provider and completed (6.1.6.1)
Member scheduled rides for all services are delivered within 15 minutes

of the scheduled appointment time 95% of the lime.

The Department win not apply these sanctions if the occurrence at
issue is attributed to unanticipated weather conditions, a natural
disaster, or other forces beyond the Contractors control (6.1.6.2).

$700.00 per
occurrence of failure to!

act.
<o

o
w

$10.00 per occurrence
below 98% where
routine Irips are not
filled.

$10;00 per occurrence
below i95% where
urgent-trips are not
filled.

$10.00 per occurrence
below 95% where

member is not picked
up within the prescribed
timeframes..
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Exhibit 8; Section 6,
Subsection 6.3'and
Section 12,;
Subsection 12.4
'0^er Code of Conduct
<5 Driver Requirements

Record Maihtenance'
arid Fraud Prevention

The Contractor.must establish a monitoring program.via their annual
cVedentialirig requirements to ensure transportation providers maintain
'Vehicle and driver records as required'by contract.

$350.00 per missing
record.

o>
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Exhibit B-2 Information Technology Requirements

1. Information Technology Security Requirement^

1.1. The.Contractor shall sign and comply with any and all system access policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part
of obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system. This will be

'  completed prior to system access being authorized, and on a regular basis as
requested by the Department.

1.2. the Contractor shall maintain proper security and privacy controls on. Its
systems according to applicable federal, state; and local reg.ulaticns arid aligned
with Industry standards and best practices including but not limited to CMS
Federal regulations, HIPAWHiTECH, RSA.359c. Ensure the safe.and secure
management of ■ vulnerabilities through recurring practice of' identifying,
classifying, rernediatlng.-and mitigating threats.

1.3. Develop, maintain, and follow procedures to ensure .that data Is protected
throughout its entire inforrriatipn lifecycle, from creation, transfomiatlon. use,,
storage and secure destruction, regardless of the media used to store the data,
which.niay Include but Is-not-lirriited to tape, disk, and/or paper.

1:4. The Contractor-shall provide the Department on an annual basis a .written
■attestation of HIPAA compliance, vyhich will demonstrate proper operational
security and privacy controls, policies, and procedures are in place and
rnainlained within their organization and any applicable sub-contractors.

1.5. The Contractor shall provide a docurnented process for securely disppslrig.of
■data,data storage hardware, and or .media; and shall obtainwritten certification
for any State data destroyed-by the Contractor or any subcontractors as a part

.  of.origoing, ernergency, and or disaster recovery operations. When no longer in
use, .electronic rnedia containing Department data is rendered unrecoverable
via a secure wipe program in accordance with' induslry-accepled standards for
secure ■ deletiori. or otherwise physically destroying the media, ,v/hich rhay
Include degaussirig. , '

■' 1.6. When uising third party service providers to create, collect, access, transrnit, or
store State of'.NH data, additional documentation may be required by-the
Contractor.

1.7. The Department may from time to time audit the security rriechanisms the
Contractor maintains,to safeguard access 16 the Stale of NH information,
systems and electronic communications. Audits may include examlnatlon'-of
systems .security, associated adrpinistrative practices, and requests for
additional documentation in support of this contract;

SS,-2022.C)MS.0.1 -NEMT-01

Coordinate TransporUtlon Solutions, .lr>c.
Page 1 of 2.
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Non-Emergency Medical Transportation (NEMT) Program for
Fee-for-Servlce (FFS) Medlcald Beneficiaries

Exhibit B-2 Information Technology Requirements

2. Technology Requirements

2.1. MaooinQ Systems-jMappinQ/distance software used to calculate trio mileaQe for
reimbursement and related purposes must be updated on a monthly basis to

.. ensure accurate geographic code distribution.

2.2. Reporlina Systems. The Contractor must maintain the technology necessary to
support the production of reports including, but not limited to; assigned trips;
completed trips; member no-shows; provider no-shows;- rejected trips; and
cancelled trips, and costs for trips.

2.3. Online Functionality. The Contractor shall implement an online system for
submitting claims,and mileage Contractor inforrnation.

2.4. Electronic Data Interchange fEDI) transaction processing and interfacing with
the NH,MMIS for member eligibility verification;. The Contractor shall verify
meniber FFS eligibility for the .date of service, either by submitting ah ASC X12N

. 270 eligibility inquiry transaction and receiving the 271 eligibiliiy ^Inquiry'
response, submitting an online eligibility veriftcdtion request, or calling (he
autornated voice response system. Failure-to confirm eligibility, for the date of
service will result in claims not being paid if the meniber is.determined during
claims processing not to be eligible:

2.5. Electronic Data Interchange Member Enrollment Processing' - The Contractor
.shall receive and process rhember.benefit plan enrollment data from the MMtS
In the' forlrh- of an ASC 834 Benefit Enrollment transaction if the Contractor
chooses to receive "member enrollment data. ;

2.6. -Electronic Data Interchange Encounter Data- The Cpntractor shall submit
ehcounler data.at least weekly to the MMIS using the ASC X12 8,37 Professional
tfansaction standard.

.SS-2022.DMS-01-NEMT-01

'Coor^ihaled Tr'ansportaLion Solutions'.,Inc.
Page 2 of 2
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EXHIBIT C

Payment Terms

1 This Agreement is funded by;
*

"  '1.1. 54% Federal Funds from the Medicaid Title XIX. Medjcal Assistance
Program as awarded on 1/1/2022 by the US Department of Health and
Human Services". Centers for Medicare and Medicald Services. CFDA #•

M  93.778. FAIN 2205NH5MAP.

1.2. 22% Genera! funds.

1.3. 24% Other, funds (Medicaid Enhancement Tax and New Hampshire
Granite Advantage Health Care Program Trust Fund).

2. For the purposes of this Agreement:
f

2.1. The Department has Identified the Contractor as a-Sub'reclplent, in
accordance with 2 CFR 200.330.

2.2. The Department " has identified this Contract as NONrR&D, in
accordance with 2 CFR §200.87.

3. Payment for said services shall be made as follows:

3.1. The Contractor shall be reimbursed a m'bnthly administrative rate of
$7,000 per month and a payment for direct transportation costs.

•3.1.1. The adrninistrative costs will be processed by Ih'e fifthteenth (15"^)
day of the month for the previous month and will be paid within -
thirty (30) days.

3.2. The Contractor shall refund the Department capitation payments made
for deceased'members "upon the Department's request.

"3.3. The 'Contractor shall submit monthly Invoices for actual transportation
cosis by the fifth (5"?) business day of the month, for the previous month,
along with the Excel spreadsheet, in an agreed upon fo'rmat, listing each
transportation'service provided by prpcedOre'code in accordance Exhbit
C-l, Transportation Rates, with the cost of service.

3.3.1. Invoices and Excel spreadsheets for Actual Transportation-Costs
shall be submitted by the Contractor to the Department through a
secure Informatiori technology system in .compliance with the
Health Insurance Porlabiiity Accountability Act. •

4. In lieu of .hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and
emailed to DMStnvoices@dhhs.nh.Q'ov. orlnvoices may be mailed to:

Financial Manager . . . '
Department of Health and Human-Services
Division of Medicaid Services | ̂

Coofdinaied Transportation ̂ Julions; Inc. ExhlWiC Cont/ociof inauis ______
3/10/2022-

SS-2022-DMS-Oi-nEMT^.l Pagotoi3 0«te
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. New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Non-Emergency Medical Transportation (NEMT) Program for
Fee-for-Servlce (FFS) Medicald Beneficiaries

EXHIBIT C

129 Pleasant Street

Concord. .NH 03301

5. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit B, Scope of Services, in
compliance with funding requirements.

6. The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be withheld, in
whole or in part in the event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions
of Exhibit B. Scope of Services.

7. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that
funding under this agreement may be withheld, in whoje or in part, .in the event
of non-compliance with any Federal or State law. rule or regulation applicable
to the services provided, or if the said services or products have not been
satisfactorily completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
agreement.

8. Notwithstanding Paragraph 18 of the General Provisions Form P-37. changes
limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both parties, without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and
justified.

9. Audits ' '

9.1. The Contractor is required to submit an annual audit to the Department
if any of the following conditions exist;

9.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750.00.0 or more in
federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part
200, during the most recently completed fiscal year.

9.1.'2. Cdndllipn B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28. Ill-b, pertaining to charitable
organizations receiving support of $1,000,000 or more.

9.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required
By Security and Exchange Comniisslon (SEC) regulations- to
isubmit an annual financial audit.

9.2. If Condition A.exisls, the Contractor shall submit an annual single audit
pertorrhed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CRA) to the
Department within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal
year, conducted in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part
200, Subpaft F of the Uniform Admiriistrative Requirements. Cost
Principles.'pnd Audit Requirements for.Federal awards.

-CoordlnaledTransportalionSotuUons,Inc. ExhibliC CooifBciorinHtote .
3/10/2072

SS-2022-DMS-Ol^EMT-Ot PB9e2of3 Date •
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Fe.e-for^ServIco (FFS) Medlcald Beneficiaries:

EXHIBIT C

9.3. ■ If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall subrnit an
annual financial audit performed by an Independent CPA within 120
days after the dose of the Contractor's fiscal year.

9,.4. Any Contractor that .receives an ahiouhl equal to or greater than
$250,000 from the Department during a single fiscal year, regardless
of the funding source, maybe required, at a rninimurn. to subrhltannual
financial audits performed by an independent CPA if the Department's
risk assessment deiermination Indicates the Contractor Is high-risk.

9.5. In-addition to. and not in any way-in iimitation of obligations of the
Contract, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor shall be held liable for any slate or federal audit exceptions
and stiall return tc the Department aji payments made under" the
Contract to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception.

Coofdtnalod Trsnsportslion Solulion&. inc. ExhlPU C Contractor iniiiais
'  3/10/2022
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Exhibit C-1 Transportation Rates

Transportation Rates

1. The capped Admlnlstratlv^e Rate to rhanage transportatlon beneflts for Medicald Fce-for-Scrvlce
(FFS) participants shall be at a rate of $7,000 per month.

2. The Fec-for-Servke (FFS} rates for direct transportation costs for Medicald.FFS participants shall be
In accordance with the table below*:

AOlOO'Taxl/Llvery'Base (Includes first 5 miles) ■ 15.00.

$0215 Taxi/Livery Mileage (after mile 5) Sl.40/milc
S0215 three T/L transportation providers In the

CTS Network are on 'a different mileage fee
schedule (from' first mile)

Sl.60/mile - Adventure Transportation
$1.50/miie - Abba Transportation
$1.25/mile •• Nashua Ex'press

A0X30 Wheel Chair Accessible Base S $28.50

A1030 certain WC providers are on a different

base fee schedule

$30.00 ■ ■

/*
S0209 Wheel Chair Mileage (frorh first mile) $2.65/mile .. .
■50209 WC providers are on a'differeni mileage
fee schedule (from fi rst mile)

$3.00/mile .
f

'A0426 Advanced LIfe.Support Ambulance base Sl54.23:$17S.0a : .
AOllO Public Trahsportotlon Actual Cost
A0170 Parking Fees, Tolls, Lodging Actual Cost

► •

A0$90 Advanced Life Support Ambulance
Mileage (frorn first mile)

S2.60

'A0428 Basic Life Support Ambblance'Basc - $K5.00
A0360 Basic Life Support Ambulance.Mileage
(from fi rst mile)

$2.60

•T2005 Stretcher Van Base (includes fi rst 5 'miles) •SlOO.OO
T2049 Stretcher.Van Mileage (after mile 5) S2.46
T2003 Unloaded miles

«

Mileage rate by mode, above, calculated
based on the number of miles between a
provider's base location over twenty miles and
the covered Indlvlduars pickup Jocation..

if additional fees arc required in outlier cases,
the Contractor shall seek prior approval from
the Department.

T2i307 Walt Time: Paid In 15-rrilnulo Incre'mer^ls** Fee Range: $12.00 to $25.00 per hour
A0090 Friends & Farhily Mileage Reimbursement
i .

$0.31/mlle current, subject to adjustment by
NHDHHS

Coordlnaied Ttansixrtaiion Solutions. Inc. Cthtt^iC-i Transpertstion Rates

'S^IOIt DMS^i-NEMr-Ol Pap t 0l I

fa
Contractor inlilah-

3/10/2022
Date.
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Fee-for-^rvlce (FFS) Medicald Beneficiaries

Exhibit C-1 Transportation Rates
•The Contractor rnust seek written approyal from DHHS for any rate 'dcvialions based on demand within
the state.

••Walt Tinie is paid:

1} When dollar amount is less than paying the mileage for driver to return to base.

2) For ambulance trips, when member slays on the stretcher during the appointment.

'-fSif

•08

Cpp>{Iii>a.ted Tr^niportalion Solutions, Inc. Cxhibii C-i i Ritei

.SS-2M^DM5-Ol-NEMT-dl Pa3«Jol2

ContnctorinliUh

Date
3/10/2022
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG^REE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

the.Vehdof identified in Section 1.3 of Ihe General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sectiofts 5i51-51$0 of the Drug-Free l^rtipiace Act of 1983 (Pub. L. 100-690, Tjtle V, Subtitle 0; 41
U.S.C. 701 ei seq.), and further agrees to have'lhe Cpntraclor^s representative, as ideniiried in Sections
1.11 end 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certiftcatich:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF.HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AORICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certificalion Is required by the regublions impJemenling Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Wortiplace Act of 1938 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V. Subtillo D: 41 U.S,C. 701 etseq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were emended and published es Part II of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
2160l-21691).''and require certifjcation b/ grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors), prior toward, thai they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017,630(c)'6f the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by Inference, sub-grantees arid sub-contractors) that is a State
m^.elect to make one certincation to (he Oeparlme'nl in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The cenificate set out betow is a
matehal represeotation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the;agehcy awards the ̂ ranl. False
certificalion or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
terminatipn of grants, or-government wide suspension or debarmcnl. Contractors using this.form should
send.lt to;

Cornmissioner

NH Department^of Health and Human Services
129Pieasanl Street, •
Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee ceftifies that it will or will cqntinuo to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. P,ub!ishii>g a slslemenl notifying employess that Ihe unlawful rnanulacluro, distribution,

dispensing; possession or use of a controlled substance is proHibited in the grantee'is'
workplace end specifying the actio.ns that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibftior);

'1.2. Establishing art ongoing drug-free awareness program to Ihfonm empbyees about
1:2.1. The dangers of dhjg abuse in the workplace; '' t..
1.2:2. The grantee's policy of riiaihlainir^ a druglree workplace: '
1.2.3., Any avallabie'drug <^unseling. rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. Tf)e penalties (hat may bo imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace:
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee lobe engaged in (he performance of (ho grant be

given axc^y of Ihe statenieni required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee "in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of.

.employment under the granl, the employee will
'1.'4.1. Abjde by the terms of the slalemenl: and
.1.4.2. Notify the employer in writir^g of his or her conviction for a violalioh of a criminal drug

statute.occufring in the'vyorkploco no later than fTvo calendar days after sugh
convicltoh;

1.5. ■ Notifying the 'egency In"writing, within' ten calendar days after receiving noiice urider
subparagraph 1.'4.-2 froih an einpioyee or otherwise-receiving actual notice of such' conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to overy granl

«  pfHcer on s^ose grant aclrvriy the convicted employee was working, unless (he Fed^zliQsency

ExTiIbll 0 - CertlficiKiori regardloB Ofug Fret Vehdw inliials
WcAplace RequlfcmchlJ '3/10/2022
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D

has designated a centra) point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include'lhe
idenlificalion nlimberfs) of each effected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the foltov^ng actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee v^o is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee;>up to and Including

termination, consistent with;the requirements of the Rehabililalion Act of 1973, as
amend^; of

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorliy In a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, Stale.'Pr idcaJ health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency:

1.7. Making a good faith effori to continue (o maintain a drug^free wori^place through
implementation of paragraphs 1'.1.1.2, 1.3.1.4. 1.5, and i.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the sile(6) for the performance of wori< done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place-of Performance (street address. cHy, county, elate, zip code) (list each location) '

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identined here.

Vendor Name:
I

3/10/2022 PU/f
Dale

THte: VP/cod

I I ■ExT^ D.-Ceftincaibn r^srdlng Drug Free Vendor tnlUels
WoflLplaco Roqiircmerils 3/10/2022
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CERTIFICATtON REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor idenliried InS^ttoh'I.S of the Gcnorat Provisions agrees, to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Lew 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Conlractor's representative, as identified in Sections'l.11
end 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certirication;

US DEPARTMEITT of health and human services - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable prograrn covered): •
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
"Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-O ;
"Social Services Block-'Grant Program under Title XX
"l^edicald Program under Tlijo XIX
"Commurilty Services Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to (he best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have, been paid or'wiil be paid by or'on behalf of the undersigned, to*
any person for influencing or attempiing to Influence en officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress; an officer or employee of Congress: or an empk^ee of a Member of Congress.in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continualiori. rencvvaL amendment.<or
modificalion of any Federal contract, grant, toan, or cobperatrve agreement (arid by specific mehlion
sut^rantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or wit) be paid to any person for
influencing Of atternpling to.lrifiuence an officer or employee of any agericy, a Member of Congress,
an officer or empipybc of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress'in Mririection with this.
Federal contract, grant, toao; or cooperative.agieement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), (he undersigned shall complete and submit Staridard Form LLL; (Oisciosure Form to'
Report Lobbing, irt'occordance with its Instructions, attached and identified as Slandai^ Exhibit E-l.)

.3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be iricluded in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts,-sub-grants, and contracts'under grants,
loans, and'coop'eratlve agreements) arid that all sub-rccipicnts shall certify and discioso'accordingly.

This.certification Is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was piaced when this transaction
■was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for rnaking or 'enle.ilng'Into this

' transaction Irnposed by Section; 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any ^rson who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each Bu'chifailure. . *

Vendor Name:

tUjcrl pUlf3/10/2022

VP/coo
—:o»

tf
ExhIbli E - CertJftcjIon ftegardlno Lobbytng Vendor ■

■  " 3/10/2022
cuOHHSnioTii Pflfic 1 ol r Deie
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DE6ARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS-

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the Presideht. Executive Order 12S49 and 45 CFR Pail 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other ResponsibilityiMatters. and further agrees to have the Contraciofe
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the foDcwng
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing bnd submitting tfijs proposal (contract), the prospective primary, participant is providing the
ccrtificalion.Mt out below.

2. The'inabilily of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in deriial
of participatjon in this covered transaction. If'necessary, the prospective participant shall subrhit an
explanation of whylt cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanaUon will bo
considered.in connection with the NH Departmehl of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
deterrnlnaUon vrtiether to enter Into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
parlictpani to fumisli o certificalion or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation |n
this transaction.

3. The certificalion In this clause'is a material representation of fact upon which relia.nce. was placed
.when OHHS determined to enter.ini6.this Iransaclioh. If it Is later determined that the prospective
primary p3rti.cipant krjo^r^gly rendered ar) erroneous certlfidaUon, in addition to oihe.r remedies
available tp'the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this Iransaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective prtrnary participant shall provide immediate written nptice.lo the DHHS agency to
whom this prcpg^l (contract) js submitted jf at any lime the prospeclive primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when subrnlited or has become erroneous by reason of chariged
circumstances.

1 The terms'covered IrarisacUon,''debarred." *suspended."incliglble."lower tier covered
iransaciion,* 'partidpahl.' ""'person.* "primary covered transaction,' 'principal.*.*proposal,' end
'vdluntariiy excluded,' as used In thls.clause, have the meanings set oufin the.Definitions and-
Covera9e!:soctions of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549:45 CFR Part 76. See the
ariached definitions.

6. .The prospective primary partidpapt agrees by submlKing this proposal (contract) that.ishculd
proposed covered transaction be entered Into, it shall r)0l knowingly enter Into any lov/er tier covered
transaction .with a person who.ls debarred, suspended, declared ineiiglblc. or voluntarily excluded
from pariiciFWtion in this covered transection, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary partidpanl further agrees by.submitting (his proposal thaljlt will lr}clude the
Clause'titled 'Certificdtiori Regarding Dct>armcnt. Sus'pens.ion. Irieliglbllity'and Voluntdry Exclusi.pn •
Lower Tier Covered.Transactions,' provided b)r DHHS. without modiftcalion, in all lower tier covered.
transactions and In all solrcitalions for lowpr tier covered transactions.

B. A participant iri''a covered transaction rrtay rely upon a certification of a prospective partidparit In a
Idv^r tier covered transaction that it Is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or Invblurilarify excluded
frprn'Ihe covered .transaction, unless it knows that the certlHcation is erroneous. A partidpanl may
decide Ihe.melhod end frequency by which it delermines.the eligibility .of its,principal.s. Each
pafticipanl'may, but Is .not required to, check the Nonprocuremerit List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing writa'^ed in the foregoing shall be cpf^slrued to regui're establishment of a system of/ccdrds
in'order to, render in good faith the certification required byihis clause. The knowledge andf^"

,

ExhlKi F - CertiTcalion Roijajcllno Debafmefi|, Suspension Conlrtctor initiab^- ■
And plheV Ros^'fti^^iy MatteVji 3/10/2022
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Information of a participant Is not requlrecl to exceed that which Is normally pbsiseascd by a prudent
person in iho ordinary course of business dealings.

••10.- Except for tran^lions authorized under paragraph 6 of these'lnslructions. If a participant In a
covered tmnsection imowingly enters'inlo a lovyer tier oovered lianMction with o person who is

^  suspended, debarred. Ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from partidpation In this trahsacllon. In
eddltion to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary partidpanl derunes'to the tjest of Us knowledge and belief, that ft end Its

principals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment declared Ineligible, or
' voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agertcy;

11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal.{contract) been convicted of or had
a dviijudgmehl rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense In

. connection wi^ obtaining, attempti/ig to obtain, or performing a public (Federal. Stale or local)
transaction or a contract under a public-transaction; violation of Federal or Sta^ enlitrust-
statutes or oonimlssioh of embezzlement,.theft'forgery, bnToery. falslficaUon or destruction of
records. ma)dng false statements, or receiving stolen property;.

11.3. are not presently Indicted for plh.erwise aiminally or cMlly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal. State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumeratod In paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; end.

•  11.4. have'fiot Within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transaciions (Federal. SUle or local) lermiriated for cause or default

12. Where the prospective prini^ participant Is unable to certify to ony of the statement If) this
certification,' su^ prospective.partjcipani shall attach an explaf)alion to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower'tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower iier participant, as

defined in 45 CFR Part TB.'certifjos to lhe't>est of Us khbwledgD end belief thafit-andjts principals:
13.1. -are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarmeni,-declared Ineligible, or-

volunterlly excluded from participation Jn'ihls trarisaclibn by ar)y federal departrhent or agency.
13.2. where the prdspecUve lower tier particlpanlls unable to certify to any of Iho above, such

prospective participant shall attach'an explanation to this proposal (coniract).

14. The prospective lower tier partiapant further agrees by submitting this proposal (corilrac!) that it v^l!
Include.this clause entitled 'Certification Regarding Dcb^ehl, Suspension. Ineligibility, end
Voluntary Exclusion - ibvirar Tler Cdverad Transactions,' withbut modifi.cation in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all soti'cllalions for lower tier covered transaciions.

Ccnlractor Name;

.—Oetvlipnc# hr

3/10/2022 PUf
Date "•

VP/coo
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLiANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH.BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

Pie Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative es ldentified In Sections 1.11 end 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the fonowino
certification: . '

Conlractor will comply, and will require any subgranlees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable'
federal nondiscrlmination requirements, which may include:
- th» Omnibus Crime ConUol and Safe Streets Act of 1968 <42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of fedefal funding under this statute from dfscrimlnating. eilher In employment practices or In
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The'Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Empioymcnl Opportunity Plan;

• the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act ol 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligatioris of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal,funding.under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment pracUces or In the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national ongin. and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the'Ciyil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis ol race, color, or national origin in any program'or aclivlly); *
• the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794). which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance frpfn d'^iminatin'g on thfe basis of disatitity. in regard to employment and the delivery of
settees or benefits, in any program or activity;

-.(he Americans'wilh Olsabiiities Act of 1990 (42 U.S,C. Se.clions 12131-34). which prohibits
discrimination and.ensures equal opportunity (or persons with disabilities in employment. Stale and local
government services, pubIic:accommodatjons, commercial facilities, and Iranspcrtaliori;

-the Education Amendments ol 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681.1683. 1685-86). which prohibits
discrimlnalion on (he basis of sex In federally assisted educalion programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), v/hich prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or acUvilies receiving Federal financial assistance, It does not Include
cmplpymBnl discrimlnalion;

- 28 C.F.R. pi. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs): 28 C.F.R. pi. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive.Order No. 13279' (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations)'; Executive Qfder No. 13559. which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria'for partnerships with faith-based end neighborhood organizations;

• 28 C.F.R. pL-38.(U.S..pepartment of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations): endyvhlslleblowerprotectlons'41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorizaliori
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. •112-239. enacted January 2. 2013) ihe Pilot Program for
Enhancemeht.of Contract Employee WhisUeblower Protections, which prolecls employees againsl
reprisal fpr certain whlsllo blowing activities In connection with federal grants and conlracte.

The certiltcate set but below Is a m'aterial representahori of fact upon which reliahce ls placed when the
•agency awards the granL False certificaljon or violation of the cortificaljon shall be grounds for
suspension o'f payments,;6Uspension or termination ol grants, or government vride suspension or
debarmenl.

—OJ.

Exhibll C
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In the even! a Federal or Stale dpurt or Federal or Stale administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimlnallon after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, natlonai origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the reapient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office'for'Ciyil 'R'flhls, to
the applicable contracting agency br-division Within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsrrian.

The Contrartor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
rcpre^ntaUVe as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of.the Generarprovlsions; to execute the following
certificalipn:

t. 'By signing end submitting this proposal (coniraci) the Contraclbr agrees to compty with the provisions
Indicated above.

Contractor Narne:

3/10/2022 I pWf
Date Wnfe tlWSrtf'pI a 11

VP/COO

Edtibit C
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

•Public Law 103-227, Part C r Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Acl). requires Ihat smoking not be permined in any portion of any Indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, .education,
or library aerN^ces to chjldren under the age of 1B, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or jocal governments, by Federal grant. contracL ioan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided In private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatmenL Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may resutt in the imposition of a civil monetary por^alty of up to
S1000 per day and/or the Imposition of an administrailve compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contraclor Identifted in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature ofthe Contractor's'
representative as IdentiHed in Section 1.11 end 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
ceflificalion:

1. By-signing and submlttirig this contract, the Coniractor agrees (o make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Pah C. known as the Pro-Childreh Act of 1994.

Contractor Name:

fWf3/10/2022

Dale 'Nameff^^S^ 'Platt
Title: yp^coo

—.o»
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contraclor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually identifiable Health lnformatlon..45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein. "Business
Associate' shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered
Entity" shall mean the Slale-of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Pofinitlcns.

a. 'Prp^yh' shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" In section 164.402 of Tltle-45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

'Business Associate* has the meaning giveri such term in section 160.103 of title 45, Code,
of Federal Regulations.

c. 'Covered Entitv" has the .meaning given such term In section 160.103 of Tille.45;
Code of Federal Regulations.

'Desionated Record Set'shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. 'Data AQoreoatlon' shall have the same meaning as:the term "data aggreoation* In 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

'Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the lerm 'health care operations'
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HITECH Act' means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIII, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of

•  2009.

h. "HIPAA' means the Health Insurance Portability and Accouritability Act of .1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy arid Security of Individually Identiriable" Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and arhendments thereto.

i. 'Individual' shall have the same meaning as the term "individual' in 45 CFR Section .180.103
and shall Include a person who qualifies as a personal representative In accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. 'Pflyacv Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
inforination'at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164. promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. 'Protected Health information' shall have the-same meaning as the term "protected health
Information' In 45 CFR Seclipn 160.103, limited to the Information created or receiv

. Business As.socjale frorri or on behalf of Cov.ered Entity..' k
ExhiWll . Contrftclw WGab

Health Insurance'Ponabflily Ad - ■
,  Business Associaw AgrccmenJ 3/10/2022
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'■ Req^jjred by |_aw shall have the same meaning as the term 'required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. '$eWary'shall mean the Secretarv of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. "Securitv RmIb" shan mean the Security Standards for the Proteclion of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164. Subpart C. and amendments thereto. ■

. :Un?ecured Protected Health information- means protected health Information that Is nolsecured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized Individuals and Is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Insbtute.

p. Qlber pefiriitiQps - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160.162 and 164. as amended from time to time, and the

HITtCH •
Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disciosure of Protected Health Information

a. Business Associate shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Informaiion (PHI) except as reasonably necessary .to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, Including but riot limited to all
ils directors, officers, erhployees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI In any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security'Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper managemeni and administration of the Business Associate-
II. As required by law. pursuant to the terms-set forth In paragraph d. below; or
ill. For data aggfegalion purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business .Associate must obtain, prlofto making any such disclosure (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confideritially and
uped pr further disclosed .only as required by law or for the purpose for-which It was
disclosed to the third party; and (li) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
•Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Noiificalion
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI. to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach;

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in fespiohse to a
•request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law,' without first hotifyirig
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and

•  .to seek-appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Buslfi^V
Exhiblll Contreclof InitUh

Health Insurance Portability Act
3/10/2022016 Dale" ' . -
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

6. If the Covered .EnUty notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by addiUonal restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such.additiona! restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restridions and shall abide by any .additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate. '

a. The Business Associate shall notify ihe Covered Entity's Privacy Officer Immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health Information not provided for by the Agreement Including breaches of unsecured
protected health Informalion end/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health Information of the Covered Entity.

b. ^ The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of Ihe above situations. The risk assessment shall Include, but not be
limited to:

0 The nature arid extent of the protected health information involved, Including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-ldentification;

c The ur)authorized person used the protected health Information or to vvhom the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected heallh information was actually acquired or viewed
0 The extent to which the risk to Ihe protected health Information has been

mitigated.

The Business Assoclate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and Immediately report the findings of the risk assessrfient in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with alt sections of the. Privacy. Security, and
Breach Nolificalion Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records rel.ating to the use and disclosure o( PHI received from, or created or'
received by lhe Business .Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes.of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. ■ Business Associate shall require all of Its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restficiloris and conditions on the use and disclosure of P.HI contained herein, including
the duly To return or destroy the PHI as provided under'Section 3 (I)'. The Covered Entity
shall .be-considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contraclor's.business^gplale
agreements with Contractor's'intended business associates, who will be recelvif»g^

3/20 M Exhibiil Cofttradof
Hexlih ln$u(anc« PonablDty Aci
^lncs«.Astocial« Agreewni 3/10/2022
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights .of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions {P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected heatth information.

f. Within five <5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disdosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine -
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
-  Btjsiness Associate shall provide access to. PHI in a Designated Record Set to the

Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the'
requirements under 45 CFRSectton 164.524.

h. Wthin ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an indlvidual contained In a Designated Rword
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI availatjie to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable .Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

(. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required (or Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
iridividual fof an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Wthin ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall rriake available
to Covered Entity such Information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill lis obligations'
to provide an accountmg of disclosures with respect to PHI In accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to. amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, ihe Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the

■ responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
Individuafs request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity.or the Business
.Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall Instead respond to the Individual's request as required by-such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Wthin ten (1,0) business days of "termination of the Agreement.'for any feasdn. the
Business Associate shall return or destroy,.as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, of created or received by the Business Associate in cdnneciipn with the
•Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes.of such PHI. If.return'or

. de^ruction is mot .feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the. Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
.Agreement, to such PHI and limii further uses.and disclosures of such PHI to th
purposes thai make the return or destruction'ihfeasible, for so long as Business

•3/2014 . CoolfBCtof IniUilj
HeaDh IruurarKQ PonabCry Act
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI. the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has l^een destroyed.

(4) Oblldatlons of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or Itmitation(s) In its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section '
164.520. to the extent that suCh change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any chariges In. or revocation
of,permission provided to'Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section.
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

•c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extertt that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure-of
PHI. , .

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of (he standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may irrimediately terminate the Agreement.upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach.wUhln a limeframe specified by Covered Entity: If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definilions and Reoulatorv References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
.shall have the sairre meaning as those te.rms in the Privacy and Security .Rule, .amended
from time to time. A reference In'the Agreement, as amended to Include this Exhibit 1. to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or .as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from lime to lime es Is rieoessefy for Covered
Entity to comply"with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA..the Privacy and
Security Rule; and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ovmership rights
vvith respect.to the PHI provided by or created oh behalf of Covered Entity:

d. Iriferpretatidn." The parties agree that any ambiguity in.lhe Agreement shall be r£«rtved
"to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy .and Security Rule. igp.

3^14 Eir^Wll ConlfttctOf —•
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e. SeoreQation. If any term or conOilipn of this Exhibit i or the application thereof to any
person^s) or circumstance is held invalid, such Invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions Nvhich can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terrhs and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

f. Survival. Proylsldns In this Exhibil I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement In section (3) I, the
defen'se.and Indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P'37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibil I.

Department of Health and Human Services as

^GB£s9Ub^ Contractor

Signature of Authorized Represenlalive Signalure oi^uthorized Representative
Henry 0. Lipman Edward Platt

Name of Authorized Representative Name of Authorized Representative *
Medicaid Director

VP/coo , *'

Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative

3/10/2022 3/10/2022

Date Date
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUhTrABILfTY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT fFFATAI COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accounlability end Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of Individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than 525.000 and awarded on or after October 1,'2010. to report on
data related to executive compervsatidh and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or'more. If the
Initial eward Is trelow $25,000 but subsequent grant modifjcations result In a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award Is aulsject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the eward.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 {Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information) the
Department of Health and Human Services (OHHS) must report the following InformaUon for any '
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requlrernents:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

"3. Funding agency
A. NAJCS code for contracts/CFDA program number for grants
5. Prograrn source ,
6. Award ̂  descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
'7. Location of. the entity
B. Prirtdple place of p^otmance
9.' Unlqueklentirieroftheenyty(DUNS.#)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five execuUves If:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Fe'deral govemmenl. and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation fnforrhaiion Is nol already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must subrfilt FFATA required data by the end of the mohth, plus 30 days. In which
the award or award amendrrient is made.
The Corilractor Identified In Section 1.3 of Ihe General Provisions agrees to comply "with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability end Transparency Act, Public Lew 109^282 and Public Law 110-252.
and'2 CFR Part T 70 (Reporting Subaward and Execulive Compensation information), arid further agrees'
to have the Contractor's representative, as.identifi'ed In SecDons 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Prosrislons
execute the following Certilicalion:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed Information_as outlined above to the NH '
Departrnenl of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of Ihe Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Aci

Contractor Name:

OMuiieMd »r:

3/10/2022 tlLtJfirl Wf
oite .

Title: vp/coo

-ee
E*hlW J - CertificaUon Rigsfdlng the Foderal Funding Conlridor Inlllib

/tccountablKy And Tfanspirency Ad (FFATA) Comptbnce '3/10/2022
cCifi»wvii07jj Page id2



Docusign Envelope ID: 4E9F6655-E8D9-47FA-BB61-9DE02698841D
uucuo^ri cMveiupts lu. o^c» i—»» cM-ooocyoo/u^u^

OocuSign Envelope iD: D297AE08-553O-42e&^A0OC-9OB995CO689C

OocuSign Envelope 10: A31700^BflM950-eA9E-?33CC589F3FA

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

FORMA

As the Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions. I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions' are tAie and accurate.

08-166-5692
1. The DUNS number for your entity is:

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, sut>contracts,
loans, grants, sub^rahts. and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or niore in annual
gross reveriues from U.S. federal contracts, subconlracls. loans, grants, subgrants. and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to.#2 above is NO. slop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES. please answer the following:

3. Does the-public have access to information aboul the compensation of the executives in.your
business or brganization through periodic reports tiled under .section 13(a) or lS(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a).'7fio(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
19867

NO YES

If the answer to P3 above is YES, stop here

If the ansv/er lo #3"Bbove is NO. please ansvver the fbliowirtg:

4. The names end conripensaljon of the five most highly compensated officers In your business or
.  organization ere as follows: . '

Name:,

Name:

Name;

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount;

Amount:

Amount:

CUDitlS'ltori]

ExhM J - Certillcaiion Regording the F«deri|l Funding
AceounHblliSy And Transparency AO (FFaTA) CompSance
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A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning In this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss • of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than

■ authorized purpose have access or- potential access to personally Identifiable
Information, whether, physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information,' Breach* shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach* In section
164.402 of Title 45. Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security InckJenl" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Iriciclent* in section two (2) of NIST Publrcatidn 800-61, Computer Security Incident'
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technotogy, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information' or "Confidential Data* means all confidential Information
disclosed by one party (o the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal Information including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records. Case Records. Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and ail Information owned .or managed, by
^e State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Departrhent of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or aaessed In the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition Is'governed by
stale or federal law or regulation. This information Includes, but Is.not lirriited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Persona! Information (PI), Personal Financial ;
Information (PFI), Federal Tax.lniormatlbn (FTI). Social Security Numbers ,(SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential Information.

4. "End User* means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,'
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream .user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative .data in accordance with the terms of this Contract. '

5. *H[PAA''m0an6 the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or Its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardy^re,
firmware, or software characteristics'without the owner's knowledge, .Instruction, or

'  consent. Incideriis include the loss of data through theft or device mts'placerhent, toss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

vs. UstupdsU) 10^18 ExhlbitK Contr9ctty'|n;UaU^
Infprrna^
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mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use,"disclosure, modincatlon or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Netwof1<' means any network or segment of a network that ts
not designated by the Stale of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of iho Stale, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI. PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

f

8. "Personal Informalipn* (or "PI") means Information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an ihdividuars identity, such as their narno,- social security number, personal
Information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C;19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or combined .with other personal or Idenlifying information which is linked
Of linkable to a specific individual, such as dale and place of birth, m.otheris maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. .Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the yrilied
StatesOepartmenlof Health and Human Services. • -

10. "Protected Health Jriformalion" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HiPAA Privacy Rule ai 45 C F R- §•
160.103.

11.; 'Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
. Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subparl C. and amendments
tHereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health information that is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Prolocted Health Information
unuMble, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals arid Is
developed or endorsed by a-standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR'

A. .'Business Use and Disclosure of-Conridenlial Informalion.

1. The Contractor must not use, discfose, maintain or transmit Confidenllal Inforrfiation
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Cdnlract. Further,-Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and'agents, must no't
use, disclo.se, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that "would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2". The CJontractor must not .disclose any Confidential Informatio'n In response 'to a
>09

.yS.LflSlupdalolOrOWia ,e^"WtK Cor>ifaeibf tnUlab S
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' request for disclosure on the basis that It Is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additio'nal
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security saf^uards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must t>e bound by such
additional resliictions and must not disclose PHI In violation of such additional
restrictions and rnusl abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User rnust only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

-5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not Indicated in this Contract. ' '

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirrh compliance with the terms of this
Coritracl.

II. METHODS.OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confideritial Data between applicatldnsrthe Contractor.attests the applications have
been evaluated by an; expert knowiedgeable in cyber security and That said

'  ' application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the Internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Stora^ Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage'devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email.. End User may.only emplqy email to transmit Cohfide.nlial Data if
cmdil Is encrvDte'd and being sent .to and being received by email addresses of

persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Sit.e. If End User is employing .the Web to lran$mit Confidential
Data, .the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data iransmltted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use Tile
hosting services, such as Oropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail .Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via ceriifled ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops ,and PDA. If End' User is employing portable devices .to transmit
Qorifidenlial Data said devices must be encrypled and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless.Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data .via ah open

.  .
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wirejess network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User Is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Conndential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
Installed on the End User's mobile device($) orlaplop from which InformationWill be

.. transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP). also known as Secure RIe Transfer Protocol.- If
End User Is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
Information. SFTP.folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
bo coded for 24;hour auto-delelion cycle (i:e. Confidential Data will be deleted every'24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Conflderilial Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted (o prevent Inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

I

The Contractor .will only retain the .data and any derivative of the.data for the duration of this
Contract. After -such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative In whatever form it may exist, unless, otherv/ise required by law or permittod
under this Contract. To this end. the parties must:

A. Relenlion

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection wilh the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

SlateS; This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implem'enlatipn of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Co.nlractor agrees to ensure proper security rnonltoring capabilities are In
■place to detect potential security events that -can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential Information for conlroctor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users In support of protecting Department confidential Iriformatlon.

4. The Contractor agrees to relajn all electronlc.and hard copies of QonftdGtilial Data
■  in 0 secure location and identified In section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confdenlial Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and socurlly. All servers and devices must have
cufrenliy-sup'ported and hardened operating systems, the latesl anti-viral, anli-
hacker.'.ahtl-spa'rn, anti-spyware, and anli-malware utilities. The environment, as a

OS
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall'protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information'Officer in Ihe.delecllon of any security vufnerability of the hosting
infrastructure. ,

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termlriation; and will
obtain written certification for any Stale of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or ariy subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergent, arid or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer In use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with Industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization. or clhefwise physically destroying the media (for oxample.
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Revi,. Guidelines
for f^edia Sanitizalion, National Instiiute of Standards and Technology. U. 8..
Department of'Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
lime of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department

,  upon request. The written certification will Include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed arid validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be Jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

,  2. Unless otherwse specified,'within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy .ail hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless Otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termiri'aliph of this
Contract, Conlractor agrees to completely destroy .all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV, PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

*

A. Contractor agrees^to safeguard the DHHS Data received undei* this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows; ■

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security "controls to protect .DepartmenI
confidential Information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored In the delivery
,of contracted services.

2. The Conlractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
cdnfidenliai information throughout the information llfecycle, where applicable, (from

. creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction)- regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).

/—
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3. The Contractor wfil maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Depaiimenl conndenlial Information
vvhero applicable.

,4. The Contractor svili ensure proper security monitorinQ capabilities are In place to
delect potential security events that can impact State of NH -systems and/or
Departmer^l confidential Information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will, provide regular security awareness and education for Its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the. Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for Slate of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and moniloiing compliance to security requirements (hat at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Cohtractor vyili work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
Slate of New Harnpshlre and Departmenl system access and authorization pojicles
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer, use agreerhents .as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department syslem(s). Agreements will be

• completed and.signed by the Cbniractor and any applicable sub-conlraclors prior to
system access belrig authorized.

6. If the Departmenl determines the Contractor Is.a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.T03, the Cohtractor .will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement.
(BAA) ̂ih-ihe Department and Is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Departmenl al its request to complete, a System
Management Suivey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Departrn'enl and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats", and vulnerabilities that may
bccur over the life of (he Contractor engagement. The survey'will be" completed
annually, or an alternato lim.e frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by:
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey "be completed w^ien the'
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. .The.Cofilracldr will not store, knowingly or unkho'w'ingly, any State.of.f^evy Hampshire
or Departmenl .data-offshore or outside (he boundaries of tha United iStates unless
prior express written' .consent is obtained from the Information Security ".Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Secufily Breach Llabiilly. In the event of any security breach Contractor.shall
m.ake efforts "to investigate the causes of the broach, promptly take measures-to
prevent future breach .and minimize any 'damage or loss resulting from the- breach.
The Slate shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, including bui not limited to; credit monitoring services, rnailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Conridenila) information, and must in' ail other respects
maintain the privacy end security of PI and PHi at a level and .scope that (s not less
than the teyel and scope of requirements applicable'to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C; § 552a). DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for Individually Identifiable health
Information and as applicable under Slate law.^'

13. Contractor agrees to establish arid maintain appiopViate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data-and to
prevent unauthorized use or 'access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scof^ of socurity that Is not less than the level and scope of security, requirements
established by the Stale of New Harnpshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at htlps^Avww.nh.gov/doityvendor/lndex.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement Information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any sccuriiy breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security Incident, or suspected breach which affects or Includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect lo the Slate of New Hampshire netw6r1<.

15. Cpnlractor must restrict access to the Conndential Data obtained under this *
Corilract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perforrri their official duties In connection vyith purposes identified in this Conlracl.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. corriply with such safeguards as referenced In Section IV 'A. above,
implemented to .protect'Confidonlicil Information that is furnished by DHHS
.under this Gpnlract from loss, ihefl cr inadvortertldjsclosuro.

b. safeguard this Infor'rfiation at all times.

c. ensure that'laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI. PI, or
PFI are encrypted arid password-protected..

d. send emaiis; containing Confidential Information only If ehcrvoted and .being
sent'id and being received by email addresse^'of persons authorized to
receive such information.

. . . .

£
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted byjaw.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and Individually
identinabie data derived from DHHS. Data, must be stored in an area that is

.physically and.technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours {e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identiners, etc.).

•  g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Conftdential Data, Including, any
■ derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when In transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required In section IVabove.

h. in all other instances Confidential' Data must be rpaintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
•assessment of the circumstances involved.

I. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
•shared with anyone. End Users will keep their cyedentlal Information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or Indirectly through
-a third party application.

Contractor Is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduci onsiie Inspections lo monitor compliance v/iih this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided In herein. HIPAA.
and other applicable' laws and Federal regulations until such time the .Confidential Data
Is disposed of in accordance wth this Contract.

, 4 *

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email .addresses, provided In
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents arid Breaches involving PHI In
accordance wllh the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and In accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300-- 306. In addition to. and
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance With all applicable obligations and .-procedures,
.Conlrad9r*s procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;

2; Delerminie if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;' •

■3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;
4. Iderilify and convene a.core"response group to determine the risk level of Incidents

and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

OS
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5. Detemilrie wtiether Brwch notification Is required, and, if so. Identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source,, and contents from among different
options, arid bear costs associated vyith the Breach notice as v/ell as. any miUgation

- measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
appllcabie. In accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer;

■ DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

8. DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSInfQrmationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.QOv .
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